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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Best Group
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year").

During the Year, the Group continued its strategic adjustment for its
principal activities to lay the foundation for transforming its principal
activities into the financial service sector. For existing businesses, the
finance leasing business and money lending business became the new
momentum driving the increase of revenue and gross profit. The trading
business was faced with the downward pressure of the gross profit
margin. The performance of the freight forwarding business declined in
response to economic conditions. In respect of investment, during the
Year, the Group continued to dispose of listed securities held for trading
and redeemed certain unlisted investment in funds and reallocated its
resources to support the development of other businesses. Looking at
the annual performance as a whole, the Group's revenue and gross
profit improved, but the administrative expenses increased accordingly.
Together with the one-off loss incurred for redemption of funds and
the impairment loss recognized in respect of some finance lease
receivables, the Group still recorded a loss for the whole year of 2016.
But compared with last year, loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company narrowed to some extent.

Looking forward, the prospect of global economic growth remains
uncertain, together with some uncertainties to the political
environment, it's expected that future economy will still be at a stage of
in-depth adjustment. Faced with possible difficulties and opportunities,
the Group has started to further consolidate its resources, including
realizing some investment portfolio, and prioritizing its resources into
growing businesses, such as financial service business like money
lending. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore investment
opportunities in the financial sector, aiming to enter into the financial
service sector in different areas through acquisition and merger and for
creating an innovative and comprehensive financial holding platform. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 January 2017,
the Group conditionally agreed to purchase entire interests of several
companies which are principally engaged in the provision of financial
services, including securities and futures dealing, margin financing,
asset management and stock broking in Hong Kong. As at the date
of this report, the aforesaid transaction is still subject to fulfillment of
conditions precedent, including the approval from the Securities and
Futures Commission (the “SFC") in relation to the change of substantial
shareholder. It's hoped that through acquisition of these business
platforms, the Group will be able to provide more comprehensive
financial service portfolio and expand its scale of operation in the future,
so as to further enhance the return on investment.
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Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, all our employees and partners
for their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. With the
support and contributions from all parties, the Group will continue to
strive for the best to achieve a better performance and create greater
value for shareholders!

Tan Xiangdong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Increase/(Decrease)
2016 2015 2016 Vs 2015
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M %
—E-AER-E-IF
—E-XE —E-RF R/ (TK)
BEET BEET BEET %
Financial Results Highlight MEEERE
Continuing operations REREER
Turnover L 641.3 453.0 188.3 41.6
Gross profit EF 71.4 323 39.1 1211
Other operating loss (net) Hied BmiEFE (3.9) (10.8) (6.9) (63.9)
Total expenses S H A% (73.2) (58.2) 15.0 25.8
Share of losses of associates DMEBENEERE (10.9) (9.2) 1.7 18.5
Net (loss) profit before tax & RMBRBERFERESR
non-controlling interests Az (ER)RRFE
— from continuing operations —~RAEBEBELEENR (16.5) (45.8) (29.3) (64.0)
— from discontinued operation —RADKRIHEEER 7.8 (3.5) 11.3 322.9
Loss for the year FREE (11.1) (51.0) (39.9) (78.2)
Loss for the year attributable to KAREEA
owners of the Company EHEERNEE
~ from continuing operations —RERELEEE (18.8) (47.5) (28.7) (60.4)
— from discontinued operation —REERILEEED 8.3 (1.2) 9.5 791.7
(10.5) (48.7) (38.2) (78.4)
Extract of Financial Position B RS AR O B 4%
Total assets BERE 1,056.7 767.0 289.7 37.8
Total liabilities BEAHE (31.1) (74.0) (42.9) (58.0)
Net current assets TEEEFE 874.9 530.0 344.9 65.1
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 170.2 87.5 82.7 94.5
Total net assets AEFEHHE 1,025.6 693.0 332.6 48.0
& Py b =
= — [\} =
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OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's turnover was
approximately HK$641.3 million, representing an increase of 41.6%
as compared with HK$453.0 million in last year. The Group recorded
a gross profit of approximately HK$71.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, representing an increase of approximately 121.1%
compared with approximately HK$32.3 million in last year. The net loss
for the year was approximately HK$11.1 million which was narrowed by
approximately 78.2% as compared with approximately HK$51.0 million
in last year. The loss was mainly attributable to, among other things,
(i) the increase in administrative and other expenses by approximately
HK$15.0 million in line with expanded business activities; (ii) the
recognition of an impairment loss of approximately HK$22.2 million in
relation to a finance lease receivable for customer’s default in payment;
and (iii) a loss of approximately HK$14.6 million upon redemption of
certain unlisted investments in funds. The loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$10.5 million (2015:
approximately HK$48.7 million).

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in July 2015 and
has been engaged in providing finance lease services in The People’s
Republic of China (“the PRC"”). The sale and lease back arrangement
is the main business model for existing customers. The leased assets
primarily consist of plant and equipment, motor vehicle and other
tangible assets. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover
of the Group's finance leasing business amounted to approximately
HK$42.2 million (2015: approximately HK$15.5 million) whereas
segment profit of approximately HK$6.5 million was achieved (2015:
approximately HK$10.7 million).

Money Lending Business

The Group holds a money lenders licence in Hong Kong and provides
loan facilities to prospective customers including enterprises and
individuals. This segment has begun to generate returns to the Group
since April 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover
of the Group’s money lending business amounted to approximately
HK$16.6 million (2015: nil). Corresponding segment profit of
approximately HK$13.0 million was made for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).
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Trading Business

The Group trades goods, including fuel oil, radio system and electronic
appliance, in the PRC and Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the turnover of the Group’s trading business amounted to
approximately HK$423.6 million (2015: approximately HK$311.4
million) whereas the gross profit was approximately HK$10.9 million
(2015: approximately HK$13.1 million). The Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$3.9 million (2015: approximately HK$7.1 million) in
this segment.

Securities Investment Business

It represents trading of listed equity securities in the Hong Kong stock
market and dividend income (if any) from such listed equity securities.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of the Group’s
securities investment business amounted to approximately HK$153.1
million (2015: approximately HK$118.0 million). During the year, the
Group recorded a realised gain of approximately HK$1.5 million (2015:
realised gain of approximately HK$35.0 million) and a net unrealised
fair value gain of the listed securities of approximately HK$29.4 million
(2015: net unrealised loss of approximately HK$47.7 million). For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not receive any dividend
income (2015: approximately HK$1.3 million). As at 31 December 2016,
the Group held trading securities with value of approximately HK$115.3
million (2015: approximately HK$232.7 million).

Freight Forwarding Business

This segment engages in the provision of international air and sea
freight forwarding and logistic services to customers in Singapore and
America. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of the
Group's freight forwarding business amounted to approximately HK$5.8
million (2015: approximately HK$8.1 million). Corresponding gross profit
of approximately HK$1.8 million and segment loss of approximately
HK$0.1 million were made for the year ended 31 December 2016
respectively (2015: gross profit of approximately HK$2.4 million and
segment profit of approximately HK$0.6 million).
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Coal Business (classified as “Discontinued
Operation”)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 December
2015, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement on the
same day with an independent purchaser to dispose of the Group's coal
business. The disposal was completed in March 2016. The Company is
no longer engaged in the coal business after completion of the aforesaid
disposal. For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no turnover
of coal products and the profit from this discontinued operation
of approximately HK$7.8 million mainly represented gain on the
aforesaid disposal of approximately HK$8.5 million which was offset by
administrative and other costs of approximately HK$0.7 million incurred
up to the completion of disposal (2015: segment loss of approximately
HK$2.0 million).

OUTLOOK

Since 2015, the Group has been transforming its principal activities into
the financial service sector. On 24 January 2017, the Group conditionally
agreed to purchase entire interests of several companies which are
principally engaged in the provision of financial services, including
securities and futures dealing, margin financing, asset management and
stock broking in Hong Kong. As at the date of this report, the aforesaid
transaction is still subject to fulfillment of conditions precedent,
including the approval from the SFC in relation to the change of
substantial shareholder. After completion of the aforesaid transaction,
the Group will be eligible to carry on regulated business activities
governed by the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), namely, Type 1 regulated activity (dealing in
securities), Type 2 regulated activity (dealing in futures contracts), Type
4 reqgulated activity (advising on securities), Type 5 regulated activity
(advising on futures contracts), and Type 9 regulated activity (asset
management). It is expected that these new business units will enjoy
substantial growth opportunity by leveraging resources and the network
of the Group and could provide a diversified source of income for the
Group.
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In respect of its existing businesses, the Group will continue reviewing
its strategy of and resources allocation for respective business segments
and developments. The Group will prioritise its resources into growing
businesses, such as money lending segment. Apart from existing
business operation, the Group will from time to time explore investment
opportunities for business development of the Group in the financial
sector. The Board is convinced that it is the fundamental basis on which
the Company generates and preserves value over the longer term and
the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Company. The Board will
closely monitor the business environment with the aim to maximise the
returns of the shareholders of the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,025.6 million (2015: approximately
HK$693.0 million) and HK$874.9 million (2015: approximately
HK$530.0 million) respectively. On the same date, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$170.2 million (2015:
approximately HK$87.5 million) and the current ratio was 29.16 (2015:
8.16).

The Group has sufficient and readily available financial resources for
both general working capital purposes and existing business plan.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, none of the Group’s securities was
pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31 December 2016
and 2015, there were no other significant assets pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred
approximately HK$3.0 million as capital expenditure (2015:
approximately HK$8.9 million).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAREIE

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material capital RZ-ZZE—"FE_T—AF+_A=+—
commitment. H AEBEITES KERNFKIE-
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD FEEXRKRE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held available-for-sale investments W -_ZE—XXF+_-_A=+—H AEEH#
of approximately HK$13.8 million (2015: approximately HK$51.8 7 A] 4 1 & & & £913,800,0008 T (=&

million) and held for trading investments of approximately HK$115.3 — F 4 : 4951,800,000/8 7t) M FHER S &
million (2015: approximately HK$232.7 million). & # /115,300,000 L (ZFE—HF: 4

232,700,000 7T) ©

Unrealised
qain (loss) Total
Realised on fair value investment
Number of shares held % of shareholding gain change Fair value % of Net Assets Dividend received cost
(‘000) (%) (HKS'000)  (HKS'000)  (HK$'000)  (HK$'000) (%) (HKS'000)  (HKS'000) ~ (HKS'000)
For the For the For the For the
Asat Asat Asat Asat yearended year ended Asat Asat Asat Asat yearended yearended Asat
31122016 31122015 31122016 31122015 31.12.2016  31.12.2016  31.122016  31.122015 31122016 31.12.2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015  31.12.2016
ATEREY
FERNE
FRHEE KRAAM BERNE (58) ATE HEEFEZAM LS BRERA
(TR) (%) (F#n) (F#n) (F#x) (Fidn) (%) (F#n)  (FEx) (TEn)
Bz Bz E He
B ® R R OZB-RE Z¥-AF R R ® R ZB-%§ ZT-1F R
ZE-XE “3-5F Z%-RF CT-nf 128 TR Z%-7E —3-1f %’ -%-1f TR TR Z8-7E
TR 2R t2R T-R  Zt-B  Zt-H 2R 2R T8 tzF =t-B =+-H t2R
Company Name/Stock Code AAEE/RERE =t-8 =t-B =t-R Zt-8 LFE t¥§ Zt-B  =f-A  Zt-B  =f-H LFE %E  Zt-B
Leyou Technologies Holdings Ltd. (1089) SEREERARLA(1089)
("LTHL") (T43)) 43,500 117,905 152 4 21,529 36,975 69,600 88,429 6.79 1276 - - 43353
Ding He Mining Holdings Limited (705) SARFERARLA05)
('DHMH’) (Ien@z)) 80,004 80,004 145 145 - 0 1048 10,161 102 147 - - 1490
Co-Prosperity Holdings Ltd. (707) ("CPHL")  BEBLEKRERAF07)
(THheEtE]) 48,266 64,900 ipil 319 (1,286) (2827) 9,557 17,848 0.93 258 - - 16,681
China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited (8047) & B R (8047)
("COFH") ([hEgEEE]) 25,000 25,000 124 149 - 5250 1315 2125 072 031 - - 314
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Ltd. FRERHEEBERAR(126)
(726) (“CMDT") (MERER)) 3500 6350 033 062 #1229 M) 733 31005 071 449 - - 8,291
Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (8009)% & & 8 % [ 5 B 22 71(8009)
("CEHL") (l2R&R)) 54,700 54,700 153 153 - (1,203) 1215 8478 071 122 - - 168
Others (note) it (Bft) (14,592) 40 3675 74,530 0.36 10.75 - 1,330 15,565
Total @it 1,529 29,443 115,266 232,686 11.24 33.58 - 1,330 113,675

Note: The fair value of each of these investments represented less than 5% of fair value  Mist: ZERESAZAFERERAREBNR T —X
of all those held for trading investments of the Group as at 31 December 2016. F+ZR=+—HZAABERSGEREZATE
Z5% °
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Based on public information available at the websites of the respective
listed companies as at the date of this report, LTHL is principally
engaged in the development and publishing of video games. DHMH
is principally engaged in (i) the mining of dolomite and manufacturing
of magnesium ingot in Malaysia; (ii) bottling and sale of mineral water
in the PRC; and (iii) exploration of mining resources in the Republic
of Indonesia. CPHL is principally engaged in five business streams
including (i) processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics; (ii) trading
of fabric and clothing; (iii) money lending; (iv) securities investment;
and (v) media, cultural, entertainment and advertising industry. COFH
is principally engaged in supply chain management services and
money lending business. CMDT is principally engaged in prefabricated
construction business and property investment in the PRC. CEHL is
principally engaged in general trading (including marketing sourcing of
technical and electronic products), trading of LNG products, investment
in financial assets, provision of money lending and factoring services.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group redeemed
unlisted investments in funds and recognised loss of approximately
HK$14.6 million in the income statement while fair value loss on the
remaining available-for-sale investments in the amount of approximately
HK$2.7 million was recognised in other comprehensive income for the
year. The Group's available-for-sale investments as at 31 December
2016 comprised of (i) listed equity investment in London at a fair value
of approximately HK$6.3 million; and (i) unlisted equity securities in
Hong Kong at cost less impairment loss, i.e. the carrying amount of
approximately HK$7.5 million.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, all financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss represented listed securities in Hong Kong.
The stock market was still volatile in 2016 but the downward pressure
was weakened compared to that in the second half of 2015. As at
31 December 2016, the Group recorded an unrealised fair value gain
of approximately HK$29.4 million in respect of investment in listed
securities held for trading.

R i

RIBRARE AR S LA TBIETS
T RABAER ST BREMEREGRE
Bl - SMIERE E B ()R B KA I FHIR
MEAREERER: (WWEEERREER
K RV ENE RIS LA bR A
B BBHEE QS RALS 81 (K
SRR Z T ENTE RN E (AR R K
B5 (HiE: (WBHRE: RVER- X
b R REETE PR ERE TR
EHEHEIERERAELS RS
BRTFENEERERARELB R YL
BE-EEERIERE KBS (BED
SEERMTRETER) RIEEARES
B5 RARGBAE RENEURRE
AR -

HE-_Z—X"E+-_A=+—HIEFE &K
EEELFFTESRETRIRERERE
#8#714,600,000/8 7T + M 7 F R E 2 UK
ABRBTAHEERERERAFTEBEEY
2,700,000 L AEBR T — R F+=
A=+t—HZU#HHERERREOHRBRZ
ERRARE - RAF{EHA6,300,0008 7T
TR BB 2 IELTMIRAFE S (AR
EE18)  BERME{E#) 47,500,000 JT °
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B AR ATEFABE 2 BEEYE
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TR HTTEBEIBE-_ZE—RFTEER
Frmsse- R E—~"F+=-_A=+—8 &
EERBIER G2 LB LFREHRBRE
IR A AU 25 #929,400,000/% 7T
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The Board acknowledges that the performance of the equities may
be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong Kong stock market
and susceptible to other external factors that may affect their values.
Accordingly, in order to mitigate possible financial risks related to the
equities, the Board will continue to maintain a diversified investment
portfolio across various segments of the market and also closely monitor
the performance progress of its investment portfolio from time to time
going forward.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 26 February 2016, the Group entered into a subscription contract,
pursuant to which Pets Best Japan Co., Ltd. (“Pets Best”) has agreed
to issue and the Group has agreed to subscribe for 8,300 new shares
of Pets Best, which represent a 14.98% interests in the enlarged
share capital of Pets Best upon completion of the subscription, at the
consideration of Japanese Yen144,154,400 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9.9 million). The subscription was completed in March 2016 and
Pets Best became an associate of the Company immediately following
the completion. Details of the subscription are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 26 February 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

EERERABREZRAANEZTBERMZ
&%Waa&w.;.&%xiz TEEEEZH
SN REE - it R EERERR
ZEEMBRR %%%Hﬂ’\m%%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁfﬁ
FRETKRERES  YTRARIREYE
2EREHEHAE 2 RAER-

EXRBREESEE

R-E—RF-_A-+H KEEFL
IS4 B Pets Best Japan Co., Ltd.

([Pets Best ) EREZETMALEBEERE
2 B Pets BestZ 8,300/ F i (HE R R
B SEAK 14 Pets Best&&IE KAR 7K 2 14.98 % #E
#@) KRB AE144,154,4008 B (HERLH
9,900,000/87L) - RER_ZE—"F=-A%
B K Pets BestR BERE T B AR AT Z
B NR] - REFBHANARFHBHAE=ZT

*/\ﬁ_ﬁ_JF/\ EZQ\W"

B EXFIHEEN BE-_ZT—XRF+=A
—t+t—HULEFE BEEMBERKHERLE
(BREREXNNENBAR RBEAGR)E
e



FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

Save as disclosed below, the Company did not conduct any other fund

raising activities during the year.

HESEZEREGMR AT 20165 R

Management Discussion and Analysis

B BRI i K% 43

SEEFBRAEFIERERE

BT XHEEIN NRARF AL EETE

IR &R H) o
Date of
announcement/
circular Fund raising activities ~ Net proceeds  Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
D/ BEREH £EED REREEE FERERTAR FEREZERAR
9 December 2015 Issue of 2,000,000,000 Approximately  (a) Approximately HK$90 million (a) As certain conditions precedent set
(announcement) new shares on HK$356 million for the finance lease agreement out in the Finance Lease Agreement
31 December 2015 3 February 2016 at #1356,000,0007& dated 2 November 2015 (as have not been fulfilled, or if applicable,
(circular) the price of HK$0.18 JT supplemented and amended by waived and the deadline of 30 June
—ZT-RF per share, representing a supplemental agreement dated 2016 for the payment has passed,
+ZANB a discount of 16 December 2015) (the “Finance Rongjinda Finance Leasing and
(D) approximately 26.23% Lease Agreement”) between Dishangtie entered into a termination
—ZT-RF to the closing price of Rongjinda Finance Leasing Co., agreement on 5 July 2016 pursuant to
+-A=1+-H HK$0.244 per share as Ld* (e EMEREBRAT) which the parties agreed to terminate
(i) quoted on The Stock (“Rongjinda Finance Leasing”) and the Finance Lease Agreement with
Exchange of Hong Dishangtie Zuche (Shenzhen) Co., effect from the same date. As at the
Kong Limited (the Ld* (s EEEE CRINDERA date of this report approximately

“Stock Exchange”)
as at the last trading
day immediately prior
to the date of share
subscription agreement,
under specific mandate
granted to the directors
at the special general
meeting held on 18
January 2016.
BRER-Z-RE-A
TNBET KRR
ARG LRTEFZ
BRURER_Z—X
FZAZBIUER0.18
BT (BRI EER
hREHER R

REARXHBERENA

ReHmARAR ([
Rl PRz (R
B0 2448 T B
26.23% ) 2 BHEET
2,000,000,0008% 7 %

fe

@) ("Dishangtie”).

#790,000,000/8 TR B & At
BREBRAR ([ReERER
g HERE CRIDBERA
Al EE)FTuZAHA=S
—AE+-A-BZBERER
2 (EAPA-—T-—1F+-A
TRBZRBEBERERE)
(TBERERZ]) -

HK$84 million has been used under
another four finance lease agreements.
Approximately HK$6 million will be
used for general working capital.
ARBEEEREMEZE T RRE
PR REER (R ) ERE R
HeBIERR-F-R"E A=1A
Bl SRS EREEEE FER
“E-RELARBAVEERE
Bt RS RELLRERERE
BIER B SREY - RARSHE 4
84,000,000 L2 RERINLHEE
R E %8 - 46,000,000 7L 1 A
fE—fREEET-
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Date of

announcement/

circular Fund raising activities ~ Net proceeds  Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
b/ BHAH 5EED FERERE FERERERZ FEREZERAR

(b)  HK$40 million for the loan (b) HK$40 million was used as intended.
agreement dated 2 November
2015 (as supplemented and
amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 16 December
2015) between China Best Finance
Limited and Anli Holdings Limited
(“Anli Holdings").
(b) 40,000,000 TRREEEHER  (b) 40,000,000 TTHHTEREDA
AREZEERAERAR ([RE
ERFIu AT —RF
T-AZAZERGE (BREA
“E-RGETATRAZER
BEARTRIER)

(c) Approximately HK$60 million (0 As disclosed in the Company's
for purchasing not less than announcement dated 24 January
60% of the issued shares of 2017, the Group intended to use this
Anli Holdings or acquiring other portion of net proceeds in acquiring,
suitable securities companies, among others, licensed corporations
futures companies and/or asset carrying on regulated activities
management companies. governed by the SFC.

(©) #I60,000,000B TAREESLR (O HEALABHA-ZT—LF—f
ZEER260%E BT TR ARARE  REEES
BEMREZEFRR HELF BB A PR FIE R SRR (A
R/GEEEBRA- BE)REBEGRELXRAEED

LR



HZEEEZERERDR 20165 ], 17
Management Discussion and Analysis
B B S i B 43 B
Date of
announcement/
circular Fund raising activities ~ Net proceeds  Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
D/ BEHAS SEEE FERERE FERERERZ FEREZERAR
(d) Approximately HK$60 million (d) Approximately HK$12 million had
for subscription of 55% of the been utilised for subscription of
enlarged equity interest in Pets 14.98% of the enlarged equity
Best, a pets health insurance interest in Pets Best and related
company in Japan. transaction costs. The remaining
approximately HK$40 million will be
used for the acquisition disclosed
in the Company's announcement
dated 24 January 2017 and the
approximately HK$8 million will be
used for general working capital.
(d) #760,000,0008 T BN RHEPets  (d) #912,000,000/8 7T 2 R R HE Pets
Best (—f4 BestZ 14.98% 48 % KM i [ AEH &2
ARENRERBAF) Z55% SHR  $3 T4140,000,00038 7T #
BREARE: ARALEREBRAZE—+F—A
MRz AMARENEEE
R 498,000,000 T FIE— M2 €
(e) Approximately HK$80 million for (e) Approximately HK$80 million was
the expansion of trading business used in trading business of the
of the Group. Group.
(e) #180,000,000 TANARAK () #180,000,0008 LEARAKEZE
(f)  Approximately HK$26 million for (f) Approximately HK$26 million was
general working capital. utilised for general working capital.
(f) #126,000,0008 TRIF—REE () #26,0000008TERIF—HEEE
4
b~
31—
S,
SO s ?LL%
= — ) =
- e ,_.b-.."\-"";?
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During
the year, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars whereas Renminbi had a downward
adjustment, resulting in an exchange loss of approximately HK$26.2
million recognised as other comprehensive expenses of the Group. The
Group will take a prudent approach against any impact arising from
the fluctuation in exchange rates but currently is not engaged in any
derivative activities and not committed to any financial instruments to

hedge its balance sheet exposure.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 55 staff (2015: 51 staff). The
total staff cost incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$29.2 million (2015: approximately HK$26.7 million).
The remuneration of employees was determined with reference to
the qualification and experience of individual staff member, market
circumstances and the Group's performance.
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), the staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function have adequate training programmes and budget.

In accordance with the

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to directors
(including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the year, no options were granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

B 2= % B & B
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
26 May 2017 to Thursday, 1 June 2017 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify to be
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Thursday, 1 June 2017, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Ru Xiangan,
Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui, the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company. A summary of duties and works of
the Audit Committee is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5. Details of
the Company’s corporate governance are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the
Group's risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and for reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis under Code Provision C.2.1.

o BRI i K 43
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholders’ value and safeguard shareholders’
interests. The Group's corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance practices:
(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for

deviation.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the
deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, A.6.7 and C.2.5 which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments
of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board's procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions being entered into by the abovementioned
officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised five executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors. Save as
disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report, members of the Board do not have any relationship with
any other director.

The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
section of “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of
Directors” on page 2 and page 46 respectively and in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director for his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and its
works performed during the year are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself or herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board noted that the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code
stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The former independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis, Mr. Chen Zhenguo
and Mr. Li Yu were not appointed for a specific term but subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years under the Company’s Bye-
laws. During the year, all of them resigned and existing independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui
and Mr. Ru Xiangan were respectively appointed for a three-year
term and are subject to re-election. After the appointment of existing
independent non-executive directors, the Company has complied with
the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Ru Xiangan will be subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Li
Yang and Mr. Chen Wei shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in Code Provision A.6.1, each newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment. Subsequently he or she should receive any briefing
and professional development necessary to ensure that he or she has a
proper understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.

The Board recognises the importance of directors’ training and all
directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, all directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training courses and/or reading
reference materials on the topics related to corporate governance and
regulations:

EE 2

RIBTAMEXFEA6VGRZHRE  SHELE
ENERXZAERESE2E EAMDFZ
PERM - HREEREETAMBHNLE
RER URRESHAQRIXGREESR
BEER BRI TERBMARLERE
EARAEREREMEEREARAKRRT
ZEBRERBRTITBHZBE

EFERRANNEFHIZEZE B8
ENASERKBEEER UBREREHMK
EMHMBERE-BE_T-RF+_-A
=t HLEFE FEESEHREB2NK
SRBEEAMAREAREE 2 EHIIRE
R/ 2R EE T

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences
relevant to the

Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEEHEERES
MEEEAE BENERHRE
ZEHER Wie &F
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) ERREE (FE) v v
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) =GEE (FIFE) v v
Mr. Wang Jian (Resigned on 24 January 2017) FR%E4E (R -F—+4# v v
— A=+ AEE)
Mr. Liu Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016) BT E (R=FE—ANF v/ v
ZAZHEZT)
Mr. Chen Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016) FRIEFRE (R -F—NF 4 4

—H=REZF)
BB (R-FE—+F
— A=+ HEZT)

Mr. Fan lie (Appointed on 24 January 2017)

Not Applicable
TER

Not Applicable
TE A
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences
relevant to the

Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEETHERRES
MEEERATE BENERERE/
ZERHER mHe g8
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Ru Xiangan HEREE (RZF—NF 4 v
(Appointed on 11 October 2016) +A+—HEZ(E)
Mr. Liu Haiping (Appointed on 29 April 2016)  2I/8R & (RZF—x 4 v
FUAZTNHEZF)
Mr. Liu Tonghui (Appointed on 29 April 2016) B R E (R -F—NF v v
HAZ=+NHEZE)
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRARlEE (RZFE—AF 4 v
(Resigned on 11 October 2016) +A+—HEIT)
Mr. Chen Zhenguo BRIRE L& (RZF—NF 4 v
(Resigned on 29 April 2016) [A =+ HEHE)
TERE(RZF—NF 4 v

Mr. Li Yu (Resigned on 29 April 2016)
A= 1A EHE)

MEETINGS
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, regular Board meetings were held for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Most important resolutions agreed in Board meetings were made by
all directors including both executive and independent non-executive
directors.

As matters relating to identifying and managing business risks faced by
the Group’s business operation had been discussed and dealt with in
regular Board meetings as well as in meetings of the Audit Committee,
no Risk Management Committee meeting was held for the year ended
31 December 2016. As further explained below, the Risk Management
Committee was abolished with effect from 29 April 2016.

-
ERE A HEELFLH

FR-EZREETOTER AR R
EARRB 2B REERE - WE B R E
RRARZEERBLEBR - EZREHLH
EXHREBRFHEHAEBES (BREWT
MBI IERITES)EH -

HRA BRI R E AR E XL EE
MZEBERIFHCNRENEZTREZ
MBEFZEGEHR WA RE HEARE
BZEgRBE_T—R"F+_A=1+—
AILFEWEBITEHE - M T OE— 7
B RREEZECRKIVE B -F—R
FOA-TARBE-

25

-



26

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Corporate Governance Report

R R

The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration |
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee
(for corporate governance functions) during the year are set out below:

BEERREAE EER BTZ
FHEZEe REZBEERWITERER
RBEMR) FERZEAL

FR-
BEg-

g(HEEE
JEROE 0T

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHE/AERLEZER
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive
Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Ezpg RR Esh  HifZE® FMZEE B4ZE8  HNZEE
(Note)
GEY
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman) BARELE(ZE) ViE] 9/9  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 111
TER TER TR
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) ZHEE(HLE) 23 9/9  Not Applicable 5/5 44 111
Tam
Mr. Liu Wei (4ppointed on ARrk 12 7/7 Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 17
3 February 2016) (R=F—FE TR Sk Sk
ZH=REZF)
Mr. Chen Wei (4ppointed on RELE 12 7/7 Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 17
3 February 2016) (RZF-NF TER TR TER
ZHZREZT)
Mr. Wang lian (Resigned on ﬂiiﬁ% 33 9/9  Not Applicable  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable 10
24 January 2017) (R=F—t# TER TR TEA
— A= 1A
Mr. Fan Jie (Appointed on BREE Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable
24 January 2017) (R=F—t# TEH TER TER TER TEH TEA

~A-1HAEER)
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
BiHE/RERLEZEE
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Executive
Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
EEiE BE EER BHZEE HMZEE REZEE  YHZEE
(Note)
(FaE)
Independent Non-Executive BUHTES
Directors
Mr. Ru Xiangan (4opointed on MEEZLE (R=F—/7F Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
11 October 2016) THT—AEER) TER TER TER ek TR TER
Mr. Liu Haiping (4ppointed on UGREE (R=F—E 01 01 01 0/1 0/1 Not Applicable
29 April 2016) BA=FHAHEZR) TEA
Mr. Liu Tonghui (4ppointed on VB RE (R-E—%F 0 22 11 0 171 Not Applicable
29 April 2016) BA=FHHEZHE) TEA
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Frandis (Resigned BT Bl 5 (K= F— A% 23 8/9 m 4/5 3/4 Not Applicable
on 11 October 2016) TAT—AEF) TER
Mr. Chen Zhenguo (Resigned on 29~ RIRE L4 (K =F—7F 01 517 71 3/4 213 Not Applicable
April 2016) HA=1hBFE) TEH
Mr. Li Yu (Resigned on FERE(RZF—EH 01 6/7 7 3/4 213 Not Applicable
29 April 2016) A= TAAEF) TER
Note: Among meetings of the Executive Committee, one meeting was held for the  Kist: RHTZEG s &#F B RkEHRETD
purpose of performing the corporate governance duties and the attendances of XERBEMBIT ROTZEGKELHFELRE
the members of the Executive Committee at this meeting is disclosed under the FZERERBEXEATRIRE -
CG Code.
Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non- RIEM®E ST A Z ST AKX EA6.71E BT
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend JEHITEEREMIFRTEEREHERE
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views AERUBREMNEREERALENTH -ARZ
of shareholders. Due to various work commitments, three independent T {EF&IE  NA G = Z B IFRITESE
non-executive directors of the Company were unable to attend the JAHRER-_ZT—X"F—A+N\BET2ZK
special general meeting held on 18 January 2016; four executive HRFFIAE  ARRINBRITEERWETE
directors and two independent non-executive directors of the Company M IFHITEESEELHER T —RF_ A
were unable to attend the special general meeting held on 17 February +tHZETZREEFF RS RARAMWE
2016; and two independent non-executive directors of the Company BV IEMITEEELIEFR T — R FH
were unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 24 May A - +MHHBRTZRERBAFAS -
2016.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any transaction which involves
a material conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting and independent non-executive directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest in the transaction are present at
that board meeting.

The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The role of the chairman was performed by Mr. Tan Xiangdong, who
provided leadership for the Board and was responsible for chairing
meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that
all major and appropriate issues were discussed by the Board in a
timely and constructive manner. He is also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.

The Company currently has no chief executive officer as the Board
has not identified a suitable candidate to fill this causal vacancy.
However, the Board believed that the existing structure together with
the extensive experience of the Board was conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Risk Management Committee of the Company was abolished with
effect from 29 April 2016 as the Audit Committee of the Company
has been acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
risk management of the Company, and matters relating to identifying
and managing business risks faced by the Group’s business operation
has been discussed and dealt with in regular Board meetings as well
as in meetings of the Audit Committee. At the same time, the Board
established the Executive Committee of the Company to regulate the
daily operations of the Group, improve the Company’s decision making
efficiency and strengthen the execution of the Board's decisions.

Currently, the Company has four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the
Executive Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (http:/
www.cbgroup.com.hk) respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

BT E

YA
)ﬂ]]u

The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non- BitZE@HATNBYIFRTESHEHK -
executive directors.
From From From
From 1 January 2016 29 April 2016 11 October
1 January 2016 to to 2016 to
to 11 October date of this date of this
29 April 2016 2016 report report
M-B—AF  HSF-XF
—HB—HBZ —B—B=Z% H-ZE-—RF H=ZF—XRF
—E-RF —ZE-X¥ @OmAZ=+NA +A+—8H
mMA=+hA +TA+—H EXREAH EZEABREEH
Mr. Ru Xiangan (Chairman) #hfE % %4
(/) v
Mr. Liu Haiping 28 REE 4
Mr. Liu Tonghui B & v
Mr. Chan Fong Kong BeR 73 il 5 A
Francis v/
Mr. Chen Zhenguo BoR i B 5 A v
Mr. Li Yu FEEE v

Among the committee members,

one of them possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is

a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function,

any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

e  to review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms
of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; and

e to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system,

internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

internal auditor (if
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to review the
half-yearly and annual financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment of
the external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the
section “Meetings” in this report.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises the following directors.

From From

1 January 1 January
2016 to 2016 to
29 April 11 October
2016 2016

HoB-AF M-B-AF
-A-BE -A-AE
ZE-AF  CB-AF

BRI

FR-BAREEHBITMREER  UEHM
FEREFMBERERRS R MBRER
REafiEr BRARRZ AT RER
BERN REEZREARBREINEZE
B o

B REECHELSERAREZ [ )
—EIA

BN REECEHARABE-_T—R#F
ToA=+T—"BUEFEZEFRE-

REZEE
REZEEE T EEMEAN -

From From From

1 January 29 April 11 October
2016 to 2016 to 2016 to
date of this date of this  date of this
report report report

HIZ-—X"F HIZE-X"F HIE-XF
—HB—H WAZ+hH +B+—H

mAZt+hBE +A+—-R EFXRERH ZABESAH EXREAH

Executive Director HITES
Mr. Li Yang (Chairman) A (FE)

Independent Non- BUkBITES
Executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan MEREE

Mr. Liu Haiping 2EREE

Mr. Liu Tonghui 2 r S A&

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BR 75 il 4& 4

Mr. Chen Zhenguo R 4R B9 o A v
Mr. Li Yu TEhE v
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

o to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

o to develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

o to identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

o to make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of and succession planning for directors and senior
management; and

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships and senior management
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the year to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and made recommendations to the Board in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee considers that board appointments are based on merit and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due regard
to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMWESES
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following directors. FHMEZEGR TIESMAMN-
From From From From
From 1 January 1 January 29 April 11 October
1 January 2016 to 2016 to 2016 to 2016 to
2016 to 11 October date of this date of this date of this
29 April 2016 2016 report report report
M-Z-RF HIB-RE
—-R—HZE —A—HE HZE-RF HIZT-RF HIT-RF
—E-XxE —E-xE —A—B MWmA=t+hA +A+-H
mA=t+AA +A+t-8B ZA#EAH ZAHEEAH EAREAH
Independent Non-Executive ~ BIYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Ru Xiangan (Chairman) WRRRE () v/
Mr. Liu Haiping ABREE v/
Mr. Liu Tonghui ApmrsE v
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRIl % A&
Mr. Chen Zhenguo FRIRE ot A 4
Mr. Li Yu FERE v/
Executive Director YTES
Mr. Li Yang FHEE /
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include FHMMEES I EREREANTESR
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy EAREIRE 2 MR R 2R A R EFHEF
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors BIEHEZEEIREME - FHEZESNEE
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also RV BHAERZEF  UHIEZH MK R
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing 288 it MERESZ K ETMHEA THE
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or 2 EET EAREFH I 2 AKIBIR - HFH B
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, Z2ZEARBENARGKLEESE  ULTR
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual R I51&FIEE °
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.
The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the FHMMEEE—ReN AT EZE A% .‘
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making HEEXRBLETHARATEELSAE b»
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive BB 2 FEH T BRI EBEZRUALE st
directors and the senior management and other related matters fiHBAEERTEZ - ANBERIFEETNRE - y
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for REIEANERER Wik EHEREEEHHT <y
collection and administration of the human resources data and making FHEEEZE -HMEE S AN BBHFIK
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. SREIZEERFMETBZHEREZ EHEE &
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the K/ SZBEHZER - =
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and bl :.:_
structure and remuneration packages. Rl gl ~E
o "__,/'—--, ::' =l
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The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the year to
review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established on 29 April 2016 with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. It comprises all executive directors of the Company and was
being chaired by Mr. Tan Xiangdong during the reporting period.

The Executive Committee has been conferred upon with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group and
has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the corporate
governance duties including but not limited to:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

* to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management of the
Company;

e to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the directors and
employees;

e to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

e to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

During the year, the policies of the corporate governance of the
Company were reviewed by the Executive Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 are set out in note 13(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 68.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out as
follows:

ShEE A% B A

BREARRBINEZ AN R E AR S B
BRZABFBEMFHNBAFNESE
Z BB HmE] -

BE-E—ASE+-A=+—ALEE &
DFRBED A (B ) @ 2D BT
BRAFAMEMSH SR MT -

Fee paid/
payable

for services
rendered
iRt
BRRKEN
ERAHNEAR
HK$'000

FHET

ZBURTS
T HIER B AR %
H MR IR T

Audit services
Interim review services
Other ad-hoc assignments

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems. The systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will
be reported to management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, management prepares the risk assessment report listing the risks
identified and management’s assessment on the impact to the Group.
The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and evaluates
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in
Board meetings. The Board also reviews and monitors the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems on a regular basis
to ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The key elements of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

e  the organizational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

o a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

e  the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorized expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

o specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

o the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due care.
Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms inside the
staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can get reach of price
sensitive and inside information. The Company regularly reminds the
directors and employees about compliance with all policies adopted by
the Company regarding inside information including the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to dealings in
securities of the Company.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established
to ensure that assets are safeqguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

Under the Code Provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should
have an internal audit function. However, due to the size of the Group
and for cost effectiveness consideration, the Group currently does not
have an internal audit function. Instead, the Audit Committee has
a review on the internal control system annually. The review covers
major financial, operational controls in rotation basis and also the risk
management functions. No significant deficiency was identified under
current year’s review and the systems were operating effectively and
adequately. The Group continues to review the need for an internal
audit function annually.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
of the Board from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During the
year, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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The Group is pleased to present its Environment, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
demonstrate its commitment to sustainable development in aspects of
environment, social and governance (the “ESG"). This ESG report is
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, which covers two subject areas, Environmental and
Social. Please also refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this
Annual Report for details of corporate governance of the Group.

The Group has complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group is engaged in (i) trading of fuel oil, electronic devices and
other commodities, (i) the finance leasing business, (iii) the money
lending business, (iv) international air and sea freight forwarding and
the provision of logistics services, and (v) trading of securities. As set out
in this Annual Report, the Group has transformed its principal activities
into the financial service sector. This ESG report covers the Company
and its major subsidiaries engaging in principal business activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Use of Resources

Although the Group’s principal businesses have no significant impact
on the environment, the Group recognizes importance of environmental
sustainability and endeavours to minimize the impact of business
on environment through adopting numerous energy-saving and
conservation initiatives. The Group’s policy is to ensure compliance
with applicable environmental laws and regulations and minimize its
environmental footprint through efficient use of resources and adoption
of pro-environmental management. The Group’s operation is mainly
office-based and its eco-friendly measures at the office are as follows:

e  staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the
meeting rooms and computers at workstations when not in use;

e whenever possible, documents are handled electronically other
than physical papers;

° staff is reminded to save water;
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o staff is encouraged to reuse paper printed on one side and duplex
printing and copying. Data on printing and copying is regularly
reviewed to assess efficiency of paper usage;

o office supplies are recycled whenever possible; and

e conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are arranged
where possible.

Emissions, Environmental and Natural Resources

As the Group’s principal businesses do not involve any direct production
procedure, there is no direct emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas, discharge of wastewater and discharges into land, production of
hazardous and non hazardous waste, etc.. The main contributor to the
Group's carbon footprint is the indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
from electricity consumption, which is mainly attributed to the use of
lighting system, air-conditioning and office equipment.

Taking into account the nature of the Group's businesses, the Board
believes that its business operations have minimal direct impact on
the environment and natural resources. The Group is not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the reporting period.

The Group will continue to put more effort on resources saving and
strive for better protection of our environment.

SOCIAL
Employment

The Group believes that employees are its greatest asset which is crucial
to its continuous development. The Group establishes and operates
prudent human resources policies and practices strictly in compliance
with law and regulations in respective jurisdictions where the group
entities are carrying on business. The Group updates and improves these
policies and practices regularly by taking into consideration the health
and well-being of its employees. All employees are kept abreast of any
updated policies and practices through internal memoranda.
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The Group offers competitive pay and employee benefits to attract
talented staff and use a performance-based remuneration system to
motivate and reward them in line with their contributions to growing its
business. An employee’s remuneration is determined with reference to
performance and market benchmarks. Salary levels are not differentiated
by gender. Salaries and benefits are in accordance with local minimum
wages or above. All employees are treated fairly and equally, and their
rights and interests are protected.

The Group provides and maintains various statutory benefits for its staff,
such as mandatory provident fund, medical and work injury insurance,
sick leave, funeral leave and maternity leave, etc. It regularly reviews
packages and career advancement opportunities, particularly for key
positions, to ensure continuing market competitiveness.

The Group establishes objective basis of key qualities and requirements
for candidates in its hiring processing and assess the suitability of the
candidate to avoid risks of discrimination or bias. Job openings are
also offered to all qualified employees with good work records, so as
to promote career advancement among employees as well. Consistent
criteria are applied to assess both internal and external candidates
regardless of age, sex, race, national origin or physical disabilities to
ensure fair judgment and avoid any risk of favoritism or discrimination.

All work are reasonably assigned and should be performed voluntarily
by employees, and fair and reasonable working hours are arranged to
respective staff in accordance with various job needs. All employees
may resign upon reasonable notice and should not be dismissed for
unreasonable grounds.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the reporting
period.
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Health and Safety

Promoting the concept of a good work-life balance is essential to the
Group's philosophy for improved employee well-being. The Group
encourages its employees to advise the Group of any health and safety
issues in their workplace so that the Group can look at eliminating or
reducing the risk and finally the Group and the employees will all work
together to reduce health and safety risks to a minimum.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to the provision of a safe working environment and the
protection of employees from occupational hazards during the reporting
period.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to attend appropriate courses to
enhance their competence for performance improvement and career
development. They are encouraged to attend appropriate external
job-related courses or to acquire higher professional qualification to
enhance their competence and performance. All new employees are
briefed by the department heads to ensure the employees are aware and
familiarize themselves with the Group’s values and goals and to ensure
the employees understand their role in the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group from time to time reviews its employment practice and
the Group’s guidelines on staff recruitment to ensure that it is in full
compliance with the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour
Law in the PRC and other relevant labour laws and regulations in other
jurisdictions relating to, among other things, prevention of child labour
and forced labour.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour during the
reporting period.
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Supply Chain Management

While the Group has established good relationships with its suppliers,
the Group also offers equal opportunity to all potential business
partners. Selection criteria such as, quality and price of products,
supplier’s reputation, background and experience are key factors to
the Group’s procurement decisions. Furthermore, the Group expects its
suppliers to strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is responsible for its products and services and does not
engage in unfair business activities of any kind. Fraud, misleading
information, or any acts that destroy customer confidence or infringe
customer rights are strictly prohibited. The Group has also strictly
complied with relevant products and services related regulations.

In particular, while collecting, processing and using personal data
of the Group’s customers in its financial service sector, appropriate
measures are taken to protect such data from unauthorised access and
abuse. Personal data is collected only for lawful and relevant purposes.
Employment contracts stipulate employees’ duty in safeguarding
confidential or sensitive information that they have had access to during
their employment.

All customers’ complaints will be considered, with corresponding follow-
up procedures being conducted in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines. Relevant investigation will be taken and settlement
may be made if appropriate, and improvement will be made whenever
necessary. The Group believes that complaints are a valuable opportunity
for it to obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvement.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress during the reporting period.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to uphold high standards on anti-corruption.
Adequate guidelines are implemented to ensure that all employees
(including directors) adhere to high standards of business and
professional and ethical conduct. All employees are encouraged to raise
any related concerns to the senior management in a strictly confidential
manner. Any matters of genuine concern are to be thoroughly
investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.
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The Group is fully compliant with all relevant anti-money laundering
laws. The risk of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations engaged in money laundering or terrorism activities are
minimized by its 'know your customer’ and assessment processes.
The Group has robust internal control procedures in place to provide
reasonable assurance against fraud.

The Group holds licences or approval required for the provision of
money lending services and finance leasing services. The management
supports a culture of integrity, zero tolerance of bribery and ensures
that business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during
the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group is fully aware of the importance of interacting with the wider
community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.

The Group has been eager to take initiatives in making cash donations
to charitable organizations and supporting the local communities and
neighbors.

The Group would explore the possibility of finding suitable partners and
contributing to community and environmental protection programmes
which facilitate positive changes. The Group would also from time to
time encourage its staff to support community service activities.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman), aged 62, has been appointed
as executive director of the Company since May 2015. He received
a doctorate degree in economics in Xiamen University in 1998, a
master’s degree in economics of Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FARBFAE A2 ) in 1996 and a bachelor's degree in
economics in Hunan University of Finance and Economics (#8148
EBT) in 1982. He is the Senior Economist in the PRC. He served at
various positions in Industry and Commercial Bank of China (FR & T
FER1T) during 1985 to 1995 and was the deputy general manager
of Trust Investment Company of the Head Office of ICBC ( F B T iR
TTHITIE7ELIRE 1 7)) before he left. Afterwards, he was the general
manager of Beijing Securities Co., Ltd. (It REHFBREE A7) until
1997. From 1992 to 1996, he was the executive council member of
Securities Association of China (FREIFE 521 €). He was appointed
as the director of Shenzhen Stock Exchange CFIIEZHZ S FT) from
1995 to 2005, the deputy general manager in United Securities Co.,
Ltd. (Bt & B A5 ABREME A A]) from 1997 to 2001, the chairman of
Baoying Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BEAESEEFR A F) from
2001 to 2004, the chairman of City International Trust and Investment
Company (M BB {Z5L% &2 7)) from 2004 to 2008, and the
chairman and chief executive officer in National West Development
Industries Fund Management Co., Ltd. (AR ALEEEEZE S TR
BPRAR]) from 2008 to 2014. From 2008 to 2012, he was also the
chairman of Welichen Biotech Inc. of which shares are listed on TSX
Venture Exchange in Canada. Mr. Tan was the independent director of
Mirae Asset Management Co., Ltd. (R KRRE S E IR AA]) from July
2012 to May 2015. He was also appointed as an executive director,
a vice chairman and the chief executive officer of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited from 1 June 2016 to 23 June 2016, which is listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8046).
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Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman), aged 45, has been appointed as
executive director of the Company since September 2014. He obtained
a junior college degree of Electronic Engineering from Shenzhen
University. He completed an EMBA programme and obtained his EMBA
from Shenzhen College of Economics and Management (7 JI| &€ 7 &
HEERT) . Mr. Li also completed a master degree programme of the
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences ( Ff B4t & &2
BT 75 A BZ ) , majoring in World Economics. Mr. Li has approximately 20
years of experience in investment activities and business management.
Mr. Li was a director of Brand Marvel Worldwide Consumer Products
Corporation (TSXV symbol: BMW), a Canadian publicly traded company
on the TSX Venture Exchange, from December 2010 to January 2016.
He is currently also assuming senior executive positions in several capital
investment or management companies. Mr. Li was appointed as the
Chairman and director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication
Co., Ltd., Shanxi* (LL78ER LK X/ EHE M5 B R Q7)) shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600234)
from July 2015 to September 2016. He has also been an independent
non-executive director of Sino Haijing Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1106)
since February 2017. Mr. Li is also the director of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 44, has been appointed as executive director of the
Company since February 2016. He graduated from Renmin University of
China (FFEI AR KE) in 1996 with a degree in economics and further
completed postgraduate course in international economics from Renmin
University of China (FREI AR KXE) in 2000. From 1996 to 2014, Mr.
Liu worked in various roles at Bank of Communications, Beijing Branch
(2B RMH47) including as a manager at the international trade
department and the credit department, the head of the investment
banking division of Beijing Branch, and the manager of a sub-branch.
During Mr. Liu’s tenure at Bank of Communications, Mr. Liu was mainly
involved in international trade settlement, local and foreign currencies
loans, personal, corporate and inter-bank financing and investment
banking businesses, and was a committee member of Beijing branch’s
credit committee and innovation business committee. Since June 2014,
Mr. Liu has been with Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd* (/R
BE R EFE AR AR]) ("Zhongrong Trust”) as executive president in
charge of its trust investment department, with responsibilities involving
alternative asset management, merger and restructuring in capital
markets, sector-specific funds, asset securitizations, structuring financing
and other businesses. Mr. Liu is also the director of a subsidiary of the
Company.

o B A

TR EE (FEE) 455 BT —WF
NAREZEARRRNITES - FIIER
JIRBEFTREERSUR B ERORIIEE
ERERaNERAEIRERELRE
THESEREBEAETITHEEREXEE -
SAETNTR PR ER R ERE T
BRI Bt REH  FREERNKEE
BREREETEEBA0FEELH -
- TF+_A2-_FT—X "F—A F
54 ABrand Marvel Worldwide Consumer
Products Corporation (TSXV{X5E : BMW: —
FRTSXBIER G EMZ2MERAR) 2
EF-FEANTRERERNRENERE A A
IR RITBBL B —RAFEAEC
E-RFNA TREBRZAEEROR L
HREFZ ST W2 LA EM LK E
B AR LA (D REE:600234) 2 F
FHREE -FA_ZT—+tF - ARTATE
BEERERAR (—ERBRAERLET
Zra (BmRsE:1106) ) 2B IFEHTT
EFZ-FRANAEARBHBENBARICE
=o

IIE

BIBEE M BT RF_AREZ
ERARRBHITEST BN —NANANFEE
RABARAR BERLESES2LBUIR
—EETFE I TRTBEARKERR
ERE EBEAKEEX -8B NLNAAEF
E-TF BRARERBRITIERT
DITERZERY  BREEETEEEHE R
EERZEE AR HTZRERITHRLZ
B RXTIR -REAKLETBBRT
Hif SEAET220AKRESEE it
ERINEEESR BA CERRITHESR
EBRRERTES RIERDTEESFLR
ZEeNAIMEBLZBEECZEEKE A
T -FERNAR BIEEREETRBERE
FEAERQA([HREFR)ZHTRE &
BEEAREN BRESRZBEEERE.
EXmGzHBEREH EXES BER
i BEREREMER - BTET/AR
RE—EMBARZES-

47



48

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chen Wei, aged 36, has been appointed as executive director
of the Company since February 2016. He graduated from Yunnan
University (ZFI K2 ) with a degree in law in 2002 and further
obtained a master degree in law from Peking University (1t R K£)
in 2012. Mr. Chen obtained his PRC law qualification in 2001 and
further obtained his PRC Certified Public Accountants qualification
in 2012. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Chen worked as a legal counsel at
a state-owned enterprise located in Hangzhou. From 2004 to 2012,
Mr. Chen worked as a lawyer at a law firm located in Beijing and was
mainly involved in corporate legal affairs and litigation matters. Since
2012, Mr. Chen has been with Zhongrong Trust as the vice general
manager of the trust investment department and is mainly responsible
for project investment and management. Mr. Chen is the sole director
of Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, which holds 200,000,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 2.75% of the total
issued share capital of the Company. Mr. Chen is also the director of
several subsidiaries of the Company and is designated to oversee the
Company’s risk control and compliance matters.

Mr. Fan lJie, aged 42, has been appointed as executive director of
the Company since January 2017. He holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration in Tsinghua University School of Economics
and Management and a Bachelor’s Degree in International Economic
in Renmin University of China. Mr. Fan has over 20 years of experience
in strategic marketing and project management. He has been with
Zhongrong Trust as the Managing Director of the Trust and Investment
Department since 2014. Mr. Fan was a corporate partner and the vice
president of the Strategic Marketing Division of Adfaith Management
Consulting Inc* (L RIEMBF L EERZAMEMR 2 E) from 2009
to 2014 and an assistant to the general manager for medical business
in an enterprise located in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, from 2003 to
2005. In 2000 to 2002, he was appointed as the sales and distribution
officer of the Department of Medical System of an international
conglomerate. Prior to 2000, he worked as a marketing leader in the
Nanchang Office of a renowned food and beverage company for about
three years. Currently, Mr. Fan is the Managing Director of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan, aged 47, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2016. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting in North China University of
Technology. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC and has
approximately 22 years of experience in accounting and finance and
approximately 9 years of experience in insurance. He has been serving
as the head of the audit department in Chang An Property and Liability
Insurance Limited* (REZ B ERBBR A F) (“Chang An”) since
2014, prior to which he was appointed as the general manager of the
Zhejiang branch from 2013 to 2014 and the general manager of the
accounting department and the financial chief from 2007 to 2013.
Before joining Chang An, he served as the general manager assistant
in Beijing Zhongjing Surety Company* (1t A FTREFER A F]) , the
chief financial officer in Heng Tong Group* (1E@% &), the deputy
chief financial officer in Beijing Beichen Innovation and Technology City
Limited* (dt RibRABIFT & EHRIK A F)) , the financial manager in San
Jiu Auto Group* (ZNABEEABR AR, and the deputy financial
chief in Beijing Building Materials Factory* (3t R W &4 &L T 48R ) .

Mr. Liu Haiping, aged 42, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He graduated from
Fudan University with a bachelor’s degree in international economics
law in 1997 and obtained a master degree in international trade law
from Bond University, Australia in 2005. He has approximately 19 years
of experience in the legal sector. During the period from July 1997 to
March 2009, he had served as an associate and later a partner in Beijing
Jiancheng Law Firm (1t T2 EEM =5 F7). He joined Beijing Dacheng
Law Offices (b R AR ZEME AT in April 2009 and is currently
a senior partner of the firm. He is also the deputy executive of the
Banking Law Professional Committee ($R{T/AEHEZE 8 ) under the
Beijing Lawyers Association (1t RIS ) .
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Mr. Liu Tonghui, aged 54, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He obtained a

bachelor’s degree in international politics and a master degree in
international relations from Tokyo International University in 1995
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and 1997 respectively. He has approximately 19 years of extensive

experience in investment activities and business management. During
the period between 1997 to 1998, he served as the representative of

Nippon Howaito Cooperation* (A &8 H A& # X €4) in China.
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Shouchuang Longji Company Limited* ( & A5 E R HDBR A A) from
1998 to 2004 and Huajian Dongfang Software Company Limited* (£ HEARE A28

R HEARE T AR ) from 2005 to 2008, respectively. He has been
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the general manager of Tangshan Haigang Xingerui Company Limited*
(BILEBHIEHmEMREL AR since 2009 and the assistant president
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which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000938).
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 74 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion on
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year and future development in the Company's
business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
The above sections form an integral part of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to its sustainable growth and development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its
suppliers.

Employees

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. The Group strives to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and loyalty to the Group. The
Group provides a fair, healthy and safe workplace, promotes diversity,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also aims to commit resources to providing employment training and
development opportunities so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their skills and performance in their respective positions and
build up confidence and self-esteem. The Group also values and is open
to receiving feedback from employees with an aim to foster a good and
long-lasting relationship.

Customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services in a
way that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
strives to enhance the relationship with customers by continuous
interaction and communication with customers so that the Group can
respond proactively to cater for customers’ needs. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to
ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. During the year under review, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its customers.

Suppliers

The Group is also dedicated to developing a good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. The Group reinforces business
partnerships with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery. During the year under review, the Group has worked closely
with its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In addition, the
Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong Company under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and
therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including the
disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions therein.

Under the SFO, the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to disclose
price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) trading of fuel oil, electronic
devices and other commodities, (ii) the finance leasing business, (iii) the
money lending business, (iv) international air and sea freight forwarding
and the provision of logistics services, and (v) trading of securities, in
Hong Kong and the PRC, and therefore is subject to the relevant laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and other jurisdictions where
the Group entities are carrying on businesses.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year, there was no material breach of or noncompliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares (the “Shares”) during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2015: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Chairman)

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Liu Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016)
Mr. Chen Wei (Appointed on 3 February 2016)
Mr. Fan lJie (Appointed on 24 January 2017)

Mr. Wang Jian (Resigned on 24 January 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan (Appointed on 11 October 2016)

Mr. Liu Haiping (Appointed on 29 April 2016)

Mr. Liu Tonghui (Appointed on 29 April 2016)

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis (Resigned on 11 October 2016)
Mr. Chen Zhenguo (Resigned on 29 April 2016)

Mr. Li Yu (Resigned on 29 April 2016)
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In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Ru Xiangan and Mr. Fan lJie will be subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Li
Yang and Mr. Chen Wei shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is
the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company'’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are still independent.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Long position in share options of the Company

RADFRBEREZGR

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

Interest in underlying of the Company
Name of director Capacity shares (Note)
EARTE BT
BRAEMOBES L
EEgE &1 HER G R (MEE)
Mr. Tan Xiangdong Beneficial Owner 37,000,000 0.51%
EAREE EEEBA
Mr. Li Yang Beneficial Owner 10,034,030 0.14%
FEEE BEREAA
Mr. Wang Jian (Resigned on
24 January 2017) Beneficial Owner 8,034,030 0.11%
ks
(R=ZF—+4F
—AZFHAEE) EmEAA
Note: e -

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 7,264,566,267 shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme"”) was
adopted by the Company on 18 March 2002. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme expired on 17 March 2012. Upon the expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme but the options granted
prior to such expiry continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.
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(b)

The following table discloses movements of the share options
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TREBE_TT_FHEBEE B

under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year: RERZEE:
Forfeited/
Outstanding as at ~ Granted during  Exercised during Lapsed during  Outstanding as at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 1.1.2016 the year the year the year 31.12.2016
RoB-RF
RZB-AF +=A=t+-8
RiAM fyid TE -A-AEATE FRRH FRfE FRRE/ AN HATE
Other eligible persons 20.8.2007 20.8.2007 t0 20.8.2017 0.5768 29,585,058 - - - 29,585,058
EtAEBAL “EELENAZTH “ERLENRZTHE
—E-tFN\AZ1H
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6297 14,670,276 - - - 14,670,276
“EERHEARLR “ERLENARLRE
ZE-tENALH
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 t0 28.9.2017 0.6788 4,890,092 - - - 4,890,092
“ERLFARZTNR “EELFAAZTNRE
“E-tEAAZTIR
Total 49,145,426 - - - 49,145,426
@t

2012 Share Option Scheme

(b) —FE——-FEKRESS

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution on 22 May 2012 (the "Effective Date"”). The purposes of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to attract and retain the best
available personnel and to provide additional incentives or rewards

to employees, directors, consultants, business associates and
advisers of the Company for their contribution to the Company
and to promote its success. The 2012 Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

)

(9)

(h)

any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any directors, non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest;

any customer of the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to
time determined by the Board as having contributed or may
contribute to by way of joint venture, business alliances or
other business arrangements to the development and growth
of the Group; and

any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging
to any of the participants in paragraphs (a) to (g) above.
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The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Effective Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or the date of refreshing the Scheme
Mandate Limit approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. The maximum number of shares issuable upon
exercise of the options which may be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief executive
or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under
the Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
would result in the Company's shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person(s) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
(a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent of the Company's
shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in compliance with
the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by
a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period for the share options granted is determined by the Board,
which period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
offer.
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As at the date of this report, the Company had 365,242,090 share
options outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 5.03% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at such date. As at the date of this report, the
remaining life of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is approximately 5
years.

The amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under
an option in the event of the option being exercised shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and must be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant (which
must be a business day);

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The following table discloses movements of the share options
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year:

AR & HE - A2 | H365,242,090
DIRE T — —FEREF S M ARTT
FERE BEREARFRZAZE
BEITIL R 495.03% R ARE AL —
T - FERETSIZH T FHOAS
ﬁzo

METEEREMRBERERER TR
BroBRRHOZENSE ARESR
2ERBET BABLRAT=%H
ZEREE

iy BOHRBRERLDBEH (BELE
ER)RBRXAERRERMEZ
Wrmi(E

(iy BHREZERERLDBHITR
AEZBARBIMEAREREN
W2FHWHE: &

(i) MO zZHE-.

TEEB-T - FBAEH B TR
BABR 2 2

Outstanding Forfeited/ Outstanding

asat Granted Exercised Lapsed as at

Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 112016 during the year  during the year  during the year 31.12.2016

RZB-AF RZF-RE

-B-8 +ZBE=+-8

REAH fox:d | E HRATE FRRE ERTE ERRW/ AN oEX R

Directors 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 70,788,060 - - (10,480,000) 60,308,060
% ZEF-RFLATLA ZZ-RFLATERE
ZE-\ELATRE

Employees 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 190,834,030 - - (23,900,000) 166,934,030
[ 3] ZEF-RFLATLA ZE-RFLATERE
ZE-\ELATRE

Consultants 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 138,000,000 - - - 138,000,000
B ZEF-RFLATLA ZE-RFLATERE
ZE-\ELATRE

Total 399,622,090 - - (34,380,000) 365,242,090
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and “Share Options” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the directors of the
Company had any interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
following persons other than the directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the Company's shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Rz EmRRRAGF

RZFE—ARF+ZA=+—H EAQFR
RE AN EEDIE336IKBFE 2 &M
Freost UWT&BAL (LIFEEHARQ A
TBITHAB)RARRIKRG P HEERIEE
FREERDEXVEE2RE3D FAE MR A
UNGIE & 2058 -R UINE

Approximate
percentage of the
Company’s issued

Name Capacity Interest in shares  share capital (Note 4)
EERATESBITRE

= 2 B 19 7 2= BABE 2 (M)

Xie Zhikun (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%

fEE R (MI&E1) ZEH QA

Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%
Management Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) S NSIE -

FERE (ER)EXERBRAA
(BfFEET)

Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,800,000,000 24.78%
(Note 1) SAEHIA B RS

FRECEEEBRAT (M)

Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd* Interest in a controlled corporation 1,600,000,000 22.02%
(Note 1) SRS RIS

EEBEREBR AR (1)

Silver Venus Investments Ltd. Beneficial Owner 1,600,000,000 22.02%
(“Silver Venus”) (Note 1) BEm#EA A

Silver Venus Investments Ltd.
(Tsilver Venus | ) (Bf&E1)
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Approximate
percentage of the
Company's issued

share capital (Note 4)

Name Capacity Interest in shares
EEDATESBITRE
£ 2 % 17 7 &= BMAB A (KE4)
China Bosum Asset Management Limited ~ Beneficial Owner 500,000,000 6.88%
(“China Bosum") (Note 2) EnlEAE A
China Bosum Asset Management Limited
([China Bosum J ) (Fi43F2)
LAl Aizhong (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 500,000,000 6.88%
FEE R (MFE2) P A A
WEN Ting (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 500,000,000 6.88%
e (FfEE2) S A RS
Interest in a controlled corporation 400,000,000 551%

Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*
(Note 3)
REGEEmR N AR AA (MEE3)

£ 50 A
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1,600,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Silver Venus and
Aquila Global Investment Ltd (“Aquila Global”) respectively. Silver Venus is wholly
owned by /8B {51 & B R A F] (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), which
is in turn wholly owned by FE ¥ KB AR 2 (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd*). Aquila Global is wholly owned by £%& ( £/&)#&&F L (BREE)
(Yunji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership
registered under the laws of the PRC, of which it ZREHEEE AR A A
(Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and
has 99% of the voting power. It RRMEHREEILHR A A (Beijing Jingpeng

Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by #&E& A& IR
AR AT (Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*). FEEEAZTEAR QA

(Yanneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by FEM¥£EEA
[® 2 7] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*). FRIE ™ E @B R A 7] (Zhongzhi
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*) is owned as to 76% by F/8RL (It R)EAREERH
fR A &) (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), which is
in turn wholly owned by Mr. Xie Zhikun ( fi# & §& 5c 4 ). By virtue of the SFO, each
of LB & AR A A (Shanghai Chixin Investment Co., Ltd*), REMEEE
AR A ] (Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd*), F/ERL (L) EREE AR
‘A A] (Zhonghai Shengfeng (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie
Zhikun (R E$E5C4) is deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held
by Silver Venus, and, each of 2% ( £/8)#& &R L (BRE %) (Yunji (Shanghai)
Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), Jt R RH§E & E LB R 27 (Beijing
Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*), B¢ & AR ELHFR 2 A (Yanneng
Capital Management Co., Ltd.*), FEMEEBEAER QR (Zhongzhi Enterprise
Group Co., Ltd*), #/8RE (ItR)EXREELBFR A Al (Zhonghai Shengfeng
(Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd.*) and Mr. Xie Zhikun (FRE B 4E) is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global.

As LAl Aizhong and WEN Ting are the shareholders of 51% and 49% of the
issued share capital of China Bosum respectively, LAl Aizhong and WEN Ting are
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by China Bosum under the SFO.
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200,000,000 Shares and 200,000,000 Shares are held by Aquila Global and
Sungi Global Investment Co., Ltd, (“Sungi Global”) respectively. Aquila Global is
wholly owned by % ( /&) % &H L (BBRE#) (Yunji (Shanghai) Investment
Center (Limited Partnership)*), a limited partnership registered under the laws
of the PRC, of which dt R 5% &EEILH R A& (Beijing Jingpeng Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*) is the general partner and has 99% of the voting power.
It R R E B R BB AR (Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.*) is owned as to 40.50% by A4 &h A% D BBR AR (Jingwei Textile
Machinery Co., Ltd.*). Sungi Global is wholly owned by %& ( L/§)#&&H
D (BRAE) (Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*),
a limited partnership registered under the laws of PRC, of which 38 & ¥
&R EAFR AT (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
the general partner and Jt RIS HTIREEEABR AR (Beijing Zhongrong
Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is its limited partner. i U85 3
&R EAFRAF (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*) is
wholly owned by JERFELGF¥TZ E B IR AF R AR (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin
Investment Management Co., Ltd.*). dt R RIEHIKEEEHFRAF (Beijing
Zhongrong Dingxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) is wholly owned by 7 &
BB {7t B R A& (Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd*) which is owned as to
approximately 37.47% by 45 & %7 & % 17 B IR 2 & (Jingwei Textile Machinery
Co., Ltd.*). By virtue of the SFO, each of & ( /&) &R L(BRA E)(Yunji
(Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), It R RIS E EIR AR A7)
(Beijing Jingpeng Investment Management Co., Ltd.*) and 4F 4 45 &A% (H &
BRAE] (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*) is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares beneficially held by Aquila Global, and, each of & ( /&) & EFHIN(H
[® 4 #)(Shangji (Shanghai) Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*), % & #
& A& AR A F (Dazi County Dingcheng Capital Investment Co., Ltd.*), it =
RS TR & B2 AR A F (Beijing Zhongrong Dingxin Investment Management
Co., Ltd.*), FEBEE{Z5L AR 28 (Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd*) and
(A2 S I A% 1D BB PR 2 F) (Jingwei Textile Machinery Co., Ltd.*) is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares beneficially held by Sungi Global.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 7,264,566,267 shares of the

Company in issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2016.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
year is as follows:

TEEFRHER

FR - EREEFFPRMHERGAKEHE
BMERRBEIEMFIDT

Percentage of the Group’s total

EEEEBAENES L
Purchases Sales
KB SHERE
The largest customer S YN - 37%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 10% 93%
The largest supplier BAHIER 47% -
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAEERAEET 99% -

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622,
Laws of Hong Kong) when the report of the directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong).

RERNEAKE RARESF HBEAL
HAEMBR (RESHAEE AR RRAEE
BS%E)MEFANLETERP RHER
Z AL RS
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ARAR 2R AR A FREA DI AR
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period of the Group are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditors
of the Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Li Yang

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

faikpia

Shzne‘ZOzng

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
BEEEEZERERAT

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Best
Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 74 to 207, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of finance lease receivables and

loans and interest receivables

Refer to note 24 and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on pages 111 to 115.

The key audit matter
BEREXBIR
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HREZER

REBHFNEXHE  BREZFHESL
BERRAPENG AV BRETREEN
FH-BPEERSEEVBHRERMIILER
EABGFARENESH NTERLEFS
HEBERER-

FUREHAEREARERERRK
Bzl E 4%

BLAMRAT B RRM 24 M 29K 5
TMENSE ZE5TBUR »

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEBRTEERBRERSENS A

The Group had finance lease receivables, and loans and
interest receivables of approximately HK$233,850,000
and HK$279,647,000 respectively as at 31 December
2016. We consider the recoverability of finance lease
receivables and loans and interest receivables as a
key audit matter because the recoverabilities of these
receivables are reviewed by the management using
a significant degree of management estimation or
judgement.

FEEER - ZT-—RF+_A=+t—HZELKREHEE
RIB A N M E R K A B 2 Bl 4 #9233,850,00058 7T K
279,647,000/ 7T © 11 FE I e & 7H & IR LA R B E
REMBZ I B MR REREZEE  RERSZFEK
FRIE 2 AT B TS BB IR B R K 2 fl et sk A BT E TR
&t e

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
application of the Group's impairment policies on finance
lease receivables, loans and interest receivables and the
management estimations or judgements on the recoverability
of the outstanding balances.

B EZEF TR EREREKEEEERENAR
JE U E R S A B HE PR B R E R A I B B ) e R (B R A A
Z BT [B] 1 B i 5 Bk 1 T T 2R &t e

We obtained and checked the ageing analysis of the finance
lease receivables, loans and interest receivables as at 31
December 2016;

BMEEBRERER - R"ET_A=T—HNEKHE
HERB AR BRERRFE ZRERDHT:

We obtained and reviewed the settlements of receivables
during and after the end of the reporting period;

P9 B B AR R i 5 R 3R B ) I R 2 B R 14 9 FE U SR IE B9 45
HHER

We reviewed the impairment assessment conducted by the
management including instance of default and indicators
of possible impairment and reassessed the assumptions
and critical judgements used by the management in the
impairment assessment with reference to the reliability of the
management’s past estimates, the creditworthiness/financial
abilities of the borrowers and/or guarantors and the value of
collateral pledged.

AR B R TRV E RS BRI E G R AT AR E
MR k2 EEEEBEMGEANAENE ERARSHER
ABEEBI5 88 0 DA & P #4530 1) (B (B ST Tk B 18

BRAGEFERAMARI I BREAE - — .

VLU

3

%
'

7
!
! }
!
'I||

69

[

A



70

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Independent Auditor’s Report
383 3 % B i e o

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the
the other information. The other information comprises all of the

“Directors”) are responsible for

information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

our responsibility is to read the other information and,

the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Wong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kai Wong

Practising Certificate Number: P06623

Hong Kong
30 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o 7 4E i B R th 2 W 6 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —E-0F
k=2 FTHExT T T
Continuing operations BFESEER
Turnover s 9 641,312 452,974
Revenue & 10 488,208 336,296
Cost of sales 8 & AR A (416,761) (303,990)
Gross profit EF 71,447 32,306
Other income H A 11 1,908 1,902
Administrative and other expenses TR H At 3% (73,159) (58,165)
Realised gain on held for FIERXR SR EZEE#HR W=
trading investments 26 1,529 35,027
Unrealised gain (loss) on fair value change #{ERXR ZEE 2 A FEE
on held for trading investments RAEH W (EE) 26 29,443 (47,685)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale EEMHEERE ZEE
investments (14,584) -
Impairment loss on finance lease receivable fEWELETAEFRIBE 2 MERIE 24 (22,184) =
Share of losses of associates D{hHEE A REE 22 (10,864) (9,189)
Loss before tax W 25 BT B 1R (16,464) (45,804)
Income tax expense FrisfiA = 14 (2,385) (1,673)
Loss for the year from REFEKLEEG 2
continuing operations FAEE (18,849) (47,477)
Discontinued operation ERIELEEK
Profit (loss) for the year from REERIEEEHER 2
discontinued operation FREN (EE) 15(ii) 7,799 (3,514)
Loss for the year FRNEE 12 (11,050) (50,991)




HESEZEREMR AT 20165 R

Consolidated Statement of Profitor Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Ao o7 4R 2 B LAl 2 i WL 4

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

2016 2015
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RF —ET—hHF
B 5 TET FHEIT
Other comprehensive Hiv2mE (ZH) KA
(expenses) income
Items that may be reclassified R BT HE R .2
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences arising on BMEGINEBREEZ
translation of foreign operations N =58 (26,193) (14,605)
Share of other comprehensive expenses of 7 b & AR 2 B2
associates 22 (5,046) (2,505)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEEREZ A TEER
investments (19,059) (1,350)
Release of reserve upon disposal of REENHEERERZ
available-for-sale investments B 14,584 =
(35,714) (18,460)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year N ZE X7 i B 58 (46,764) (69,451)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to KRAREBR AR
owners of the Company FR(EER) N
— From continuing operations —REFBELELEER (18,835) (47,472)
— From discontinued operation —REERIEREED 8,295 (1,214)
(10,540) (48,686)
Loss for the year attributable to PRI R PR (G E BT 1R
non-controlling interests
— From continuing operations —REFELEETL (14) (5)
— From discontinued operation —REBRIEEEED (496) (2,300)
(510) (2,305)
(11,050) (50,991)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o 7 4E i B R th 2 W 6 3

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

2016 2015
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T-RF
B 5 TET FHEIT
Total comprehensive expenses FREEXEBER
for the year attributable to T3 & IEEML
— owners of the Company S N/NEIE ¥ =N (46,252) (66,983)
— non-controlling interests —JEFE AR A A (512) (2,468)
(46,764) (69,451)
Loss per share BREE 17

From continuing and discontinued
operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

From continuing operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

KEFERERILKEER
—BEARREE )

KEFBEREXRD
—BEARREE )

(0.15) centsfll

(1.02) centsfll

(0.27) centsfll

(0.99) centsflll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
I LR
LR I EIR DL R
As at 31 December 2016 R = FE—NFE+=-H=4+—H
2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RE —E—HRF
B & FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE RFE 18 10,418 10,604
Intangible asset B AE 20 811 811
Interests in associates KB E RN A 2 s 22 85,143 99,859
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 23 13,787 51,762
Finance lease receivables e U Bt & F & FOE 24 37,410 -
Deferred tax asset RIEFIIRE = 31 3,179 =
150,748 163,036
Current assets REBEE
Finance lease receivables e U Bt & F & FOE 24 196,440 176,751
Loans and interest receivables EREREFE 29 279,647 =
Trade and other receivables fé%&ﬁﬁﬂgﬂﬁlﬁ 25 133,567 72,354
Held for trading investments BIERSEE 26 115,266 232,686
Pledged bank deposit BHEFRITER 27 54 55
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRIE S 28 170,233 87,522
895,207 569,368
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBELECEE 15 10,760 34,636
905,967 604,004
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I B At & 508 30 23,404 12,820
Tax liabilities HIBEE 7,668 6,805
31,072 19,625
Liabilities associated with assets HAOEARIEREZ
classified as held for sale BEHBzEE 15 - 54,396 :
a
31,072 74,021 tk;
_. _’-'- ._'_._,_-—'“._‘-‘-‘.‘
Net current assets REEEFE 874,895 529,983 -
<A
Total assets less liabilities EEHEEREE 1,025,643 693,019 o~
geiilesie, &
S =
'_: — (i.‘" %L:‘Lq
= et r__/——~ 5 4 .f_‘-\,— T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

f 1 BB IR Dt 2

As at 31 December 2016 R —FE— NF+—-HA=4+—H

2016 2015
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-AE —F-RF
k=2 FHExT T T
Capital and Reserves BARFEE

Share capital % Zx 32 363,228 263,228
Share premium and reserves R% 17 3 (B & % 1 662,458 453,266

Equity attributable to owners of RARER AEEER
the Company 1,025,686 716,494
Non-controlling interests I I (43) (23,475)
1,025,643 693,019

The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 207 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Yang
=5
Director

EF

FIAEE0/EZRAMBHRE2EN _-F
—tF A=t HEREERILAERKET
WA NIRERRE:

Liu Wei
22
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed  Translation  Statutory options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
(Note i) (Note ii)
&

BA  RfEE  SABR  BEEE  iEER BREGR  EMER  RiER Mt FERER a5t
TER TEn TR TER TER TER TEn TEn TER TER TEL

(M) (Witii)

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-A-R 145,900 339,178 1,996 1,153 817 33,568 4612 (182,671) 344,553 (21,007) 323,546
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (48,686) (48,686) (2,305) (50,991)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EREMZERE:

for the year:
Exchange differences arisngon 2 E B EHEEEL

translation of foreign operations ~ ER A% - - - (14,442) - - - - (14,442) (163) (14,605)
Share of other comprehensive  HAEERTZ

income of associates E2ERA - - - (2,509) - - - - (2,505) - (2,505)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AIHERE

investments ATEER = = - - - - (1,350) - (1,350 - (1,350)
Total comprehensive expense  FR2EXHEE

for the year - - - (16,947) - - (1,350) (48,686) (66,983) (2,468) (69,451)
Issue of shares upon open offer ~ RARRERETRG

(note 32) (h332) 72,949 145,901 - - - - - - 218,850 - 218,850
Issue of shares upon placing RERRARN

(note 32) (H3£32) 43,769 175,076 - - - - - - 218,845 - 218,845
Transaction cost attributable to BT L BRMEZ

issue of new ordinary shares SARA - (12,810) - - - - - - (12,810) - (12,810)
Issue of shares upon exercise of ~ BREE(TERETRA

share options (note 33) (H333) 610 2917 - - - (160) - - 3,367 = 3,367
Recognition of equity-settled share- AL 25 € 3 X

based payments (note 33) Tt st (B3E33) - - - - - 10672 - - 10672 - 10672
Lapse of share options (note 33) B8R (Hi33) - - - - - (18,874) - 18,874 - - -
Forfeiture of share options R E (F333)

(note 33) = = = = - (1,623) - 1,623 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%F

tZh=1-H 263,228 650,262 1,996 (15,794) 817 23,583 3,262 (210,860) 716,494 (23,475) 693,019

-
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Translation  Statutory options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note i) (Note il
RE
Bx  ROBE  HABR%  REER  iEER BREEE  EfRE  ZhER Nt FERER @it
Thn T T T T T T ThL T ThL T
(M) (Witi)
At 1 January 2016 RZB-~E-A-R 263,228 650,262 1,996 (15,794) 817 23,583 3,262 (210,860) 716,494 (23,475) 693,019
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (10,540) (10,540) (510) (11,050)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EREMZERH:
for the year:
Exchange differences arising on ~ #E B EBBELEZ
translation of foreign operations B Z % - - - (26,191) - - - - (26,191) ] (26,193)
Fair value loss on available-forsale W iHERE 2
investment NYERE - - - - - - (19,059) - (19,059) - (19,059)
Release of reserve upon disposal of 1At £ Al A EREE 2
avallable-forsale investments  fEAR - - - - - - 14,584 - 14,584 - 14,584
Share of other comprehensive  HAEERZ
expenses of associates A2 ERi - - - (5,046) - - - - (5,046) - (5,046)
Total comprehensive expense ~ ER2EXHEE
for the year - - - (31,37 - - (4,475) (10,540) (46,252) (512) (46,764)
Issue of shares upon subscription  RABE R
(note 32) \ (Hi332) 100,000 260,000 - - - - - - 360,000 - 360,000
Transaction cost attributable to ~ WREEETRAEEZ
issue of share upon subscription R (K - (2,609) - - - - - - (2,609) - (2,609)
Forfeiture of share options R RE
(note 33) (Kt333) - - - - - (838) - 838 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HEMBEAR (H34) - - - (1,947) 817) - - 817 (1,947) 23,944 21,997
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R
+-A=t-H 363,228 907,653 1,996 (48,978) - 22,745 (1213) (219,745) 1,025,686 (3) 1,025,643
Note i: The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between — [izti: ANEEZMABBIERQFTRMDR —NLNNE
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the EEBBAERSFARARER EMAT BE
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board BHEMBERBARZRMDEERESRIM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1996 and the nominal value BOZARAROEE Z5H -
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange.
Note ii: In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) Company  Bfiztii: RiFEFEAREME ([FE])AEENRTEH
Law and the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered ME AR ZAEMERMAA 5 B2 M

in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit
as determined in accordance with relevant statutory rules and regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) to the statutory reserve. When the balance of such reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity's capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages. The balance is reclassified
to retained earnings at the date of disposal of the subsidiary.

N EE REE R TE AT B 10% 5 AEE b
e BFREMATIBEEPEKL 2 XE
RzBREERBFERETE (BEEHEMAE
AIFEER) WMXEERBRERFR/ATE
AHI50% * Bl ALE B — FIRE A E B AT
PR 85 55 BT 4F 2 2 5 1R S8 AR AN » AT » 7%
EE R RBEN MM ERE  BDARDER
MNERZ25% - HEHNEERBRREHAEHN
DEEREBER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HOBSmER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—RF —T—hEF
FTER F& T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEXEK
(Loss) profit before tax from BREiAT (E18) & A
— continuing operations —RBELEER (16,464) (45,804)
— discontinued operation —BERIEEEEK 7,799 (3,514)
Loss before tax R Bt Al 5 18 (8.665) (49,318)
Adjustments for: FTPNIEBEHFAE:
Depreciation of property, M BERZEBETE
plant and equipment 3,076 2,765
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TR HH & B 5 - 276
Share of losses of associates DG E A R EE 10,864 9,189
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE KE R
plant and equipment =2 W - (150)
Finance costs A& B AN - 1,483
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value FHER ST E 2 A TE
change on held for trading BEARER (W) EE
investments (29,443) 47,685
Write-off of property, M2 BB KR
plant and equipment 10 -
Share-based payments expenses VAR 9 < 32 1 - 10,672
Interest income from bank and RERITREHA
overdue trade receivables 2 5 W RIE 2
B A (683) (1,730)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries L E B AR 2 e (8,539) =
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMNHREERE ZEE
investments 14,584 -
Impairment loss on finance lease Bl mERERIE L
receivables R EEE 22,184 =
Operating cash flows before movements  &E&E & & &R 2
in working capital KEBEME 3,388 20,872
(Increase) decrease in trade and 5 N H bW R E
other receivables (350 ) &k 2> (68,834) 23,307
Increase in finance lease receivables JE 4 Bt & 7R & SR IR 3 AN (93,917) (176,751)
Decrease (increase) in held for trading BIER & E R D
investments ($8hn) 146,863 (182,341)
Increase in loans and interest receivables &R E 3k & F B 42 0 (279,647) = -
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I H i & {5 FRIB I N 11,003 275 =
Cash used in operations KEmAZE® (281,144) (314,638) :
Income tax paid EATATEH (4,541) (1,127) <
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEKAZ E
ACTIVITIES BeFH (285,685) . (315,765 "%
‘_:‘ T— (“1 =
z bk e



82 China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaBlEemER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XF —hF
k=2 FHExT T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received from bank and RERITRAHE S
overdue trade receivables JE WK IE 2 B A 2 683 1,730
Acquisition of a subsidiary accounted for Yt —R5IBR A& E
as asset acquisition Wk 2 BB A Al 35 - (800)
Consideration paid for the subscription HREE S D FRD
of shares of associates EARE (9,935) (110,250)
Transaction costs attributable to the REEERNRIRMDEMLZ
subscription of shares of associates R G (2,019) (1,303)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMRBARZ
subsidiaries REMAFRE 34 7,133 =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HEMHEERE 2
sale investments Fr 1S 5118 18,916 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEW¥  BE &R E
and equipment Z FTB 538 - 150
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE KBEREB
equipment (2,974) (8,871)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REZBRE (A2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEFH 11,804 (119,344)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds of shares issued upon RRBRERZEITRG
subscription Fr {5 5118 360,000 =
Transaction cost attributable to the RRBRZEITIRDENZ
shares issued upon subscription R KA (2,609) -
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BeERZITERR 2
shares upon placing Fr 1S 338 - 218,845
Payment of transaction costs attributable 7 {3 it & B 2517 & B A%
to issue of ordinary shares upon placing &R 2 X 5 KA - (5,628)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary ARABERETERRZ
shares upon open offer Ffr 1S 318 - 218,850
Payment of transaction costs attributable 7 AR SR 21T
to issue of ordinary shares upon open TERIEG 225 KA
offer - (7,182)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares & f% 12 J& 77 {& A5 25 77
upon exercising share option L@k S RIE - 3,367
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFEH B 2R & FHE 357,391 428,252
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

N =X
HEBESmEER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RE —E—HRF
FExT FET
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERRESEEERZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B ORid) F5E 83,510 (6,857)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—HA—BzBER
AT 1 JANUARY HEEEER 90,392 99,785
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHH 7 E (3,669) (2,536)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+-ZA=+—H=zB&K
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented BE&EEER LR
by bank balances and cash 46k R IR 2 P BR 170,233 90,392
4
b~
3
- r
e
L T
E r—— (l‘.“' ?&L‘Lq
E . "_.‘/_"—--.—_-—: .l\’_‘\ T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&i 0 A S R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL —REH
China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) is HESEZERERAE ([RAQF])
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited AR B REFMKY X %ﬁﬁiﬁ
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong A HIROESBBMERZIFABERA
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). (B3 FTl) Emhe
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of RAREMHEEREZEXEME 2
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate UK FHR e [RalER] NIKREE -
Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The ARARIZEEXEBRIREER -EE
activities of its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company ZWBAR (ERAARAEA [AE
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 39. = | )Z%ﬁ%%ﬁ’i\wlﬁ\39 0

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong REMBHREAET ([HET)) 25
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the BARRNF 2 EHEMHER -

Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG FE R E] RA&IBR] < BB
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHREEAN([EETBHRSE
("HKFRSs") #81)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and RAFE ARGIEEANTHEBGET
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting MAg ([EBEMmAe])BMH 2
Standards (“HKAS(s)"), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)"), RIS BB B mE RN BIEEAY
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants BMEER BESHERN([BESE
(the “HKICPA"). R ]) BITARZE ([RE]) -
Amendments Annual Improvements to HKFRSs AU BEE BB B ER

to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle AR 2 1BFTA —EF——fZ

ZE-mEFH2
FEN#

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative BEAGTENE IR HFlE

HKAS 1 A TIE
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BRI ENE 6N TEHNEHTEZ AL

HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation REBGER EE

HKAS 38 %38??21/ET$
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants é/a @ T2 BE LEREY

HKAS 16 and F16% Rk

HKAS 41 iﬁf’é@ﬁ@ﬂw

FMNTZETA

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial BRSHENEIN Bryrsil#nx

HKAS 27 Statements ZIBFTAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 13 B 5 e A P

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Lease?

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

R REBT 2B

28 ]) (@

REZRE EFFaNEZ
ASER

BEMBRELR
F105% BB
B S 2
F12%R
BA L ER
B85 (BRI

BREMBRELNE UEAEEFER S E
MR ZERIA Z

RAFEERBN RGBT EEHH
BELEMNHAEERANFEEBESF
BZHBRARMKAR, Rt EHRE
MBEBRRABZIBRBETHRLBEERY

2,
2

C 78 e {8 1= R A R #7ET B AR
R & BB HREER
REE I IR EA AT 28 MEH

AR RGBS BB B RS
e

ERMBHRE  ERIA
B F95%
(ZZ2-mF)

ERUBHE  EPAMRA

0|2 155
BEERE Hes
£ 51657

Bt TS KEAED
ETRZBFA

Bt s BAB A EEER
ENFETR  ELEHEEE

BREMBRE REEBEEBE AR
EQIZ10% R BEGEHEMN
BERQHENE EEHEIBAN
28%5 2
EHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&7 A S R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =&

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle®

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

3 Effective date not yet been determined.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1

January 2018, as appropriate.

The directors of the Company (the

“Directors”) anticipate that,

except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

—AEFAZF—HLEE

2.

FER T RLIERT 2 E BB
BB EER ([FEEBMERE
ZR|]) (®

B B 518 14 5 4 MR R0 37 3T R4S
B E BT BREER ()

BEMBRE  NROAERNNRRSZ
EUEZR2E  DERGEP
HE
BANMBRE ERTAMBREENFSR
EABAR2E SRIAEREBHBR
R ERAZARRBE 4P
ERNBRE BAMERS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

NF+—A=+—HIFFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

F)EHTEA (&)
With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities s WMEEARATFEFAERERE
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 ZERBEZFEMS  BAUE
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value WELNFER (ZF—HF)R

of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s

EZEBMBEIEERRZERIA
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expected credit losses on its financial assets and commitments FEoEBEEBE 2 RER
to extend credit were added. Those requirements eliminate EoZERTEBR T BAEGER
the threshold that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of FIRAEREEBEEOME-

credit losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS

REFEHBRELERFIR (=

9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to T—F) ZREFE RERE
have occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead, EEENBAECEEFEESH R
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit 2 BRE-—EHEHREEBEN
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of R EEAEEBEZZBARK-
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to REREAHHBHEESEZ
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and, SRETEH AR BVIRER

consequently, more timely information is provided about ARG E R < B8y - WA LR

expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

NF+—A=+—HIFFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which aligns hedge
accounting more closely with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and
non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach,
HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish between
financial items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally for
risk management purposes as a basis for hedge accounting.
Under HKAS 39,
compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics

it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and

that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are based
on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because
it reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the
future may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities and are in

the process of assessing the impact on the consolidated financial

statements of these requirements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

) Identify the contract with the customer;
i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
iii)  Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG FE R #T 5] R AR ER] < BB Bt
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHREEN([EBHBHRS
("HKFRSS") (CONTINUED) 28| ]) (@

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet 85 1B 1 R A Y T RT R &
effective (Continued) BT BB BEREELD (5)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BB BHEERFISHEEF S
(Continued) WA (4#)
HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or BB HREERE 1SRN T —
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. F-HA—HaizERBR 2 FEHBE
- BAIRAIER ©
The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the EFEHTAREREEYBHRSER
future may have a material impact on the amounts reported and FIS A e HASBELGRE M B RE
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements FREFRSERIFHCBERAEKNEXN
and are in the process of assessing the impact on the consolidated TERRMENEZERELRETTE
financial statements of these requirements. WKk IHE o
HKFRS 16 Leases BB BHREEREI167HE
HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification EENBHRELN TR R/EELHE
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the consolidated 2 &% Bl L/{&ﬁﬁf\ﬂjfﬂ)\&%ﬂ}\i*/\
financial statements of both lessors and lessees. WMBRR2EEF AR —(AGE1E
Et )
In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a MABEAGETEEM S - ZEAS|IAS
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise —FIAABHREERER  REAHEAR
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more than HERBBA T _EACHREHEERR
12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value. BEERBE HHBEEEEREIR
§|\ °
At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required to R ERR B HE A ABERKAER
recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the amount FREEE BEHEEAECVGTE
of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any lease 58 IR FE B Bigk 2 B[R A A
payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement date YEI 2 A RIFR & 5% - 1Bk A (AT 2 BER
less any lease incentives received, the initial estimate of restoration ZHEEBE B hEHEEA AR R&EMA
costs and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease AFTEAZ ARV EEZEK SN -HES
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease BUFTERBEENRKENARZINERZ
payments that are not paid at that date. RERER -



HELEIZEREMR AT 20165k

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Plant and Equipment, while interest
accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

The Directors are in the process of assessing the impact on the
consolidated financial statements of these requirements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments
do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the new disclosure
requirements. However, the amendments indicate that one way
is to provide a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances for liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application
permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the application of Amendments
to HKAS 7 will result in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, especially reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial
position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be
provided on application.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transaction and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statement in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's return.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the result of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, 2 =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill relating to an associate that
included in the carrying amount of the investment is set out in
“investments in associates” below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, 2 =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The Group's share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the associates
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
which determined using the equity method together with any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and
a liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made to make the associate’s accounting policies
conform to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate is recognised as
goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether it
iS necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to its investment in the associate. Goodwill that forms
part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate
is not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment in the associate. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate upon the
Group losing significant influence over the associate, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest is
measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the equity method was discontinued is recognised in profit or
loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained earnings on the same basis as it would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is reduced,
but the Group continues to apply the equity method, the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
the associate. The Group's share in the associate’s gains or losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Such
classification requires the asset or the disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset or
disposal group and its sale is highly probable. Management must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, an associate or
joint venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that
will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is classified as
held for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of
the investment) is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted for
using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use of the
equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal results in
the Group losing significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS
39 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a
joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see
the accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint
ventures above).

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs of disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for goods sold and service rendered in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

—  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from provision of freight forwarding services is recognised
when the services are provided.

Consultancy income from finance lease is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition. When a loan has been written down
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss, i.e., the original
effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund (“CPF"”) Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leaves and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & = = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3. FESHHEE®
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AEFAS+—HIEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

3. TEFFHEHE )
WE - WERRE
Property, plant and equipment including buildings (classified M BHERFZE (BEEEESRMR
as finance leases) held for use in the production or supply of BEmE Rz AETHRAR 2EF
goods or services, or for administrative purpose are stated in the (DBEAERMERE) ) NREMBIKAE
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent BRABEREERFTITERZFTRE
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if EE (nE) 5K
any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The

estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of

ME BEMRERERERLERRER

M BB RRBIEE DREF AT AE
ER N LA B ARR TR & LA D BL LA AR
RIAEE AEEENZREARRT
A RFES FREBERTER X
it at B & 2 28 AR R RELE ARR
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible asset

HBETRZEESTEEERKRLE
VB ) i Ry % L T RR o HH S SRR D 5
MEREZHEEBMESE 2 EARER

$HE FT1S X
Intangible asset acquired separately

HEZEEZRAELE
MEE YRERAER-

BEEE
impairment losses.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

BLRENETEEE

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains

or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are

BB R IR T HEE R FRAE
TR E T AR AR A/ £ 18 REHRE
R IRR

BYEERNEERKEEARL
BEBRBIASELAEMAR
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

E&

the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

3. FEFHHEE®
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3. TEFFHEHE )
E@MIT A (®)

Financial assets (Continued) BBEE (#)

Effective interest method BRI FZ

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including

BERMEFRDFEER TR Z#EIEK
AR ER AR D M B U AZ T

all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of

initial recognition.

the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

ERMERANEB LA B FH
s (fieh 38 ) B2 A2 HA P /9 8 ik 51 AR SR ER
WA (BFEFT A S B BR F =
FERHZEPERREE  XHKA
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, N E MR E IR ) EEITIREY) P
R 2 BRTEFE 2 F = o

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

REBIAEMES  FERARERFIE
EEBRR (TREIEAEAFEIR
MEBRREE CZEVKEE  HF|
BUWAGTARZEHEEFEA) ©

Financial assets at FVTPL

[T

#
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
recognition.

RFEINRRER D XEIEZ HEE
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial

BRAFEIRREREREIEZMB
BED /MR SRRV ERRFE

R RZERERBAFEINRRE
BRREECHHEE-

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

il 1 75 & B0 2 T SRR A - B>
BRFERS:

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

WEZMBEENEN 2R
BTEHALE =k

ROIZERRBRNETESR EE
ZE#NEMIAEEZ — %

» B HEEE BB T EH
R ;3
hedging instrument.

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & = = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is classified as unrealised gain
(loss) on fair value change on held for trading investments in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
8.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
finance lease receivables, loans and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. The Group designated certain items including listed
and unlisted equity security and unlisted investment in fund as
available-for-sale financial assets on initial recognition of those
items.

3. FESHHEE®
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates,
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are
recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables and loans and interest
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

3. FEFHHEE®
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESHHE @
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRIA#
Financial assets (Continued) BBEE (&)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued) HBEEZ EEE (&)
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the MIRE SN AT R 2 MFEEMS © FT
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's BRZBEEECEAEEREEHR
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future R %A E R BN EIRMEE R
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective REeREREREZHE -
interest rate.
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment MK AT R KEEMS  BEE
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying BreRiRzEEZ RABEREMGR K
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows R & EREUNBKEERKTS
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar EREFRRE B2 EZETE 7%
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in BEBBEIgRER 2 AMAZD (RT
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below). FETHEK) ©
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the FEVBEE 2 REBEEERBERE
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception BRE D HE S RH M ERGRIE - U
of trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables and loans BERERERERERRFE 2R
and interest receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced [ 8 Bl 3% 8 A B AR B R - B AE AR
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying B 2 BRTE B 2 2 pA Y e 2% FE TR o finl FE LUK
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or R AR AR A E A E - Bl B A AR B
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off $H o B 1 U [0 8 1 38 2 SRIEET AL Es
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts KA e
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

3. FESHHEE®
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

3. B BE @
SRIA (&
Financial liabilities and equity instruments BIBEERKEATA
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified EEEERERTCEBERATAR
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the BEIEI &
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument
Financial liabilities

HBEERBRATAEZ FEmMEHEAN
BEESER -
interest method

,Z’J;zHFZf%TWALA&Bﬁ
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

HHEE
Effective interest method

WHaE(BRES REMEN
1&iE

FRIH)
Hig B8R ERMNERIRBHNANAE -
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

BT

P
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral

BERMEZEDFAEMBRBEZEHNK
RARKREEREBHED SR 2T
3 = 9% B

% BRAERTIRM B RAE B FH
sk (i 3 R ) 8258 AR ) E e 3 3R fib &1

part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

amount on initial recognition

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

KRR H (BIEEKERF & —F
AZBERARAMZNSBMEE R
SR R EM G ESITE) EERY)
FHERE 2 REFEZFE-
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis FERZIRE R = EEER
Equity instruments RAT A
An equity investment is any contract that evidences a residual A IS B AR —HERBRR
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% X4 éfEEF' 2 AT
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation reserve is recognised in
profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period,
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

accumulated losses.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or
loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3. FESHHEE®

UBRBEARZRE (&)

UBZAEXURGNHZXE
(%)

R TE 2 R

BR\E MR BT 2 B AR A
FTESERSRSE 2 AFENE W
AFEE LA SEFE AIBEKRERER
BIH2EMTLERE A TEFTE -
A B ES S R HIRERS - b
FEMIRIEEERERRABEE &
AlEWERSREZ AFESHERE
X miEx (BRERE) TgHEE
5 10

BRRBFEERERE (LX
ERBEZEREAEZE
ERERM)

AEERBERRBRTBHLRELE
EZARAUBFHERE WRERS
ERSRBRREEELTRERRE - it
HREMBRTSR  MEEFEEZA
WoleE ABEEREESR (WF)Z
B BEREE MBS TREN
hibst ARERGEEZEEMBR S
EXBM A REeE - ERER—E
ZHBREEANWEEZBERLT CXE
ENoEE@EMNRSELEML B
PEEAER—BZDEELENHKIE
EZRNREELEMER -

BEBETHEEAFRZELEEDE
LEERERDRBERAEHRBIE
R ETTRERIR -

A] Y [B] & B8 Ty R SRR B A AR B
REEZERSE - &HHEREER
At KRR 2R E(E A AR R AL
REHRE ZURRRREEEREIE
BZEMmSHGRAREERER
PARACHABRZEERBER -

119
A
&
b=
oy,
- —
_._.J
=
A
o
-~
-
-
-
-
M~
J=
=



120 China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e A R P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group's share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, value in use of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant influence over entity of less than 20%
equity interest

As disclosed in note 22, although the Group holds less than 20%
of the voting power of Pets Best Japan Co., Ltd. (“Pets Best”) as
at 31 December 2016, the Directors considered that the Group has
significant influence over Pets Best because the Group has a board
representative in Pets Best and that Pets Best is an associate of the
Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$242,022,000 (2015: HK$234,961,000)
available for offset against future profits. The Directors make
estimates on the future profit streams of the Group entities of
which tax losses are not utilised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

TESTHHERMEFARE
REZEZRR (&
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equipment

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) AT REREZEERIR
(&)

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
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estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual

value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets and if
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2016, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was

from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation charges -
approximately HK$10,418,000 (2015: HK$10,604,000), net of
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Impairment of trade receivables, finance lease EBESEKSE BRBEHERE

receivables and loans and interest receivables WERFE 26 E
The policy for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease

receivables and loans and interest receivables of the Group are

based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of

accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
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of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of

these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the

A N

past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
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and interest receivables were approximately HK$127,811,000

(2015: HK$67,023,000), HK$233,850,000 (2015: HK176,751,000)
and HK$279,647,000 (2015: nil) respectively, and net of
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted at the grant date to the
Directors and employees is recognised as an expense in full at grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share options reserve. In
assessing the fair value of the share options, the generally accepted
binomial model was used to calculate the fair value of the share
options. The binomial model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of ordinary shares and the
expected life of options etc. Any changes in these assumptions
can significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the share
options.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments stated
at cost less impairment loss

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to determine when an available-for-
sale investment is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the carrying
amount of financial asset is less than its present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health of and short-
term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. At 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of available-for-sale investments stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss was approximately HK$7,500,000
(2015: HK$7,500,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$30,750,000
(2015: HK$30,750,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EFMITA
Categories of financial instruments SR T A ZER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF — R
FHT FET
Financial assets HBEE
FVTPL (held for trading investments) BAFEIRREIES K E
(FER %&é) 115,266 232,686
Loans and receivables (including cash &3 & & Ik
and cash equivalents) (@%fﬁfﬁ&fﬁfﬁ%fﬁlﬁ B) 815,649 335,181
Available-for-sale investments At EIRE 13,787 51,762
944,702 619,629
Financial liabilities B%aE
Amortised cost 1R SH AR 22,904 12,425
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivables, loans and interest
receivables, held for trading investments, available-for-sale
investments, pledged bank deposit, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC, Singapore
and the United States of America of which functional
currency is RMB, Singapore dollars (“SGD”) and United
States dollars (“USD"”) respectively, the functional currency
of the Company and other subsidiaries is HK$. Certain
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities to which they relate. Foreign
currencies are also used to settle expenses for overseas
operations, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

MBEREREBFERBE

AEEZTESRTABEESIRA
fio U R IR - RN BB B 5R0R - UK
EREMNE BEXZKRE AIHLE
BE DHEBRTER RITEHRLR
T BRI REMENTE - BRAS
RTAZHBERNSERANTE %52
MTAAZzRRBEMSER (B
R A ERERREAEERR) E
SRR ERSE AR RIEZEFRR
ZBRENTX -EEEEEENRER
ZERR EREEERBEARHBET
BIERE

™ 45 & By
() E¥mEpE

FRRAR B SR R RBRYZ
MBARZNEEEDR/AR
% FngoT (T#mseoT)) k3
T ([ETT]) 4N AR A) R E A B
BRAIZINEEEARETL-ET
B 5 ME b FE YRR A R ERTT A
HBERSUAEEEEERYEE
EIASN 2 B EHE < BINETS TR
RINEENFS IS AR BASR
SN LR

ARBEUIINEFEZEEEER

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as WMERBCKRABENT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T—REF
FHET FAT
RMB AR 150 513
usb ETT 478 490
British Pound (”GBP") Ry ([REE]) 383 462
> e '/; ..-"'n B
= — [\
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is currently exposed to RMB and GBP foreign
currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (2015: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$ or RMB,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2015: 10%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 10% (2015: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase in loss for
the year where the respective functional currency (HK$ or
RMB) strengthens 10% (2015: 10%) against the relevant
foreign currency (RMB, GBP or HK$). For a 10% (2015: 10%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$ or RMB)
against the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP or HKS$),
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss for
the year and the balances below would be negative.

7.

(43=
\,Z\E/
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TRAMAEEEEBEERETE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. FMiEERBREEEEREE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%)

Market risk (Continued) ™ 3% Bk ()

(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥EE &)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HRE ST (B)

Effect on profit or loss

HER oE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—REF —T—RF
FTET FHIT
Strengthen against RMB by 10% (note a) &, AR FHE10% ([izEa) 15 51
Strengthen against GBP by 10% (note b) ¥ 2 &EFH{E10% (Ffi7Eb) 38 46

Notes:

(a) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB bank
balances and cash not subject to cash flow hedges at year end.

o

(@ WHXIEARFENSERSREY
HZARBRITERRBRESREE

[ -
(b) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on GBP bank b) HHEIEBHREETERBSREY
balances and cash not subject to cash flow hedges at year end. vhy BEEEIRITAARE S REE YA
Be
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FEmE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances. It is the Group's policy to keep
its bank balances at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see note 27 for
details), loans and interest receivable (see note 29 for details)
and finance lease receivables (see note 24 for details).

AEBZFRRTEREAXES
AR R - ARE 2 MR BTG HE
RITH ﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬂﬁi‘?’i@ﬁﬂ#ﬁ
SN = B =S 2 N

AEBETHEE LSS EFRITER
(FH18E R M 5E27) - B E SRR A
B (FBRME29) hEWK AN EH
EHE (FBRME24) MAX R
FAEN X

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging $’§.ﬁ517uxﬁﬁﬁﬂ < 3 A E:.
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate Re-Am TEEEBEERMNERRE - &
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when i+ M2 KA T8 HA R B KR 2 3L B —_;;_ﬂ"“"
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated. FHEERREMTEITH) =

The Directors consider that the interest rate risk in relation to
variable rate bank balances insignificant due to these balances

EERR BRAFERITAERZA
KRBT AEKX  RERZEZHEH

are either within short maturity period or the outstanding ZEMBEREKZFTEHBZIARE =
balances are not significant. BESRYABER . — .. =
- "\ T
s — i 3
My ‘,__/_—~ :" e
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

—AFE+ZASF—EILEE

(43=
\,Z\E/

MBEREREBFERBE

miE R (@)

(iii) B b &1 /3 B2

R=ZF—AR"F+=ZA=+—H &

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in listed equity securities
and available-for-sales investments (2015: listed equity
security and unlisted investment funds). The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted in

SEBE EHRAE S KA
ERE(ZE—0F: LTREE
FRELMIRERS) RETHK
EBRR -BEEBEBEFESTR
Bk 2 R BAESEGIRER - AKH
E3 LN R

Z BB R

the Stock Exchange. In addition, the Group has appointed

a special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting

period.

If the prices of the respective listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been 20% (2015:
20%) higher/lower, the loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2016 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$19,249,000 (2015: HK$38,859,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these listed investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale investments
stated at fair value had been 20% (2015: 20%) higher/lower,
the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2016 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,257,000 (2015: HK$8,852,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the other price risk for the investments in
listed equity securities as the year end exposure does not

reflects the exposure during the year.

BZERATR 1IN AEEERE
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JT) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, 2 = &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to a failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In respect of finance lease receivables, representing loan advances
to customers with pledged assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial background, current ability to pay and the
financial status of the guarantor, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. At 31 December
2016 and 2015, the finance lease receivables are secured with the
leased assets. All the finance lease receivables are arised in the

PRC.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s money lending business,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s financial background and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. The Directors consider the credit risk is
under control since the management exercise due care in granting
credit and check the financial background of these customers on a
regular basis.

For loan receivables, the Group has a high concentration of credit
risk on loans and interest receivables as 18% (2015: nil) and 74%
(2015: nil) of the total loans and interest receivables was due from
the single largest customer and the five largest customers in the
money lending segment respectively.

7.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

For finance lease receivables, the Group has a high concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivables as 29% (2015: 36%) and
84% (2015: 100%) of the total finance lease receivables was due
from the single largest customer and the five largest customers in
the finance leasing segment respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations are mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
99% (2015: 66%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December
2016. The Group has concentration of credit risk as 95% (2015:
66%) and 99% (2015: 99%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of its bank balances and cash and considers
the risk is minimal.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are repayable on
demand or within one year as at the end of each of the reporting
periods.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 8. A¥EFE
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERA - BARERERE R sk BN
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the EIER - BT B E R B T B B R S A R
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values due REREE UMK 2 REEREA T
to short-term or immediate maturities. (EVEEEE
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRESBEREEEEERSRERR
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period AT EFTEZEBITEST  BEAXR
for recurring measurement, grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based on EEEHBREBERMEZ2ATED
the degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance to HRE—BEFE_8H-
the Group's accounting policy.
31 December 2016
“2-XRE+ZA=+—-H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£—8 | et
FET FHET FExT
Financial assets at FVTPL R AV EIIBEREEZH R
BRECHKEE
Held for trading investments- EH{EBE & 2 FmRAZE 5
listed equity securities 115,266 - 115,266
Available-for-sale At HERE
investments
Listed equity security EHRAFS 6,287 - 6,287
121,553 - 121,553
31 December 2015
—T—RF+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E—48 -l “at
FAT FAT FB T
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EIIBEREEBE X
RECHKEE
Held for trading investments- F{EEE 2 ERAEFH
listed equity securities 232,686 - 232,686
Available-for-sale AHtHERE
investments
Listed equity security EmRAFBS 8,977 = 8,977
Unlisted fund instruments FEMESTHE - 35,285 35,285
241,663 35,285 276,948~
'_:‘ — it
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. AFEFE @
There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in REAFERBAFE SQAFEEEZ
the current and prior years. ] b 4 3 1T BB % o
The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value ZHESHMIAATEF=EELTHEE
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring basis are R A ERERE ASEYH
set out below: PO
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key inputs
AFEREE HEAEREERARE
Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
EmRAFES F—4 ERMIZFRE AR
Unlisted fund instruments Level 2 Quoted prices from financial institutions

based on bid prices in active market for
the listed shares under the portfolio of the
unlisted fund instruments
FEMESTA F 4 CREESRENDENFELMESTAASE
TEmkHzERTIZEAE
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TURNOVER

9.

Turnover represents revenue arising on (i) trading on radio system,

electronic appliance and fuel; (i) gross proceeds from disposal of

held for trading investments; (iii) consultancy income in respect of

finance leases; (iv) interest income from finance leases; (v) interest

income from money lending; (vi) provision of international air and

sea freight forwarding services; and (vii) dividend income from held

for trading investments for the year. An analysis of the Group’s

revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

EXE

EXRBEEFNNEEERERG BT
R R (N ERHER B R E Z P
BRERE: (NVFERERAEZEAM
WA (BREREZFBHBA: WEE
ZHMBWA (iR BB A & 0B £
BERE : RVINVFERZREZIRE
WARTES 2 Wat - FARAAREERE #F
BREZEB 2 WS 2T

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-RF —E—AEF
FTET FHIT
Trading of goods BEEEm 423,615 311,388
Gross proceeds from disposal of HERERZREZ
held for trading investments FTiS R IE a5 153,104 116,678
Consultancy income from finance leases R & &R A 31,165 11,101
Interest income from finance leases B EHE R EUA 11,008 4,375
Interest income from money lending EEF S A 16,631 =
Provision of international air and sea REBEMZERE EEERE
freight forwarding services 5,789 8,102
Dividend income from held for FHER SR E 2R BWA
trading investments - 1,330
641,312 452,974
o _',."" al o
‘_:‘ T—— it
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Rz R D EER

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods
sold or services delivered or provided. The Directors have chosen
to organise the Group around difference in products and services.

HRERDERDMERRFERES (B
E%%ﬁkﬁ% RE)ERZENBERL
%i@?“ RNRRERG 2 BE-EF

ERERER MR ZEREEAE
B-ERENEENRSDME E2

No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision & B R 5 B I G P A Rl B 58 9 BT
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments =G

of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments are as follows: BA REEzRESHBWT

a) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products

a) EERmOBRBERTERSE

including but not limited to radio system, electronic appliance HMmEE BEETRENESER
and fuel in Hong Kong and the PRC; PSS on R RO

b)  Finance leasing segment engages in finance leasing of plant
and machinery in the PRC;

¢) Money lending segment engages in money lending in Hong
Kong;

d) International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers; and

e) Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity
securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a new
reportable and operating segment regarding money lending upon

b) BEREDE
HERmEHE

RABERERE R

0 BESHNRBEENREFEES

d BEEmZ=RELEES
EFRHEBEMZE
KR - R

D B S A
e Mg EEE A

e) BHEEIIRERAEFESRER
R ER 5158 BREAR S U A -

WRE-F—AE+-A=+-AL
1 - AHIEE3SFT R - PRI

the commencement of business of the acquired subsidiary as BREZ¥BHE®R $Qﬂﬁ—1ﬁ
disclosed in note 35. AEE A mEREEDE -
The operation of manufacture and sale of coal segment of the REBEREREERRSHERNEBE

Group was discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2015
and disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
segment information reported on the next pages does not include
any amounts for these discontinued operation, which are described
in more detail in note 15.

—F— £¢+ ﬂ Jr Etﬁfﬁﬂ
:—l——ElJtiFWﬁ’% TEFRE®RZ
DEER U T EEZFRIEER 2 E
& E—FFBERMTI5-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz & 2 ZBE B (@)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results DEBUN S R EAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results TXARNEB R B FERESEBIRRE
from continuing operations by reportable and operating segments. KEDEE D 2 W REED T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations KHEEEXK
International
air and
Trading Finance sea freight Securities
of goods leasing forwarding trading Total
BABRHRZER
EEfR HERE BLEE BEEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL THL
Turnover BEE 423,615 42,173 5,789 153,104 641,312
Revenue Wi
External 5 423,615 42,173 5,789 - 488,208
Seqment results PE%E 3,894 6,531 (139) 26,761 50,043
Share of losses of associates PEB BN A EE (10,864)
Unallocated corporate AOBREERX
expenses (55,687)
Unallocated corporate income KA EEERA 44
Loss before tax BRERIEE
(continuing operations) (BERLER) (16,464)
C
»
= §
J:"‘"-'#_
ST =
'_: r—— (i.‘" %L:‘Lq
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10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Continuing operations

10. =z R D BEFR (&)

DEMEREE (B
HE—_Z—RE+-A=+—HILEE

International

air and
Trading Finance sea freight Securities
of goods leasing forwarding trading Total
Rz
BEEG RERE BLEE BHEE M@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHT THT TR
Turnover B 311,388 15,476 8,102 118,008 452,974
Revenue Wz
External %4 311,388 15,476 8,102 1,330 336,296
Segment results DEEE 7,062 10,720 597 (11,890) 6,489
Share of losses of associates 75 Bk 7 7] 518 (9,189)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE &
plant and equipment Byl € 150
Unallocated corporate APEEERZ
expenses (44,083)
Unallocated corporate income & 7 fit £ B4z A 829
Loss before tax BRI 1R
(continuing operations) (BEREEK) (45,804)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represents the profit earned by (loss from) each
segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant
and equipment, share of losses of associates, gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, net foreign exchange loss, bank
interest income and sundry income. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

WED B 2GR BRI 3T AN &
Bz @t BORMER - D BRAESDE
PrELZ M (FTEE ZER)  EF
TARDEFRITERA EFFHT F
THENNE BERRE DHBE
NEEE HEVE BEERE W
@ SME R IEF R IRITA B KA
HWA = bt T3 /D B E R KR FHERIRM
MERLERREER AL
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz & 2 ZBE B (@)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by TXRAEEERESHE D 2 BE
reportable segments. LBEDT-
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE
International
air and
Trading Finance Money  sea freight Securities
of goods leasing lending  forwarding trading Total
EBRER
EEER HERE BE BLEE BHEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR THER THER THR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets AHEE 123,171 240,430 280,458 1,081 115,266 760,406
Unallocated corporate assets AOEEEEE 285,549
Total segment assets NHEESE 1,045,955
Assets classified as held for sale 2B AHEHEZEE 10,760
Consolidated assets GREE 1,056,715
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHERE 244 7,817 - 1,803 - 9,864
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP EEEEE 21,208
Total segment liabilities NHEESE 31,012
Liabilities relating to assets EARARELERE :
classified a held for sale B8R - i
»
Consolidated liabilities HERE 31,072 = f—*““ahk_:
=
e it
ST gl TN
el R
fﬁ"f-fsf ,‘,_‘__.,-:-"'“ :
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o 1 B 5 i A W

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &% =&

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

—NFEL—HA=1—HIFE

10. W

AN

7]

mRkoBER (&)

MEERESE ()

BE-T-RF+-A=t+—AIL5E

International
air and
Trading Finance sea freight Securities
of goods leasing forwarding trading Total
B PR i 2
BEEAR HERE 5B EHEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THL THT TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEBE 68,177 177,352 1,024 232,686 479,239
Unallocated corporate APEEEEE
assets 253,165
Assets classified as PEARELEZ
held for sale BE 34,636
Consolidated assets RRAE 767,040
LIABILITIES af5
Segment liabilities AHEE 85 2,861 1,675 - 4,621
Unallocated corporate APEEEER
liabilities 15,004
Liabilities associated with ~ EL 48 A {E
assets classified HEZEE
as held for sale HEzaE 54,396
Consolidated liabilities GEaE 74,021
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERDHBRARRE D EHEHEE

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
certain available-for-sale investments, interests in associates,

pledged bank deposit,

bank balances and cash,

the

equipment of head office and certain other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

tax liabilities and certain other payables.

FREpD Al ERE R E A F)

Z%é~aﬁﬁ#ﬁ$ﬁ TR RITHE
BERE BMERIRERET

Efmf’éﬂkmlﬁﬁl\ B EEDDE

ERESH K

RRBERBERED Jﬂzﬁ‘é‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SN PR BEH D EEEWR

e
UPr
N
/
[



HZEEEZERERDR 20165 ], 141
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
P8 a3
i A5 R B R
For the year ended 31 December 201682 =L —NF 1+ =A=+—HIFEZE
10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. Wz K 2 B E# (#)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information H fth 7 5 & ¥
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-—Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing Operations FESEXER
International
air and
Trading Finance Money  sea freight  Securities
of goods leasing lending  forwarding trading Unallocated Total
EBRHMZER
EEER AEHE &8 BLEE R3EE OB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Amounts included in the measure ~ (f EHHFEHT;
of segment profit or loss or AHEERF AL
seqment assets: Exk
Additions to non-current assets REFERBEE
(note) (Ba) 3 98 - - - 2,845 2,974
Depreciation of property, nE BER
plant and equipment HENE 440 % - - - 2,612 3,076
Realised gain on held for trading ~ BERZHEZ
investments &R - - - - (1,529) - (1,529)
Impairment loss on finance lease ~ EXBEREF AL
receivables REBE - 22,184 - - - - 2,184
Unrealised gain on fair value change 5{ER 3% E 2 K& 5
on held for trading investments NTEEEHNE - - - - (29,443) - (29,443)
Amounts reqularly provided to the ~ EHREBLERRA
chief operating decision maker but  #REERF EAHER
not included in the measure AD PEER
of segment profit or loss or AEFTAZ
seqment assets: £8:
Written off of property, LELES .
plant and equipment BER& - - - - - 10 10 [:.
Interest income MEMHA (506) (157) - - - (20) (683) {
Share of losses of associates AMeBEREER - - - - - 10,864 10,864 T b
Income tax expenses fERAR 770 1,025 590 - - - 2,385 T
<A
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, interests in MizE: SERMBEETREAIHEEIRE RS :
associates, finance lease receivables and deferred tax asset. ARz e FENENE M ERIE RIRER =
HEE- s
ot e "‘-h-..,_‘ F ,:
ST g
- . B P
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

10. Wz & 7 2B E # (2

HihpHER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (E_T—RFTA=1T—HBILFE
Continuing Operations FRESEXER
International
airand
Trading Finance sea freight Securities
of goods leasing forwarding trading  Unallocated Total
Bz
EEAm BERE BLEE EHBE RAR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THL THL
Amounts included in the measure 3t E 2 HBE
of segment profit or loss or PBEERTAZ
segment assets: Ek
Additions to non-current assets B IEREEE (HiE)
figid 697 18 - - 8,967 9,682
Depreciation of property, nE BEREERTE
plant and equipment 420 3 3 - 1471 1,597
Realised gain on held for trading  H{ERHRE 2
investments BER MR - - - (35,027) - (35,027)
Unrealised loss on fair value BERSRE AR
change on held for ?@ﬁiﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
trading investments - - - 47,685 - 47,685
Amounts regularly provided to the EHIREE2ERRE
chief operating decision maker ~ REBR:ESHES
but not included in the measure 37 HEEE
of segment profit or loss or REFTAZEE:
segment assets:
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BE Rk
plant and equipment RE 2= - - - - (150 (150)
Interest income MEKA (901) - - - (829) (1,730
Share of losses of associates AMEBER AR - - - - 9,189 9,189
Income tax expenses FTEHEY 9 1,664 - - - 1,673
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, interests in Mt : FRBEETFEAHRLERE R

associates and finance lease receivables.

Az s KRR A AR

A IE o



HELEZEREMR AT 20165 R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 13 B 5 e A P

For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations from sales of its major products and
provision of services to external customers:

10. =R o BEFR (&)

FEREmMERE 2 W

AT RAEERIISEFPIHERTE
EnMERREZHEREXTES
Z Wz DA

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

ZE—RF —T-RF

FTER T T

Trading of goods HEEBEm 423,615 311,388

Consultancy income from finance leases & 7R 5 R A 31,165 11,101

Provision of international air and sea R BIPR fin Z=

freight forwarding services B EEBRE 5,789 8,102

Interest income from finance leases FEEER S WA 11,008 4,375

Interest income from money lending BB ZFERA 16,631 -
Dividend income from held for trading RIERSGEREZ

investments iR B A - 1,330

488,208 336,296

Geographical information

Trading of goods is carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong.
International air and sea freight forwarding services are carried out
in Singapore, North and South America. Finance leasing is carried
out in PRC. Trading of securities and money lending are carried out
in Hong Kong.

B
AEBRTELRBESETEER M
PAFT DN ~ 4 SN B R SRME 1T BIBR A
EREBLEERY -BERETINT
#EIT EFRBREEXBINEBE
1°
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&i o A S R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

10. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. W= & 7 EBE #t (50
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information (Continued) WEER (&)
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers REBENIBEFWZER DIREF L
is presented based on the location of the operations of the EHE S AEBIETRBEEERTY
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is REEFEHEZ] -

presented based on the geographical location of assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
HEBEF WE FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

“E-X"E C—T-hF ZEBE-RE —ZT-1F
THT TET THT THT

North and South America EEMNREEM 3,556 5,349 - =
PRC H 465,788 199,412 1,017 1,422
Hong Kong B 16,631 128,782 10,212 9,993
Singapore EimIbeE 2,233 2,753 - -
488,208 336,296 11,229 11,415
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, available-for-sale MeE: EMBEETBFBEREE QA2 Eam - 7
investments, finance lease receivables and deferred tax assets. HEERE KRR EHERERIELEH
BEE-
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f 13 B 5 e A P

For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

(CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows:

10. B R D BER (#)

FEEFEHR

RERFEUTEREER 2 Wb A
EEANFBBEI0% :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —ET—RF
FHET T T
— Customer A — B 113,431 136,977
— Customer B! =ZRZ 183,022 -
— Customer C' —BFA 127,161 -
— Customer D' —RET! - 54,609
— Customer E! -I=a - 50,821
— Customer F! —BFD - 46,959
il Revenue from trading of goods segment 1 KEEBERMDBZUA
OTHER INCOME 1. Hfbg A
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-RF —T-hF
FTER T T
Continuing operations BERSEXER
Interest income from KB THIEE 2 FEHA
- bank —3R1T 180 829
— overdue trade receivables — B HE 5 WA 503 901
Service income from money lending business & B & B ¥ 7 2 IRFE U A 1,170 -
Government grant (note) BT B (B &E ) 26 22
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BE R
plant and equipment B2 W - 150
Sundry income HEIF A 29 =
1,908 1,902

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, a government grant of
approximately HK$26,000 (2015: HK$22,000) was granted to the Group
in relation to the job credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that the

Group has made CPF contributions in Singapore. The government grant

has been recognised in the same periods in which the expenses were

recognised.

MizF: BE-T—R"E+-A=+—HLEFE"
REB RTINS — B E B 2 S
B S 47 B 4926,000/8 T (=T — A F -
22,0007 7T ) © A< 55 B B [A) T 3K 2 R

RERHK REESZBTHB) - Z K

M3 %3 BY B AR TR B S 2 18 R HA R U BB

SRS

[

et F‘/—_‘
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&i o A S R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

12.LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FAEE
2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ZE-RF —T-hF
FET T
Continuing operations BREEEX%
Loss for the year has been arrived at FREBE TSR T3
after charging: BIERZER:
Staff costs BB KA
— directors’ emoluments (note 13(a)) —EE5ME (F7E13()) 11,520 8,585
— other staff costs —H b E B KA 16,837 12,066
— share-based payment expenses (excluding — — LABR ) 2 155 52
those for directors and consultants) (T"RERESKERN
R 2 ARG XX - 5,340
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R K& Fl 5t 8] (it 3%
(excluding those for directors) (TBERESHZ) 832 743
Total staff costs EERAEER 29,189 26,734
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B AN BN & 1,043 1,138
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% WERZEITE
equipment 3,076 1,597
Write-off of property, plant and equipment i $547 % - B E MR 10 =
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 18 5 58 151 757
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R A X 2 FEK A 412,749 298,311
Share-based payment expenses for mER Rz
consultants ARt S 2 - 3,367
Minimum lease payments under operating  WAZEYEK
leases in respect of office premises and BIEKEHEZ
staff quarters 3 Witk 19,052 11,668
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMNHLEREZ
investments (note 23) B8 (FIsE23) 14,584 =
1 d"f‘;:f:,.
. : ."_\q_-.h"'*
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f 13 B 5 e A P

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Tan Xiangdong, Li Yang and Li Xiaolong are also chief executive of the
Company and their emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by them as chief executive.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2015: four) were Directors whose emoluments
are set out in (a) above. The aggregate emoluments of the
remaining one (2015: one) individual were as follows:

B.EERTHREAZMERES

M < (#)
(a) EERTTHAZMES &)

GEE

BRAR FHERFEETALRRATEREA
O HEEXHBEZME e ERREREET
AR MRt 2 RISPI T 2 2 o

RBEE-T—X"FR-F—AF+=-A
=+—BILEE  UEEEHREXKREME
RGN

(b) BEM=

AEERTERESHEALEERS
EF (T 0F:0%) KE
ZBEHN EX(a)#n - Efr—F
RegAL(ZE—0F:—4A)
ZHEREHIIIT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-XRE —E—hHF

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits Fre REAMmER 1,280 1,360

Share-based payments expense LAR A7 32 15 I 52 - 195
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIEE

contributions R 18 18

1,298 1,573

The emoluments were within the following bands:

BEMEETIILER

2016 2015
No. of No. of
employee employee _'-d_r
ZE—RF —T-RF
BEA™ BB A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7£ £1,500,0007% 7T 1 - _._.."L
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7£ £2,000,0007% 7T - 1 E
— e
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&7 A S R B

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S B.EERITHREAZHNERES

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the Directors and the employees waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments paid by the Group during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

M€ (@)

(b) EEM = ()

REBEE-_ZFT-—R"FEFR_FT—HF
tT-A=t—BLFE A&REY
ENEERAEAHZRHFALIN
P <2 DA TR 5| 15 35 hn BR AN &= @ Bk 4F
REEMBAREZ BENAES
BElBmE - RNEE—_T—RFE-
Z-RF+_A=+—BILFE"
VTEEELEENZXRERE

REEBZEMBE -
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FREFHFE X
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—EB-KRE s T
FTET T
Continuing operations BERSEER
Current tax: E AT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB FH 590 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HRE R EMEN 4,974 1,664
5,564 1,664
Under provision in prior years BETFEREIR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HR B 1 S ATIS - 9
Deferred tax (note 31): REHIE (HEE31)
Current year REEF (3.179) =
2,385 1,673

A
£\

o
t
it

L Epygeet™ |
=
V) .
Far 4y :
A ! b
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2016. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2015 as the Group did not have assessable
profits.

"

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries, except Rongjinda Finance Leasing, is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Rongjinda Finance Leasing is established in Qianhai, Shenzhen,
and the income tax rate applicable to Rongjinda Finance Leasing is
15% pursuant to Commercial Financial Circular No.350/2014 from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2020.

Taxation arising in Singapore and the United State of America is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

14. FTEHBEX (&

REBE-FT-—R"F+-_A=+—HL
FE - BEMNGRRMGEF ERTUEN
Z16.5%t 5 o B RN 5 B 3 4 R AR A
wA MU BERBEE—T—RAF+A
=T BLEFREZBENSHA R
fhae

BB EERE ([REMEH
5 BRI EMSHE 2 BEIEE] - B
MEBAR (ReERMBERERIN) A=
TENF—A—HBZHRE25% °

B ERMERERNRIENEK - iR
B EN KBS $35020145% 0 = F
—NFE—A—BE_ET_ZTF+_A
—t+t—HHEERARBIcERENRE
TS ER15% o

REFMERENBEREEE 2 HIA
BHEMRAER ZBITREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14. RSB (a0
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss F W,\Zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiiﬁiﬁéﬁ:é&ﬁ@
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 2 Wl & P51 2 BR B A 85 18 Bk 20
T

other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
ZE-—RF —T—hF
FTER T
Loss before tax (from continuing operations) K #% Al &8
(REFHBEEER) (16,464) (45,804)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% ¥ A TS FiFt £25%

(2015: 25%) (ZE—HF:25%)

STHEZHIA (4,116) (11,451)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEMBERZZ

tax purpose MR 2 2,354 2,373
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBMA Z

tax purpose MG E (3) (473)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss ARG ER 2T 2 (214) (381)
Tax effect of the exemption granted to a —HPENBATIERER 2

PRC subsidiary M2 (765) (1,120)
Tax effect of share of losses of associates pal (RN = Do 1,793 2,297
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZMEBE 2 HBE 561 6,464
Under provision in prior year AEFEREDTR - 9
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 1E H fth RLEHE R 48 & 2 I B

operating in other jurisdictions RARKATRB R 2 & 2,775 3,955
Income tax expense s i 2,385 1,673
Details of deferred tax are set out in note 31. EIERS EEE S E A KT 5E31 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

i)

Investment in associate classified as held
for sale at 31 December 2016

On 20 October 2016, a repurchase request to the major
shareholder holding approximately 29.92% interest in the
then issued share capital of Pets Best (the “Guarantor”)
was made for 8,300 shares of Pets Best in accordance
with the terms specified in the subscription contract
(the “Subscription Contract”) as set out in note 22. The
abovementioned investment in associate with carrying
amount of approximately HK$10,760,000, which are
expected to be repurchased by the aforesaid major
shareholder of Pets Best at the consideration of approximately
Japanese Yen159,241,000 (equivalent to approximately of
HK$10,910,000) within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period, have been reclassified as asset held for sale
at the date on the repurchase request made. Subsequent to
the end of the reporting period, the repurchase consideration
was settled by him in March 2017.

Discontinued operation

On 17 December 2015, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
in relation to the disposal of entire equity interests in
Graceful Mind Group Limited (“Graceful Mind”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Graceful Mind
Group”) carried out all of the Group’s operation in relation to
manufacturing and sales of coal products, for a consideration
of HK$10,000,000.

15.

AN

pa)

o
&

i)

BRIELERTKILE
¥H>EERAM

R-ZEBE—RE+ZA=+-—
HoEABEHEZHKE LD
ARE

BAAKT E22FTE R =T — N E T+
B=Z+H BEREBEH([REA
#91) MET A 2 {63k 8 #5 55 Pets Best
BB EITRAR 429.92%H
ER AN EZ R E(EH B ES,300
f&Pets Bestf&n 2 Exke il BRE
{E#710,760,000/8 7T 2 I Bt & A &)
ZREEHERFEHRE =@
A A _EiiPets Bestz = ERRH IR
KRB #7159,241,0008 7T (FBZER 4
10,910,000/ 7t ) B Bl + 37 B A {EH
BOERERASHOBEARBELE
BE -NEHR% BEREEH
ZaBAB=TR=F—tF=H
KAt o

ERILEREXH

R-ZZE—AFE+-A++H KQT
H—ZBVE=TREEARAR
EWNBRARKEEEREERAA ([1
Bl EREMBARGEE#E
£@ | ETASEMBEBREER
HERKERZ L&) 2 25T
B & K& %10,000,000%
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &;% =%

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 15.°
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATION (CONTINUED)

NFE+—A=+—HIFFE

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Graceful Mind
Group as at 31 December 2015, which were presented as
assets and liabilities associated with assets classified as held
for sale respectively in the consolidated statement of financial

position, were as follows:

HEEEBER_ZTZ—RF+=HA
=t+t—AZEENERE (RGEY
BMRAKAD B2 BEDER
FiFLEEEMBCEERAR)
ZEBDEMT :

31 December

2015
HK$'000
TR
+=ZA=+—8
T T
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB k& 2,891
Prepaid lease payments, classified as DERIERBDEEZ
non-current assets ERES 11,226
Goodwill g 3
Prepaid lease payments, classified as current DEARBEEZ
assets EfEe 264
Inventories FE 10,327
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE W 518 7,058
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 2,870
Total assets classified as held for sale DERFELECEERE 34,636
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H b e 58 19,721
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder of Bt 8 & ISR AR IR R
a subsidiary B 29,609
Tax liabilities RIBEE 5,066
Total liabilities associated with assets classified fE5 4 AFEHEEERH
as held for sale “EE 54,396
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OPERATION (CONTINUED)

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued)

The disposal was completed on 24 March 2016, on which
date control of Graceful Mind was passed to the acquirer.
Following the disposal of Graceful Mind, the Group
discontinued its operation in manufacture and sale of coal

15.

TERBELEREKRILE
EERCEERERS &)

i) CRIEEEERE (2

HEEFBERZ-ZZT—X"F=A
— B FER  REx B TR Z
REBETREBS RHERER
& AEEDKRIEESEREER
IREE AR 2 75

products.
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RE —ET—hF
THExT T T
Loss for the period/year HiRFE 2 EE (740) (3,514)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HEHEERIELEER 2
operation (note 34) gz (FI7E34) 8,539 -
Profit (loss) for the period/year from ERIMEEEREEY
discontinued operation B EEHA (EHE) 7,799 (3,514)
i
= """ﬂ‘*&
=
o — =
/«' al e =
=R
- "‘-‘/‘_.-..:I .‘.._;;\"\:"-:- :
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 5. 788X FHERCRLE
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED EXBEERER @)
OPERATION (CONTINUED)

ii) Discontinued operation (Continued) i) ERLEBEER (&)
The loss in relation to manufacture and sale of coal segment BE-ZZE—AR"E—HA—HB&E=ZZT—~X
for the period from 1 January 2016 to 23 March 2016 and FZA-t=HILHERBE=Z
the year ended 31 December 2015, which have been included —hAF+-A=1+—HILFE BH
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HERFEERRI I 2EER(HE
comprehensive income, were as follows: FFAGZEERREMEEKER)
T
Period ended Year ended
23 March 31 December
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
BZE H=E
—E-RF —T—RF
=BA=+=H +=ZA=+—H
LEHA RS IEFE
TER T T
Revenue Y & - =
Other income H A - 1
Administrative and other expenses TR EAME A (403) (2,032)
Finance cost A& B AN (337) (1,483)
Loss before tax R 6 Bl S 18 (740) (3,514)
Income tax P15 3% - =
Loss for the period/year AR FE ke (740) (3,514)
Loss for the period/year from BUT FE4h
discontinued operation ERIEREEK 2
attributable to: Bl EEEE:
— owners of the Company S WAGIE F =N (244) (1,214)
— non-controlling interest — IR A (496) (2,300)
(740) (3,514)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
15. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 5. 7 EBFEHERERLER
HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED EXB2EEREREW
OPERATION (CONTINUED)
ii) Discontinued operation (Continued) i) ERIELEER (&)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation included the KEERIEKEEB 2 FEEBEAD
following: T
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
ZE-XKF —T-RF
FTER T
Depreciation of property, M WE k&
plant and equipment e 256 1,168
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment & (< 7 4 14 § 55 276
Staff costs & 8 AR 91 419
During the period from 1 January 2016 to 23 March 2016, —E—R"FE—-AR—HEZZ—RN
Graceful Mind Group recorded net cash outflows from F=A-+=HILtHME KEKEAR
operating activities of approximately HK$1,000 (contributed S EERSIR & KT EEAY 1,000
in 2015: HK$4,000) and made no contribution to cash B (ZE=—RFER :4,000%7T)
flows in respect of investing activity (2015: HK$1,000) and R EREEESH(ZE—RF:
financing activities (2015: nil). The carrying amounts of the 1,0008 ) RBEEBH (=T —H
assets and liabilities of the Graceful Mind Group at the date F EIELRCREAR KRS
of disposal are disclosed in note 34. BEREEERACEENRBEZER
B BRI FE34
16. DIVIDEND 16..18 B
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 ARRREZE-_ZE—RF+_A=1+—
December 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end B IEFE IR KBRS - B
of the reporting period (2015: nil). B R HA R DA ZR I B R AE IR B (=
T—hFE)-
C
»
- ""’Fﬁ‘*&
s
e, £
-:'-"-a"_‘.l‘-l-_‘ "I . ‘r.‘;:;;::‘- :
h‘.‘fl/—-—— _-\‘I\rrin'
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

17. BREE
BFERCRILEEEEK

AAFEE A FRER RIS H
18 TR IR TR 8

17.LOSS PER SHARE
For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—REF —ET—hF
FTET FHEIT
Loss 8
Loss for the purpose of basic and HERERREEEE
diluted loss per share s 2 &8
(loss for the year attributable (RRFEIHE A
to owners of the Company) B EAEER) (10,540) (48,686)
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
—E-RF —T—RF
F B F A&
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of HERERNREEHE
ordinary shares for the purpose of s 2 EBAR
basic and diluted loss per share hHE 19 8 7,084,238 4,781,006

The computation of diluted
exercise of the Company’s
prices of those options were
for both 2016 and 2015.

2 -

-
R =,
" - i
{ =ity
¥~ = ;

-
f i
, -

-
-

loss per share does not assume the
share options because the exercise
higher than the average market price

REIE—RNELR-E—AFREFE
HRARAIBREZITEESR T
TE T ESRES BRI ERRK
ZEEREREITE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
17.LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 17. 8REE =)
For continuing operations BEKEXK
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from RAREB NEERBELEXHEERE
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company R ESE R T TR A T BURRT & -
is based on the following data:
Loss figures are calculated as follows: ERHEFHENT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
—g-xF —T-5%
FExT FABT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AR &HEA AFEN,
the Company FAEE (10,540) (48,686)
Less: N
(Profit) loss for the year from ERIFEEEFFEN
discontinued operations Cam A B8 (8,295) 1,214
Loss for the purpose of basic and MFELCEED
diluted loss per share from BREARLEEERE
continuing operations & 2 &8 (18,835) (47,472)
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for FrA 5 &8 Xt & IR E AN K 58 &S
both basic and diluted loss per share. B EAER -
From discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation ERIEREEBEGRERARESRN A
is HKO0.12 cents per share (2015: loss per share of HK0.03 cents), FR012BIW (== — R F : FREE
based on the profit for the year from the discontinued operation 0.037% 1) - HIBIZEE R I & ETFEF
of HK$8,295,000 (2015: loss for the year HK$1,214,000) and the % 418,295,000 T (ZE—H%F : F
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per A 1E1,214,0008 L) & E X5t & K
share. EARREEERF 2O EMEE -
C
b
=X
2P
ekl
L ~ e
o ol L
E —— (;‘.‘1' ?%!14
E — "__/_—~—_-—: _l\’_‘\ “L4
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18.M3% MERZRE

Furniture
Plant and and Office Motor Leasehold
Buildings machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles  improvement Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HBEREE HAREE  BOAERG RE HENERH @t
TERL TET TR TR Thn Thn TEL
CosT A
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-F-H 47 881 11,147 434 282 6,783 - 66,527
Exchange realignment R AR (2,532) (589) 8) (10) (176) - (3,315)
Additions RE - - 74 272 8,048 477 8,871
Reclassified as assets of a ENNBAIEARIELEL
disposal group classified HEEE BE
as held for sale (note 15(ii) ~ (B&E15i)) (45,349) (10,558) (146) = (2,025) - (58,078)
Disposals e - - - - (1,309) = (1,309)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-1F
1 January 2016 TZA=t-8Ek
—“F-xF-f-H = = 354 544 11,321 477 12,696
Exchange realignment R AR - - - (5) (116) - (121)
Additions RE - - 49 317 2,608 - 2,974
Write-off WA - - (17) ) - - (20)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-~F
T-R=t-H - - 386 853 13813 477 15,529
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2 HER
AND IMPAIRMENT FifE
At 1 January 2015 R-Z2-1%-A-H 45,405 10,556 100 124 2,731 - 58,916
Exchange realignment B R A% 2412 (574) ) &) (92) - (3,093)
Provided for the year EREE 331 369 132 9% 1,720 119 2,765
Reclassified as assets of a ENABRANBARELEL
disposal group classified as  HESBZAE
held for sale (note 15(ii)) (B &E15(i)) (43,324) (10,351) (114) - (1,398) - (55,187)
Disposals k3 = = = = (1,309) = (1,309)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-1F
1 January 2016 TZHA=+-Rk
“5-7F-A-H - - m 210 1,652 119 2,092
Exchange realignment B R HE - = = (1) (46) = (47)
Provided for the year ENEE - - 124 210 2,583 159 3,076
Write-off i - - (8) 2 - = (10)
At 31 December 2016 AZE-1F
+-f=1-H - - 221 417 4,189 278 5111
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AF
+=-R=+-H = - 159 436 9,624 199 10,418
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
+-A=1-H - - 243 334 9,669 358 10,604
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per
annum:

Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 25 years
10%

Buildings

Property, plant and machinery

10% — 33.33%

10% — 20%

16.67% — 33.33%

Over the term of the lease or three

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvement
years, whichever is shorter

As at 31 December 2015, the building ownership certificates of all
buildings situated in the PRC under medium lease have not been
granted by relevant government authorities with the aggregate
carrying values of approximately HK$2,025,000. In the opinion
of the Directors based on the advice from the legal adviser, the
absence of building ownership certificates to these buildings
does not impair the value of the relevant buildings to the Group.
The related building was classified as assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors performed a review of the
recoverable amount of the manufacture and sale of coal operation
based on the fair value less cost of disposal, determined based
on the consideration payable upon disposal of the manufacture
and sale of coal operation and no impairment loss was considered
necessary. Further details of the disposal are set out in notes 15(ii)
and 34.

18. % BERSKE®

BiimE - -BEERFEREREERE
BRI T A e AERRFRARIFTE

B3 HEFHs —+REF
(ABEE BE)

Y BB 10%

R i 2%

RERREE 10% — 33.33%

WRERME 10% — 20%

E 16.67% - 33.33%

HEMERE HEFHN=F

(ABEE RAE)

R-EB-—RAFE+-A=+—8 BEK
FEBFI M AR H BT A R EiZH
MR BECEF 2B EMR -
H 488K M (4 52,025,000/ 7T ° 1B &
FRBRER BEERE AEIRZE
BF2UEMBEMRTESAEEE
BEFEERE - R-_ZT—AF+-A
=1+—H - HEEFIBAESBEARE
HEZHESEB ZEE-

R-ZBE—RAFE+=-A=+—8 EF
BATFERENHERREERBEE
EBBENREETE 2 HEKANER
Wk EEREEER 2 Al R E 58I
REDAERAREESE HEEE2E
— S BEH R M FE15() &34 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 19. &€
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-REF e
FTHET FiB T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HImEMEL 29T :
Current asset mENE E - 264
Non-current asset FEMENE E - 11,226
- 11,490
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group BN BADERBELEZ
classified as held for sale (note 15(ii)) HEEEZ&E (MFE1560)) - (11,490)
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s prepaid lease payment RZE—RAF+=—A=+—8 F&5H
represented a medium term lease land in the PRC with the ZTANHEE MR E R ERA -
carrying amount of approximately HK$11,490,000. The prepaid BRE{EAI 411,490,000 7T - FA FA &
lease payment has been reclassified as assets of a disposal group EEMHERIEARELEZEE
classified as held for sale (note 15(ii)). SE 2 &EE (MFE1530)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NF 1+ = H=+—HIFEZF
20. INTANGIBLE ASSET 0.E&FEE
License
HK$'000
FHATT
COST AND CARRYING VALUE B K R EE
At 1 January 2015 R=ZF—hF—A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35) U i — M 8 A 7] (BIEE35) 811
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and RZZE—AF+_HA=+—8"
31 December 2016 —E-R"E-A—Ak
—E-RE+ZA=+—8H 811
The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every year MR 2 B F R E - B R LARIERK
at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group RNGFEEH BEERBAEEHBSRHE
would renew the license continuously and has the ability to do RERER WHEBLE N AEEE
so. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market, BEDETZENE BEERTHT
competitive and environmental trends, and brand extension MG HERREBE URnE
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group, BAKS ZEMRZFRREHLE
which supports that the license has no foreseeable limit to the TE AR il - 42 f 5% b8 RR PR il 2 AR 75 7]
period over which the provision of services restricted by license are REFHBMAREETREERE
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group. FEE o
As a result, the license is considered by the management of the Hit  AEEEEERSZEREFE
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to REEMFH AATEHZERAERIZ
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will not be HIBSRAFRE - R AG T EHE -
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it BEEEGRAFHEEERAAR INE
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an F 8 B A B A R (E B ORI B EDR
indication that it may be impaired. (e
At 31 December 2016, management of the Group determines that RZE—RFTZA=1T—H8 K&H
there are no impairments of the cash-generating unit containing EEEETERSHEAEERGFRAFH
the license with indefinite useful life. FR AR 2 TR B A B N M ER R (E o
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit containing the BEERrHeEABRM 2 AINE S _
license is determined on a value in use calculation. Management HIIZRATECEREEETE A5 .\
of the Group prepared a cash flow forecast based on financial EEREERNKEREA ERFHM b~
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and MBRBEFEHRERERR  RRE - i %
discount rate of 16.59% (2015: 16.59%). The forecast for the 516.59% (ZEFE —FHF:16.59% ) ° = 3
budgeted period was based on the approved loan agreement TEE HARE 2 SR T E R R s B BARIE] = Py
entered before the reporting date. Management believes that any SN ZEBEERBEMIEL - BIEEAE
reasonably possible change in the discount rate would not cause F BBRE7AANEEAEESHETS U
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit containing a BYpeMReReELEMZRE S
license to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating BERARCELESEN 2 KBS - =
e —
unit. K /,-—"" . J__:-
_‘ a ..-"'n
| B
E . ‘,_.‘/'_"—-1 E .l\’_‘\ T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #2 =& —

21.

22.

NF+—A=+—HIFFE

GOODWILL 21. B8
HK$'000
T T
CosT ﬁm
1 January 2015 R=ZFE—RAF—H—H 36,729
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group E%ﬁ’“* BOBEARELEZ
classified as held for sale (note 15(ii)) HESE 2 &E (MEE15G)) (36,729)
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and RZFE—RAF+=A=+—8"
31 December 2016 —E—RE—A—BR
—E-RE+TZHA=+—H =
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2015 R=ZF—AF—HA—H 36,729
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group BN BANPEARBELEZ
classified as held for sale (note 15(ii)) HESEZEE (MEE15G)) (36,729)

At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016
and 31 December 2016

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

R-—ZT—ARFE+-_A=+—8"

—E-RF-A—HK

—E-R"E+t=ZA=+—H
BRHEE
R-ZE—AR"F+_-_A=+—H

—HR&E+=-A=+—8”

Goodwill from acquisition of Suntech Worldwide Limited
(“Suntech”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Suntech Group”) by Graceful Mind was allocated to the Group's
cash generating unit of manufacture and sale of coal. The goodwill
has been reclassified to the assets of a disposal group classified

?’E%W%T—%—i%ﬁﬁ@ _7 (M5#1)
FENBAR (fiE[FEEE])EE
ZHEEE DR m%.%i&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RZBESELBU -BEEEFSER
DERFIFHEZHERBEZEE &

as held for sale and the disposal was completed in March 2016, HEERZZ—A"F=ZAREK FEHE
details are set out in notes 15(ii) and 34. & B 5151 234 °
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 2. RBENT Z LS
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T — XE — R4
FHET :F/%TE
Costs of investment in associates RN B = 09N 123,507 111,553
Share of post-acquisition losses and D IEUIE 1R B R K&
other comprehensive expenses Hih 2w (27,604) (11,694)
95,903 99,859
Reclassified as assets classified as held for ENDBEADEABIELHEZ
sale (note 15(i)) & E (MIsE150)) (10,760) =
85,143 99,859
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REtE QT 2= (m)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interests in the following N /_¢‘|‘ A=+—H AX&£E
associates: HUATHE AR ER
Proportion of ownership
interests or participating
Country of shares and voting power
Name of entity Form of entity incorporation Class of shares held held by the Group Principal activity
rEERE
BAEREED
ERER ERS B AEER KERHER SERRRREEZLA  TEEH
2016 2015
“E-xE  CZE-1E
East Favor Global Investment Incorporated The British Ordinary 49% 49% Investment holding
Limited (“East Favor”) (note i) Virgin Islands
RERFREARAR AL AL ERRAHS LRk REER
([RE]) (Wuﬂ)
HK CPV Green Energy Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 49% 49% Investment holding
BERKIRARAR AL AL &k LRk REER
CPV Green Energy Technology Foreign-investment ~ PRC Ordinary 49% 49% Research and development of
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* enterprises solar power products, solar

photovoltaic products and
semiconductor

BRFRERR (RN ARRR  SHERELR lz LRk AEaER AREERERR
FERHE
Qinghai CPV Green Energy Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered Capital 41% 41% Research and development,
Co. Limited* manufacture and sale of solar

power module products and
the operation of photovoltaic
power plants in the PRC

EEZARMMRARAA Bntk e AR RPEREAGHERERT
B AERBENARLRES
Qinghai Taima CPV Green Domestic enterprise  PRC Registered Capital 29% 29% Manufacturing of photovoltaic
Energy Technology Co., Limited* power generation system,

and the construction,
operation and management
of photovoltaic power plants

in the PRC :
EERERAMARNEERAT HAG) Gz HEMER RPEEERREEZREEN .

REREEE B 2ER E~

EE =

R 3 f}:
Pets Best (note ii) Incorporated Japan Registered Capital 14.98% - Provision of pets insurance —_

services in Japan T,
Pets Best ( ffzFi) Fialif v BA AR REARERNRE RS
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * B ATEEMER - ..,‘“:



166

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
i A R P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

& —
2 -
%,
L =ity
v _— = ;
=
j -
, =
=
o

Notes:

On 20 April 2015, Kang Yong International Limited (“Kang Yong”), a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a subscription agreement with East
Favor in which Kang Yong has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 9,608
new shares at the consideration of HK$110,250,000 with transaction
cost of approximately HK$1,303,000. East Favor, through its subsidiaries,
engaged in the business of manufacturing photovoltaic power generation
system and construction, operation and management of photovoltaic
power plants in the PRC. The subscription was completed on 11 June 2015
and East Favor was an associate of the Group and has been accounted for

using equity method.

On 26 February 2016, Esteem Sun Limited (“Esteem Sun”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the Subscription Contract with
Pets Best, a company incorporated in Japan with limited liability, pursuant
to which Esteem Sun agreed to subscribe for 8,300 shares of Pets Best,
representing 14.98% equity interest in Pets Best (the “Subscription”),
at the consideration of Japanese Yen144,154,400, equivalent to
approximately HK$9,935,000. The transaction cost was approximately
HK$2,019,000.

The subscription was completed on 1 March 2016. Since the Group has
designated a person appointed as a director in the board of directors of
Pets Best under the provisions stated in the Subscription Contract, the
Group is considered to have ability to exercise significant influence over
Pets Best. Pets Best was then considered as an associate of the Group and

has been accounted for using equity method.

Subject to certain conditions specified in the Subscription Contract, Esteem
Sun has an option (the “Put Option”) to request the Guarantor to purchase
back Esteem Sun’s shareholding in Pets Best at a pre-determined price
based on a formula. By a notice dated 20 October 2016, Esteem Sun

exercised the Put Option.

The abovementioned investment in associate, which are expected to be
repurchased by the Guarantor within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period, have been reclassified as assets held for sale at the date
on the repurchase request made, and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position as disclosed in note 15(i). The

disposal was subsequently completed in March 2017.

22. RBtE R T 2R (8)

B 5

i) R-ZE—RFENB-+H AEEZHBE
REIBKBEBRARAR ([FEKk])EBREIT
SNRERE BRI BKERKERE
9,608/ ¥ A% 1 * 1X.{8 /110,250,000 JT *
RSB 541,303,000 Lo RiEFEBE
MEARERRENEAARBERFREEAR

BB SRS

EHEOR-ZE—REANA+—A%K  RiE

RAEEZIE N REBRAEREAR

RRBEI 2 EF

i)y R-ZE—RE-_A-+XAB KXATN2EW
BAREFARAE ([#3]) EPets Best
(—FHRBARFMELZERRAR)ETL
REAK R H ¥R EREPets BestZ
8,300/% i 15 (1B M Pets BestZ 14.98%M%
) ([REEFEHE])  KER144,154,400H
(1B 1A 499,935,000/ 70) * R KA B

#92,019,000% 7T °

REZEBEER=_TE—"F=A—HBZ=K H
RAEEEIRIERIES K AT Z &R
—BRANTHERT APetsBestEER 2 E S -

77 Bt Pets Best# iR RAKE ZHE A

R EEREEEAR-

REREANITAZE THRME M A%
(IREHE BERERARREEEZE
&5+ 875 =UH8 O] 151 ¥ 7 Pets Best 2 fR#% < 3%
NETAZ+TRZBE ®

BAMAE-T—
AT R B -

AANFEE15() AT IR TR - BN E S AR 2 R
ERBENMERRR T —EAABER
ABE RMEHBRZEREAEEHRHE
RFEHEEE  IRNRAFBRARAE
B2 - HEFHRBERER_F—LF=A4

FERK ©



HZEEEZERERDR 2016F ], 167

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 B S AR B BE
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. REtE QT 2= (m)
The summarised financial information in respect of an associate, BRARNEEE NSRRI RE &AM
East Favor and its subsidiaries, which is material to the Group, is B AR W E R ZE A T 3 o 54
set out below. The associate is accounted for using equity method. ERBIEAERAARK
East Favor and its subsidiaries RERHEKEAT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T-RF
FHT FHB T
Current assets B E E 195,208 309,057
Non-current assets SERMBEE 158,691 104,738
Current liabilities VEA= R (203,074) (238,961)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (28,496) (22,473)

Year ended 11 June 2015 to

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B=E —T—hEF
—E-x"F¥ K~A+—HE
+=A=+—H —T—RfF
LtFE +ZH=+—H
FTET T
Revenue for the year/period FE/HEz B 34,375 37,933
Loss for the year/period FE/HPEZEE (21,160) (18,753)
Other comprehensive expense FE/HHEzEMEESH
for the year/period (13,400) (5,112)
Total comprehensive expense FE/HHEzBAZEL S
for the year/period (34,560) (23,865)
C
»
. ¥
s
. B i :-.;_
&7l NF
E . r__/_—~ E _f_'—\- “T
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
East Favor and its subsidiaries (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of an associate,
East Favor and its subsidiaries, which is material to the Group, is
set out below. The associate is accounted for using equity method.

The reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented above to the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate is set out below:

22. REBERNT 2R (8)
REREMWEB XA (&)

SRS Y PR T E
BAAZHBEREERRTX - %W
EPE gl S VYN

DA 2 5 2 B 7 A R B BB A
A2 s REE 2 HERSIMT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-REF e

FHET T T

Net assets of the associate BERNRIZEESFE 122,329 152,361
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRRERERBARZ

interest in East Favor and its subsidiaries B R 2 LA 49% 49%

Goodwill B 25,202 25,202

Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEERREZ E=KREE
in East Favor 85,143 99,859
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 22. RBE QT 2 & (8)
The financial information and carrying amount of the Group's REBREE S N E] (D E{E R ERRERA
interest in an associate that is not individually material and is EaEANR) w2 M ER RIREES
accounted for using the equity method are set out below: HIEAT
1 March 2016 Year ended
to 20 October 31 December
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XF H=E
=A—HZE —ET—RF
ZEB-XRE +tZA=+—H
+A=+8 EFE
FTET FHIT
The Group's share of loss for the period/year 7N B f& (5 83/, F € 518 (1,242) N/A 3 A
The Group's share of other comprehensive — ZN& H fE(L HIfE,F &
income for period/year H 2wl A 48 N/AT i FB
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBELEBEFE
expense for period/year BEESZH (1,194) N/A 7 i 3
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-XF —T—RF
TR FH&T
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in 7S5 [E 5 — i
an immaterial associate classified as held NEXREE QR ZREE
for sale (DERFELE) 10,760 N/A 738 F
i
»
= X
s
A e "‘---.,_:\' ‘,E'
ST N
'_: — (i.‘" %L:‘Lq
E . r__/——~ 5 2 _f_‘-\,— “L4
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

23. At HERE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RF —ET—RF
F&T FABT
Equity instruments KRAEATH
Listed equity investment in London, RiREE EmRAIRE -
at fair value (note i) BAFEE (M) 6,287 8,977
Unlisted investments in funds, FEMESKE -
at fair value (note ii) BAFEE (MaEii) - 35,285
6,287 44,262
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, RBEBRIIELTRAES
at cost (note iii) RACAEHE (B EEiii ) 38,250 38,250
Less: impairment losses recognised B EERZBEEE (30,750) (30,750)
7,500 7,500
13,787 51,762

Notes:

The Group's listed equity investment represented 10.05% (2015: 11.34%)
equity interest in a company listed in Alternative Investment Market of
London Stock Exchange. The listed equity investment is measured at fair
value and is classified as level 1 fair value measurement (see note 8). Fair
value loss of the investment approximately HK$2,690,000 (2015: gain of
HK$2,238,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The unlisted investments in funds are measured at fair value and are
classified as level 2 fair value measurement (see note 8). Fair value
loss of the investments approximately HK$16,369,000 (2015: loss of
HK$3,588,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group redeemed the
unlisted investments in funds with a carrying amount of HK$18,916,000,
which had been measured at fair value immediately before the disposal.
Upon the redemption, the accumulated fair value loss of HK$14,584,000
was reclassified from reserve to profit or loss for the current year.

AEEZ FTRAREIERAEFR IS
BIREMIS ETRAIFE10.05%& % (=
T—AF:11.34%) o ETRABZEARTFE
B ERABEAE—BAFENE (R
8) HE-T—R"F+-A=+—HBILF
B 8E 2 AFEEEX2,690,00047T (=
T—FR4F 252,238,000/ 7T ) R E M2 E
WS TR o

FEMESRANATEIERSEARE
“HATEHNE (RES) HE_T X
F+-A=+—RALEE BREZAFHE
&5 184916,369,000/8 7T (Z T — A F : 18
3,588,000/ 7T ) I H ) 2 H Y 25 e R

BE-Z—A"F+-A=+—BLFE &
& EE R REE 418,916,000 7T 2 3F £
MESRE HRBELENERATE
2 -REE%  REt A TF(ERE1814,584,000
BLTERAFEEREENHDREERZN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

iii)

In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB") (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which is equivalent to 2.53%
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of

BBJB.

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC with its H shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Board”). The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share
capital issued by BBJB when it was initially listed on the GEM Board in
2000. According to the Company Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares
were not transferable within three years from the date of incorporation of
BBJB on 29 March 2000. In the absence of active market, the Promoters’
Shares are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be

measured reliably.

In prior years, the Directors were of the opinion that the recoverable
amount of the available-for-sale investments was significantly below its
original cost, an impairment loss of HK$30,750,000 was recognised in
profit or loss. At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of available-for-
sale investments of approximately HK$7,500,000 (2015: HK$7,500,000),
net of impairment loss was available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$30,750,000 (2015: HK$30,750,000). No impairment was recognised
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

f

iii)

ar

23. A HERE (&)

(&)

R-ZZE_F AEEFERHKE—H2
E M B A 7] A38,250,0007% ;LA BB A
30,000,0008% 3t RIL A S BERFEHERNE
BRAR ([EAFR]) EREAEBARK1T
ZER ARG ([BERARSG]) - BERI
AEREBEITRALHE (BFEHRRE-EA
B 15 )2.53% °

EREERNFEEMAZZBNERE
EAR - HHRAERB R AT AR ([RIZR])
E - BRARMDABUEATSNR_ZTTEF
BRERIZER EMEHITZIEEMARA R
BREARE BRARDBEILRERIR =
EETE=-A -+ NABAEMKRILEF=F
AT EEZE - ANRZERT S HRAR
DR BREHRBRARBETE AR
R E[ABEAKR EERREER EH
AABEERARNZATE

RBEFE BEERA AIHBEREY
A E S ERERERKA  MEREBEZR
A 7 52 R (B 85 1830,750,0008 JC o R = F
—ANE+TZA=Z+— A AHEEREY
B8R T {8 49 57,500,000/ 7T (=T — A F:
7,500,000/ 7T ) - & A B B 7] ¢ E 1%
& 2 M {EEE84930,750,0008 T (=T —H
£ :30,750,0008 L) - BE-_ZE—R"FR
—E-AG+-A=1+-—BILEE HER
R E ©
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24. B EHE IR
The finance leases are secured by the motor vehicles and other BMERENTEREMEE RIS (E
plant and machinery. All interest rates inherent in the leases are ER -MHE A ER T EIZHALD R
fixed at the contract date over the lease terms. REABHERE-
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —ET—A8F
FHET T T
Finance lease receivables FEUN Bl & M & A 256,034 176,751
Less: allowance for impairment W FE N ELE A SR (B R
of finance lease receivables (22,184) =
Finance lease receivables, net JE R ETHE FUA - F & 233,850 176,751
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEERDNA
- Non-current assets —JEMBEE 37.410 =
— Current assets —REEE 196,440 176,751
233,850 176,751

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

BEAEMR BEAENAZERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZB-R"Ff "E-IFf ZB-A"F _"T-IF
TET THET TET THT
Finance lease receivables comprise: BB EHEZER T
Within one year —FR 204,480 180,242 196,440 176,751
After one year but within —FRERBFR
two years 31,746 — 30,263 —
After two years but within MEREREEFR
five years 7,303 - 7,147 -
243,529 180,242 233,850 176,751
Less: unearned interest income  Ji: ABIF B A (9,679) (3,491) - =

Present value of minimum lease EURERENZZHE
payment receivables 233,850 176,751 233,850 176,751
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases range from
5.1% to 6% per annum. As at 31 December 2016, finance lease
receivables are secured over the plant and machinery leased.

Before accepting any finance lease arrangement, the Group
assesses the financial strength of the lessee and considers the
credit limit granted to the lessee. In addition, the Group may
request for the guarantor with strong financial status where
necessary.

As at 31
approximately RMB20,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$22,334,000 (2015: approximately RMB23,400,000, equivalent
to approximately HK$27,940,000) was past due. Included in
the carrying amount of the above finance lease receivables as

December 2016, finance lease receivables of

at 31 December 2016 is an individually impaired receivable of
approximately RMB18,981,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$22,184,000 which impairment was made due to a customer’s
default in payment. The Group has taken legal actions against this
customer and considered the legal opinion from an independent
legal adviser during impairment assessment. Management closely
monitors the credit quality of finance lease receivables and
considers the finance lease receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired relate to finance lessees for whom there was no
recent history of default. As at 31 December 2016, the age of the
finance lease receivables was within two years (2015: within one
year) based on the effective dates of the relevant lease contracts.

24 EWWmEHEERE (8

LM EHEZEREMENFS51%E
6% R-_ZE— X "F+-_A=+—H8 &

YEt B EFORAR S M H B R F K
o

ERXEMREHERHN A5ES
AHEERBAZHBEE S U EBR T &
ABEAZEERE SO B E K
SEAEERRHABRETBAR
ZHERAC

R_E—RF+_A=1+—8 EKHE
FAERIBELH A RH20,000,0007T (FHER
#922,334,000% ) (ZE—HF A A
[R#23,400,0007T (#HE 7 4927,940,000
BIL) )EBMB-R_T—X"F+_A
=+—H LR ERERIE R
EESEERNREZ ERREHOARE
18,981,0007T (#H 55 R 422,184,000/
U0 ZBETE— &R FE R A AT
B AEEBEHZBEPHEUVEETHRR
BB G E B R BB ARER 2 A2
ER-BEERYEEEKMERSERE
ZIEEERWR AR PINEREZ B
BRE R E B R BRI R RELER 2
BEEARBA - R_Z—RNFE+=_A=1+—
B REMABEAESHZEKRBEH Bl
BMERERBEZRRAMNFAN (ZE—H
F:—FRN) -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. EG R H M EWFKIA

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF i

F&T FABT

Trade receivables B 5 WG IE 129,260 68,472
Less: allowance for impairment of trade BB S W GRIR R E B

receivables (1,449) (1,449)

Trade receivables, net 5 EWFTEF5E 127,811 67,023

Prepayments SELNE S 1,702 1,501

Deposits and other receivables & & H b R U RIR 4,054 3,830

133,567 72,354

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging
from 30 days to 180 days (2015: 30 days to 180 days) to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debt) presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition date.

REBRTFTEESGREF 2 FHAEERS
—RBNF30EHE180B (T —H&F:
308 =180H ) 2l A N AR REH
RO AESEREERAHS) KREEH
B2 2 EURE 5708 (B Mk RERE
1) BRER D 4T ©

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-RE —E—AF

FE&T T T

0-30 days 0%30H 1,506 22,452
31-60 days 31260H 58,472 360
61-90 days 61290H 65,697 44,195
Over 90 days 1m0 H 2,136 16
Trade receivables B 5 e IE 127,811 67,023

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$4,146,000
(2015: HK$16,000) which were past due at the end of the
reporting period and for which the Group has not provided for
doubtful debt. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Subsequent to the balance sheet date approximately
HK$4,020,000 of the past due balances were settled.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

AEBE S EWFIEEHT BIERRE
B4 754,146,000 L (ZZE— R F:
16,0007 70 ) 2 FE U BR 3 - IR R 45 BB R
Ea BAEEY EH R IRE
o ANEBWERZSEHITH EME
Y - A4 E B HATE - 494,020,000/ 7T
BEA SRR T BT o

REBBPTERBEZE S EERES R
MHY BRRRLRHEZZREP -
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired based on the invoice date at the end of reporting date,
which approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as
follow:

5. EZ R EMEWEIE &)

RESRESHR (HAEERaZHERA
H)zBEZAHCAREEREZES
FEWRIR AR B AT AN T -

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-RF —FTRF

FHET FHET

31-60 days 31&260H 1,005 -
61-90 days 61£290H 1,005 -
Over 90 days HBE90H 2,136 16
4,146 16

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables were as follows:

EAHEEREL B S RKFIRY &
ZEARNAEBAEBRFEGRERZE
VEP -RRBELR BEEMRE
MR EEERTBEAES Z5EH
DR A 2B E - BEF I FE
ERETHRBL(E RS

BHRBFEZREBREZSWT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-REF —ET—hEF

FExT FET

1 January —H—H 1,449 3,602
Reclassified to the assets of a disposal ENOBRAIBERBELEEZ

group classified as held for sale HEEEZEE - (2,038)

Exchange realignment PE W 53 - (115)

31 December +=—_HA=+—H 1,449 1,449

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on
a regular basis.

EZRMEMH LA AEEERA—E
A EERP 2 EEE R  WER]
BEPZEERB -BEFPZEERBTIE
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25.

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's trade receivables
are determined individually whether they are impaired. The
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on the credit
history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. An accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,449,000 (2015: HK$1,449,000) has been recognised as at 31
December 2016.

25.

B 5 Kk H At B FRIE ()

REREB R AL EIZER B RR
ERABE S EWRKIEETE BRME-.
BEREREZERRBERRETFZ
EE s (875w e R SFE) &
ERITNER- N _T—NE+ - A
=+—H ZE5EKFEBREREE
%) 51,449,000 L (ZFE— A F:
1,449,00078 7T ) B HER °

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 26 FEXZKRE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XE —Z—hF
FTET T T
Held for trading investments: BREXFHKRE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —RNEAB LM ZBRATB S 115,266 232,686

Held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value. The fair
value of the listed securities has been determined by reference
to published price quotations in active markets. Gain on fair
value change of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$29,443,000 (2015: loss of approximately HK$47,685,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed
of certain listed securities and realised gain on held for
trading investments of approximately HK$1,529,000 (2015:
HK$35,027,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of approximately HK$54,000 (2015: HK$55,000)
was pledged by the Group for the purpose of issuing a guarantee
by the bank to a service provider for security against default
payment as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. The pledged bank
deposit carried at fixed interest rate of 0.25% per annum for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

27.

BIERXR SR ERATEY R ETESH
ZATFEDNESEFZRNSZERR®
BEF - H#HE2E-_ZT—FFt+t-_A=1+—
HIEFEEREBERBERZBERSE
BENFEED 2 Wk 429,443,000
T (ZZF— R F : EE 447,685,000
TT) °

RBEE-E—XR"F+-_A=+—801
FE-AEBELHEETLEMES U#
REFER HIEE W= #1,529,0007 7T

—ZT— A4 35,027,000 T) * WK

BaRER-

EEFRITER

RZE—RER_ZE—HEFE+=A
=t+— B ASEEEMBITFERL
54,000/ 70 (= F — A 4 : 55,0008
JL) A AIRITR R EE B E ST
HKORZEMELER - BEZT—ARF
FE—ZT—RF+_A=+—HILEE"
B IRTTIE B A B E F ) Z0.25% 5T
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% (2015: 0.001% to
0.35%) per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

28. RITHEHRREE

BITEREESBEAEEMERS
NAR1T #5848 - HR IR 1T T 4% F 7 2£0.001
E=035B(=ZZF—AF:0.001EF
035E)stE BREEIH A =18 H Kk
LA o

RITRBRBASPANTARINEE
AR PIPR B A B B8R 2 5ROA

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XRE —TET—RF
F#&ET FAET
Amounts denominated in: AT 5 B ¥ EHE < 3OE -
RMB AR 47,667 57,780
LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 29. EIRER R FIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-REF T —hF
FExT FAT
Loans receivables, repayable within one year AR —FRNEE K&
and classified as current asset NEAERBEEZEKER
Secured A 80,000 =
Unsecured 3o 190,000 -
270,000 -
Interest receivables JiE WL F) B 9,647 =
279,647 -
. —
R
il A o
o — |
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

29. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, secured loans with carrying amount of
approximately HK$80,000,000 (2015: nil) are secured by share or
assets charges provided by borrowers. The loans advanced to the
borrowers under the Group’s money lending business had loan
periods from 6 to 18 months (2015: nil). The loans provided to
borrowers bore interest rate ranging from 8% - 15% per annum
(2015: nil), depending on the individual credit evaluations of the
borrowers. These evaluations focus on the borrowers’ financial
background, individual credit rating, current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the borrowers as well as the
guarantees and/or security from the borrowers (where necessary).
The loans provided to borrowers are repayable in accordance with
the loan agreements, in which the principal amounts are repayable
on maturity and the interests are repayable half-yearly or on
maturity.

The following is an aged analysis of loans and interest receivables,
presented based on the dates which loans are granted to
borrowers and interests are accrued.

29. EWEREAE (&)

RZZE—XRNE+-_A=+—HB REEELHA
80,000,000 T (=T — R & : &)z FIKH
BT AR ERARE 2R MK EERRLE
IR RIBAEBE 2 BEEEBRN TFERAZ
BERzEFREAEI18EA (T —HF:
E) REFERAZEREN TEFERE
15% 2 FER(ZF—RF 815 HEURR
BERAZBRIEE T - A ST EFERER
AZHBES BAAEETA BRI
et REFRAZEHRIER A RKE BRAZR
BRI (N - REFERIAZER
ERBEER HRER SRR EENE B
EBERFEEGEFRNEHHEREES-

AT BRABERAREERREF S EH
25z B EFR R S MRER D

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$’'000

—2-xF  -T-EF

THR AT

Within 90 days 90K 126,586 =
91-180 days 91£180K 2,495 =
181-365 days 181%E365K 150,566 =
279,647 =

The Group’s financing advances to customers included in the
loan receivables are due as of the due date specified in respective
loan agreements. As at 31 December 2016, loans and interest
receivables of approximately HK$53,459,000 were past due.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, all past due balances were
settled. The Group's neither past due nor impaired loan receivables
mainly represented loans granted to creditworthy customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Accordingly, the
Directors considered that no impairment loss is necessary. Save
for the aforesaid, the Group does not hold collateral over those
balances.

AEERNFEPZBERBRERAR:
WREEER HEF B2 EAESH - RF
—XNE+ZA=+—H8 EUEZERFEYH
53,459,000/ L E @ Bl - MAEE H 18 - FT A
BHERDEEN AEEZ KRBT ERE
ZEWERE BT ERA LS SE
BERFEHZEF Al EZRAHAE
HOREEBE Bk L& NREBWERZE
R E RS-
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. E5 R H At B Y RRIR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-RE —E—AF
FHT FHATT
Trade payables FET & 558 1,037 881
Earnest money from finance lease receivables R EEW R EHEREHE S 6,946 =
Value-added tax payable FE T 15 A B 500 395
Accrued charges st & 8,300 3,845
Other payables H b e S 3R IE 6,621 7,699
23,404 12,820
The average credit period on purchases of goods is normally BEZFHEEHR—MKAR30E90H (=
ranging from 30 days to 90 days (2015: 30 days to 90 days). The T —FRF:308908) - AEEREFR
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure EVBRRERBUER  BRIAENR
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. BN EEARLES -
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented LNTRREBERAREEZEHZS 2
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: FET B 5 B IR BRER 24T
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E—XF —T—REF
FET FABT
0-30 days 0£30H 423 272
31-60 days 31£260H 3 5
61-90 days 61%290H 6 2
Over 90 days #HiE90H 605 602
1,037 881
C
b
=X
e
it o
ST =
'_: — (i.‘" %L:‘Lq
E . r__/——~ 5 2 _f_‘-\,— “L4
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. EEM A
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for M BREMS  BERIBLAE SR Z O
financial reporting purposes: R
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
ZE—RF —T—RF
FTER FHET
Deferred tax asset FETIBE E 3,179 -
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBAE - =
3,179 -
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERELFERRZEZRTER
recognised and movements there on during the current year and BEE(EE) REEFHFMAOT
prior year:
Fair value
Accelerated change in held Impairment on
tax for trading  finance lease
depreciation Tax losses  investments receivables Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B
mE RaIRE HERE
REHE BEEE ATELD ElsR @it
TExL TR TEL T TERL
At 1 January 2015 R-E—RE—A—B 253 (2,855) 2,602 - -
(Credit) charge to consolidated Birats (Gt A) Mk
profit or loss 768 (1,650) 882 - -
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ—0%F
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-HEK
“Z-R"¥—H-H 1,021 (4,505) 3,484 - -
(Credit) charge to consolidated Bira B (5P A) Mk
profit or loss (1) (4,838) 4,849 (3,179) (3,179)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+-A=1+—H 1,010 (9,343) 8,333 (3,179) (3,179)
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31. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$242,022,000 (2015: HK$234,961,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses
of approximately HK$56,624,000 (2015: HK$27,304,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$241,190,000 (2015: HK$208,646,000) may be carried forward
against future taxable income indefinitely under the current tax
legislation in Hong Kong.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to subsidiaries in
the PRC amounted to nil (2015: HK$25,653,000) that will expire
within five years from the end of the reporting period. Included in
the estimated unutilised tax losses is an amount of approximately
nil (2015: HK$24,797,000) related to the subsidiary in the PRC
classified as disposal group as at 31 December 2015.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$832,000 (2015:
HK$662,000) of which the use is subject to the agreement of the
tax authority and compliance with certain provision of the tax
legislation in Singapore and may be carried forward against future
taxable income indefinitely.

A at 31 December 2015, the Group had deductible temporary
difference of HK$23,470,000 related to the subsidiary in the
PRC classified as disposal group. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The Group
had no other unrecognised deductible temporary difference as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

f 13 B 5 e A P

—NFLTZHA=F—HIEFE

31.IEZLERIE (5)

RZE—RE+ZA=+—8 Kx&£E
A] A E SR 2OR A1) 2 (et R BV A TR TS
B 184 5242,022,0008 7 (&2 —H
£ : 234,961,000/ 7T ) ° $%IEEJE1$
5T B) F B3 7% B 18 956,624,000 7T

—Z— R :27,304,000/8 7T ) FERIE
SEFRIEE E - R AR BETER B 18 2% F
HONR + AN SR (B 3 A B AR T A S S 1R T
RIELERIBEE °

fHET R B) B F 7% B3 18 49241,190,0007%
7t (ZZF—F £ : 208,646,000/ 7T ) 18
BRBEITE AR ER AL - LUK
RIRERFAULA o

B ARBBAHBEEEEB R R XK
BRral BEAZ(ZZE—HAF:
25,653,000 70) ' A SmEHARER
ENER - RZE—AF+=-A=+—
H Bl EALEEE 2B 2 M
BRARHE (ZZ—HF 24,797,000
BIL) 2 Bt AT A BB E
-

Bt RS BEHBEREBR — MM
WK B AR BB 4832,0008 7T (=
T—F4F :662,00087T)  BNAHZER
HEEALHEBRE  LAFAFMN
WHRGEE T HJ,NBE,H;ENE.L A
R EE AR R PERR B UL A o

RZZE—HF+-_A=+—8 A£E
aﬁﬂmam%$12w$lzwg

NA)A 2 AR B R A §823,470,000
BIT o RN A Be B Al HURE R = 55 ]
HEIR S FE R BOR F - B E B AL E AT 0
BEREREERECERBEE - R
—NERZFT-—RF+-_A=+—8"
7N 55 [ N £ H b oK B SR A HI R E B =
B o

VLU

7
!
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!
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =%

—AFE+ZASF—EILEE

31. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 31 IEREBIE (4)
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIERRCEMSHRE BT NF
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 — A— B BN ETREF B
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided BRI EEMNZEIRKE - BRA
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary R TR ERE Y E R ERE
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC BEAKRABERA R R e RIED
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$18,026,000 (2015: B TEEEREHBoRE GREE
HK$9,587,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the HEBRTPEBAR 2 2E & F -
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the A 8#918,026,0008 L (=T — A& :
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 9,587,000/ T ) °
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. IR A
Number of Number of Share Share
shares shares capital Capital
RH8A RiHEAE B i
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE “T-nf —B-RE “T-hF
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SRAEB.SETZEER
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—-BRTZA=+—-H 50,000,000 50,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARME:
At 1 January ®—A—H 5,264,566 2,917,991 263,228 145,900
Issue of shares upon subscription (note i) W RER TR (K &) 2,000,000 = 100,000 =
Issue of shares upon open offer (note i) RAREERETRM (K - 1,458,995 - 72,949
Issue of shares upon placing (note iii KB RE AT IR (FiFaii) - 875,380 - 43,769
Exercise of share options (note iv) PRk (Fistiv) - 12,200 - 610
As 31 December W+=-A=1+-H 7,264,566 5,264,566 363,228 263,228
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 £

32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 September 2015,
27 October 2015 and 9 December 2015, the Company entered into share
subscription agreements (the “Share Subscriptions”) with the independent
third parties (the “Subscribers”) of the Company that the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue and the Subscribers conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.05 each at the subscription price of HK$0.18 per share.

The conditions were fulfilled and the completion of the Share Subscriptions
took place on 3 February 2016. A total of 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were allotted and issued at cash consideration of
HK$360,000,000.

On 10 November 2014, the Company announced the open offer of one
offer share for every two existing shares held on 4 December 2014, with
subscription price of HK$0.15 per offer share. Total of 1,458,995,422

ordinary shares were issued on 15 January 2015.

On 24 June 2015, arrangements were made for a private placement to
independent private investors of 875,380,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each in the Company, at a price of HK$0.25 per share representing a
discount of approximately 7% to closing market price of the Company’s
share on 12 June 2015.

On 2 November 2015, options were exercised to subscribe for 12,200,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$3,367,000, of which approximately HK$610,000 was credited to share
capital. Accordingly, approximately $160,000 was transferred from the
share options reserve to the share premium in accordance with policy set

out in note 3.

f 13 B 5 e A P

A CE—NFfZA=1—HIFE

32. BRA& ()

BT -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RMARRBHAE-ZE—AFAATNE
—E—RFTAZTEHR=ZZT-—HFT=
ANBZAMFE ARRERDR B
F=7 ([REH ) FILRHBE ([RHR
Bl & ARREE KRG HRERE R
BAIMREAERREHRAERAEES
f%0.18/& TR A A R FAXE(E0.05B T2
2,000,000,000% & 57 f% °

BHERERRRHNABBER T —~F
ZA=B35EM/K KR A4 #2,000,000,000
i & 37 Ak B 12 3R £ 1K {8360,000,0007%8 JT AL
BREAT

RZZT—NF+—A+8 ARFASHERR
—E-NE+-ANBEFRAEMBRIBEER
MERE—RBEERMNETAREE REE
AREBREERMNISEIT - RZT—HF—
B+HR A A #£1,458,995,422 % & 5@ i /&
BT

RZF—AFENA=-1THEA BEEZHR
BT AR B E L & AR F]875,380,000/%
FARE(EO.057%8 T AR - E% A FAR0.25
BT (BARRAROR=-Z—AFA A+=
B2ZWmEHEL7%)

M-ZE—A&E+— A=A BREETEN
REARRE]12,200,0000% % @A - RELH A
3,367,000/ 7T * E 1 £7610,000% st AR
2N o [ It + #7160,0005% TEAR I 8k Ot 7E3 2
BREBREFEEREROEE -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2012 scheme

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) under which the board of Directors may at its
discretion offer to any Director (including non-executive director),
employee, suppliers, customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group, shareholders of any member of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interests and any other group
or classes of persons or entities who have contributed to the
development and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards for the participant’s contributions to
the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

33.

iE R RS
—E-—F5E

RZE—Z—FRARAZ-Z+Z=ZH ARQF
R —T——F58 ([Z2—=F&
g]) Bt EFRUNBREMNES
(BREFANTES) EE HEF ¥
FrRASEERERRT ARk Mk
iR 2 EA AT EE  REEEM
RERRZBRESAEEEFEHBRE
ZEMEBEEUARAERNER 2 ER KK
RIEHER 2 A E AR B R 2
ATHER ([28EE])REBERE
DRIE =T — —F 5T 8l 2 IR R B A
NEZzBH —E——FHEZFER
WER Bk ZE 2 HEE A K EE
Eep=¥

ERE =T ——F5t 8| RA R RMEAME
R RT RN TR 2 AT B BB A A
BEITEMAl e BT 2 RIS T15H
BRA T —_FHEAHEARRE
BITRAZ10%  EEBEA AR RERE
FHOERIBR SN e AT ERE=F—=
Fat 8 AN D B E A £ b B AR A AT 2
REBBFITEMARITEZNEBR
TR AT RE T Z R R EE
AHETBRBBAEARRTEDETRA
230% °

BIE T ——F 2R H 2 EIRER
MZRBEERESETZER T4
BRUAT=FFREE  ()REL A H
(BEAEEH)EBRXFEBHARERF
TR AR BN 2 T (& ()R BER
R AER S BEMRATEHRE
KA AR B R 2 FHWTE : (i)
B fn 2 E1{E -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2012 Scheme was 365,242,090 (2015: 399,622,090), representing
5.03% (2015: 7.59%) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
end of reporting period.

33. B HESTE (®)

—E——FEHE (s

HRE - — —F:t 8 R AR REM
H A BB RERT 8% T E @A A Z B
HEEETIE M TT R Al gE 31T 2 IR D 48
I EBBEBETERMNZ1% °

—E - YESHAEAREN
RZBRE MARBEERA2ENIG
RERERBHR - FARE SO RBRE
LEERBHREHAEERRTRAE
NEE ATER2EEZMEMEL
BRMRE-

—E - FFESEERN T ——F
SFEBHEE—_E-_—_FERA -+ —
HIETER—EBR HEBEITeE—
TREBERE ER_F——F5ElF
45 BB 4% Y 2 B AR b AT AR R EL BT IR
RUEE T AT BT ——F:tElz
BEXEMBEMTEHIRE T2 AN
MAERA -

BREBE-Z-—_FFIRLZBRER
IR H A2 R AR - R A
B ARABRARAMUETT:
ERERBEREZRE-

RZEBE—ARF+ZA=+—H BE=
E——FHE ERLRBREERRT
21D EE A365,242,0900% (==&
— A :399,622,0900% ) * HHE R E
BIRANARIE BT D 25.03% (=&
—HE:759%) °
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.
33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 33. B AR ()
The 2012 scheme (Continued) “E-ZFFE
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share THRBEBEHE—_E—RNER_E—0HF
option granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended 31 +TZA=T—HBLFE RBRE=-FT—=
December 2016 and 2015: B ARARELZ BRES 2
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—R"E+-A=+—HLEE
Number of share options
BRE#A
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise price as at during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS 1.1.2016 the year the year the year the year 31.12.2016
R85 RZ8-5x%
L +2A=z1-8
BiHAH :d ] BT CES TN FRRE FRTE EREY FREN 1R AT
Director 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 70,788,060 = = (10,480,000) = 60,308,060
3 “Z-R5tAttR ZZ-REtA+ERE
—2-\FtA+iH
Employee 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 190,834,030 = = (23,900,000) = 166,934,030
3] “Z-R5tAttR ZZ-REtA+ERE
—2-\FtA+iH
Consultant 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 138,000,000 = = = = 138,000,000
B “Z-R5tAttR ZZ-REtA+ERE
—2-\FtA+iH
Total 399,622,090 = = (34,380,000) - 365,242,090
@zt
Exercisable at the end of the year 365,242,090
RERA{TR
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.30/8 T - - HK$030#BTT - HK$0.30/8TT

MEFHTEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2012 scheme (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

= —

FEE—NFLZH=S—HIEFEE

33. IR AESTE (m)
—E-—F5E8
BE-—T-A4+-_B=1+—RILEE

Number of share options

BRELA
Exercise
price (before Adjusted  Outstanding Adjusted Granted Exercised Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
15.1.2015) exercise price asat on during during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS HKS 1.1.2015 15.1.2015 the year the year the year theyear  31.12.2015
1&g
(Z2-1% gAg  WN-T-1f N-%F-1f RZ2-1%
—At+EBH) (14| -A—B -At+EA TZR=1+-8
bzl i AT BT HATTEE it FRRM ERLTHRE ERRK ERRA AR
(Note)
(M)
Director 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 0.30 0.2758 145,800,000 12,815,820 = - (52,871,940) (105,743,880 -
2 —Z-|E “E-PE+-AZHE
+-A=A —Z2-1%t+-AZH
17.7.2015 17.7.2015 10 16.7.2018 030 Not applicable = = 80,822,090 - (10,034,030) = 70,788,060
—2-1% ZR-RELATERE
tAT+tA “2-\ELATiA @R
Employee 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 030 0.2758 97,200,000 8,543,880 - (12,200,000) - (93,543,880) =
&8 —Z-pE “E-ME+-A=HE
+-A=R “2-1%+-AZA
17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 Not applicable = - 218,868,060 - (28,034,030) - 190,834,030
“2-1f “2-NELATLAE
tA+t+A Z2-\FtAtrA TER
Consultant 17.7.2015 17.7.2015 t0 16.7.2018 0.30 Not applicable = - 138,000,000 = = - 138,000,000
BR —Z-1f “E-n¥tATtHE
tA+t+A Z2-\FtAtrA TER
Total 243,000,000 21,359,700 437,690,150 (12,200,000  (90,940,000) (199,287,760) 399,622,090
a5t
Exercisable at the end of the year 399,622,090
RELAHE
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.30/7 HK$0.2758B L HKS0.30% 7T HK$0.2758 70 HKS0.2859 77T HK$0.2758B L  HK$0.30% 7T

TR

Note:

On 15 January 2015, the Company had completed the open offer (note 32(ii))

and as a result of the completion of the open offer, adjustment has been made

to the exercise price of the share options and the number of shares to be allotted

upon the exercise of share options under the 2002 Scheme and the 2012

Scheme, effective from 15 January 2015.

f

By

RZZ-—RF—A+HA ARRETKRAFAHE
& (MIEE32(i)) RN ARBEE 2Tk ERE=
ZE_FHER-_F - —FHERTRBRER
HIEREZTEERETREEZRMEE FHH
B A-T-AF—AtHARER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2012 scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no options were
granted. The estimated fair values of the options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2015 on the grant date were
HK$10,671,000 and were determined by using the Binominal
Model.

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model were as follows:

33. R AERT 8 (m)
—E-—F5E8
BE—T—AFE+-A=t+—HIFE"
+- A=+ BLEEABLAREY

B AT (EA10,671,000/8 7L R IA =B
KA T -

THA—HEABRABARA:

2015

—ET—hH%F

Adjusted share price at the grant date R B LA 2RO ER HK$0.190/% 7T
Exercise price per share BRITEE HK$0.30/8 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA R 1 40.84%
Expected life TEHAS o 3 years4E
Annual risk-free interest rate f [ B 4 A1) 2R 0.58%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatilities of the share prices of the comparable companies over
one year.

Amounts of approximately HK$1,964,000, HK$5,340,000 and
HK$3,367,000 were to be recognised as share-based payments
expenses granted to directors, employees and consultants,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2015 with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

BEREA - FALB QR ZRERE
BB 1 e E

FRIE 471,964,000/ 7T ~ 5,340,0007% 7T
3,367,000 THRRNEE T —RHF
T A=t+—BIEFEERABURMDH
RZATHARTFES EENEM
FERRRE AR RS N -

B8 AR 2 P (X — B R R - R
SRR A T a0 B E E R R
ENE MR BRE EEES
EESES LB LENE NENCE
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2002 Scheme

On 18 March 2002, the Company adopted the 2002 Scheme
(the “2002 Scheme”) under which the board of directors of
the Company may at its discretion offer to any director of
the Company (including non-executive director), employee,
suppliers, customers, any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group or any entity in which
the Group holds an equity interests and any other group or classes
of persons or entities who have contributed to the development
and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.
The principal purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentive
or rewards for the participant’s contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2002 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2002
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

f 13 B 5 e A P

—NFLTZHA=F—HIEFE

33. B HESTE (®)

—E2-F58
R-ZZB-F=A+/\A ARARK
M-TB_FiE (TR =Fi
Bl B ARAEERABIE M
EFAARREE (REFNTEE) -
B8 (AR BF A% E R
7% BB S E A BT R 2 AT 3K
i ARBEFAKEARZBRLA
SEBAHRE TAEBURATE
B2 R Rk R A B B2 A E A
@%iﬁ%ZAitE%U/A%D

SHERE DRE-DBFHE
BREMAR A2 -~ TR
HoEBAMER BB EDS RE
GES SR

ERE T —Ft 8 R AR REMR
HEaBRET S TR E A B
EEITE M A RE T 2 R D BB T
BBRHN_—_ZTZT _F:rEBHAA

DETIRAZ10%  HEEAR Tk%
BEETHLAERIBR N AT ARIBE =T Z
— F & R AR A T ] H b B AR 4 5T
%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁZ%ﬁ%

H&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%T ﬁZfoﬁﬂEﬂ%%(

$230%

*Eﬁéf? T F fiﬁxﬂjzﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁx
PZRBEEAESET 2B
1EEB’\LAT—%EF‘$TH% (')Jﬁ”\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ
(EAEHEH)EBXFEBHARERT
FrsR AR Bl n 2 T (B (i) B
BRI AER S BEMRATEHRE
RATRAR R KD 2 FHUKRTE : (iii)
B fn 2 E{E -

RAiRE - T —F5 &8 R AR EEM
H A B A AT 81 TEAME A Z BB
BETEMBTRAIEETZRDR
g IAEEBEEITRMZ1% -

.
S abia
- A o
- — 4§
=
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B _E—NFf - HA=+—HIFE
33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

FErEY EHE T HIEH
ME

33. BT & ()
“EBR-F8 (e

The 2002 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum T

period and the board of directors of the Company may in its

absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for

each option granted will be made by the board of directors of

the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants

CI=g 15
RZBRE MARFBEERA2ERIG
REFHHIR - X S0 BE
ZREFAHEEHARAEZTRHR
TRBERE
The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme to 17

MiEHBARE -
March 2012, after which no further options will be granted but the

BTregRLHE 2w
—EECFHERKEREN =TT F
FrERBRE—T——F=HA++tH
i E+FA—BEBR HEETeE—F
options which are granted during the life of the 2002 Scheme may REOBRE ER S _FrE8FE
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue BAFE 4% 2 R B AT AR 48 HL 31T 1650
and the provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects BEETATE BT _FrEl 2K
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof XEMBHEMAEARE TN R
YEA
Options granted under the 2002 Scheme must be taken up within BIBE-ZFZT - F5r 5% H 2 Bk
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

IR B HIE21 R AR

258 - B’\&ZWE%H;
B EEAARAR RSN
Ve B R AR A {1 -

B\A_
—

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Scheme was 49,145,426 (2015: 49,145,426)

0.68% (2015: 0.93%) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
end of reporting period

3

—NF+-_A=+—8 RiE=
— R EIR T m ARITE 2 BB AR
representing Bz BHEE FH49,145,426/% (=F
i — R F:49,145,426/%)  HE R A
A \\\i =1
No share options had been granted or exercised under the 2002
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015

ERAR
AR R E B R E 31T 15 20.68% (=
T—FHF:093%)

No share options have been lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 73,595,889)

REE_ZT—R"FEFR_ZT—HF+=
A=+ EIJJ:¢F£|7<J14H$ETF ==
— A

HE-ZT—

K —= =
RO HITE2BEBRE MR

/\i"f’—ﬂ E+_ E| JJ:E
B UVEERESRAU (T —RF
73,595,889% )
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

2
33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 33. R AESTE (&)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued) “EERFFE W)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TREERAQNGRBE-_ZZ_F5 &
options granted under the 2002 Scheme during the years ended BEsBEREREBEE _ZE—XREFR-
31 December 2016 and 2015: T-AF+-A=1t—RLFEZE
B
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-—R"F+-A=+—HLHF
E
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise price Adjusted
(before exercise  Outstanding Forfeited Lapsed  Outstanding
15.1.2015) price as at during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS HKS 1.1.2016 the year the year 31.12.2016
%@ R=B-XE
(Z2-1% gRE  R-B-AF t=A
-Bt+EAAH) fTEE -A-H ==
BEAS TS B BT HARATE FRRE FRRU HARATE
Other eligible persons 20.8.2007 20.8.2007 to 20.8.2017 0.6275 0.5768 29,585,058 - - 29,585,058
EhaERAL ZESLENAZTH ZFTLENAZTEE
ZE2-+tENAZTH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 10 7.9.2017 0.6850 0.6297 14,670,276 = = 14,670,276
ZFRtENALAE “ER+ENALAER
“2-—tENALH
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 to 28.9.2017 0.7385 0.6788 4,890,092 - - 4,890,092
ZEREENAZTAR ZESEENAZT\EE
Z2-tFAAZTNR
Total 49,145,426 = = 49,145,426
@t
Exercisable at the end of the year 49,145,426
RELTFE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.603% 7T - - HK$0.603% 7T
METHTEE
. p—— P
> T %
o s
S — i
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

33. R AERT 8 (m)
—EEFGE )
BE—_ZE—FAFEt+-_HA=+—HIEE

Number of share options

BRERA
Adjusted
Exercise price (before exercise Outstanding Forfeited Lapsed Outstanding
15.1.2015) price as at Adjusted during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS HK§ 1.1.2015  on 15.1.2015 the year the year 31.12.2015
(3] RZE-8%
(=2-1% E9% K-T-IF R-T-3% =
—AtERE#) 1RE -A-H —A+aA =t+-H
Ritl B H e BT BT HALTE BE ERRK EREK HATTERE
(Note)
(Kf3E)
Other eligible persons  26.9.2005 26.9.2005 t0 25.9.2015 0.3695 0.3396 67,649,498 5,946,391 - (73,595,889) -
EtagRAL It 3 Sk “ERRFAASTARE
AB=+7B “2-n¥AA-TEA
20.8.2007 20.8.2007 to 20.8.2017 0.6275 0.5768 27,194,648 2,390,410 - - 29,585,058
=TTLE “2RLEN\A-THE
NAZtH “E—t+5NA=1H
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t07.9.2017 0.6850 0.6297 13,484,949 1,185,327 = = 14,670,276
“ETE “ZTLENALHEE
NAtR “2-tFNALA
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 to 28.9.2017 0.7385 0.6788 4,494,983 395,109 = - 4,890,092
ZZTtE SHFEAAZTN\RE
AB=TNB - tEAAZTAR
Total 112,824,078 9,917,237 = (73,595,889) 49,145,426
&5t
Exercisable at the end of the year 49,145,426
RELTHE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.484% T HKS$0.445% T - HK$0.33967T  HK$0.603% 7
METHTEE
Note: P 3 -

On 15 January 2015, the Company had completed the open offer (note 32(ii))
and as a result of the completion of the open offer, adjustment has been made
to the exercise price of the share options and the number of shares to be allotted
upon the exercise of share options under the 2002 Scheme and the 2012

Scheme, effective from 15 January 2015.

R-F-BF-A+ER ARARERAME
# (WIEE3200) REEA AR E 2R - ERE=
TT A AR T S F BRI
SRR 2 7 B RIS T RO 2 IR (3 BB fF 138
B g-F-nf-AtEARER
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For the year ended 31 December 20168 2 =&

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As detailed in note 15(ii), the Group discontinued its operation of
manufacture and sale of coal products upon the disposal of the
entire equity interests in Graceful Mind on 23 March 2016.

3. HEKE A F
uEZZZDMTuE15(I|)Pﬁu¥L
“T=HHERBEHRER  AEEH
RIEEFERBGE R HEEmM L EE

—NFEL_A=1—HIFE

R-ZE—

INGE=

Consideration received Fr R B
HK$'000
FAT
Cash received FrAR € 10,000
The net liabilities of the Graceful Mind Group at the date of the HEBEERLEBBHZEBEFHENT

disposal were as follows:

23 March 2016

HK$'000
—T—RF
=A=-+=8
T T
Property, plant and equipment M BWE k& 2,633
Prepaid lease payments, classified as DERIERDEECENES
non-current assets 11,161
Goodwill SES -
Prepaid lease payments, classified as current assets D AR EE 2 FBENES 264
Inventories FE 10,319
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b g W 8 7,052
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 2,867
Trade and other payables B 5 I H b FE - 5B (19,825)
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder —ERB ATz —BIEERBRER
of a subsidiary (29,946)
Tax payables IR (5,061)
Net liabilities disposed of ELEBEFER (20,536) :
C
»
(o
s
. p—— ‘—-.,_\1' a :
e e T
'_"-‘ —— (;.‘1' ?LLLL"
E . r__/——~ E _f_'—\- “T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 3. HEMEB AR (&)
Gain on disposal of the Graceful Mind Group: HEREREE 2 W
HK$'000
FiB T
Cash consideration received BUWIRERE 10,000
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEAEFE 20,536
Cumulative exchange differences on translation RREM B A B 2= b ERREGINGE R
of foreign subsidiaries reclassified from equity to AREmEN D EEEm R ELEZE
profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries 1,947
Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary of AR — RN E A A 2 I iR i
Graceful Mind (23,944)
Gain on disposal (note 15(ii)) & Weas (BT E15(0)) 8,539
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHREBARZRERA
R
HK$'000
FHB T
Cash consideration RERE 10,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposal of W EHBRITEKRKRES (2,867)
7,133
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For the year ended 31 December 2016& 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY ACCOUNTED  35. ABRBI/EE & UK B8 =~ Uk B8 B

FOR AS ASSET ACQUISITION

On 10 September 2015, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in China Best Finance Limited (“China
Best Finance”) from an independent third party for a cash
consideration of HK$800,000. The Directors are of the opinion
that the acquisition of China Best Finance is in substance an asset
acquisition instead of a business combination, as the net assets of
China Best Finance was mainly the money lender licence and China
Best Finance was inactive and did not constitute a business prior to
the acquisition by the Group.

Net assets of China Best Finance acquired:

BAA

R-E—RAFNLATH AEETKA
—BBUE=FRERESBHERA A
(IEEIK)ZERE BERER
800,000/ L - EER A HNBIZE 75
CFEEETZRMEANER N KEE
TP AR 55 (B UK B AT N 4B S A B R I
TR —EER Bt WERENKE
BEA—BEERBMIE—BELEH-

BERBZBEEMH 2 FEE:

2015
HK$'000
—T-RF
T T
Intangible asset EmIVEE 811
Other payable H b FE {5 2B (11)
800
Satisfied by: LATRE) 5 AT
Cash Re 800

1
/

LIPS
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.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

36. OPERATING LEASES 36. K& HL
The Group as lessee rEBERAEBA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments KGR AEBERBEN N7 HRE
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable WM PRAIE L EAL 2 BigRER
operating leases which fall due as follows: BAERT
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-XEF —E—h4F
FET FAIT
Within one year —F RN 16,876 12,547
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZELF (BEEERTF) 2,821 12,368
19,697 24,915
Operating lease payments represent rentals of the Group for its KERN B NAEBRERAE
office premises, director’s and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated ME - ZEFREIFEIN2HE K
for a range of one to three years and rentals are fixed for a range BREBEHAOZBRAR—E=F MR—
of one to three years (2015: one to three years). E=F7HBRA(ZE—H2F: —FE=

F) - HeeBDEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500
(2015: HK$1,500) per month, to the MPF Scheme, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Singapore
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes and
Central Provident Fund Scheme organised by the relevant local
government authorities in the PRC and Singapore respectively.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of its payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions
under these schemes.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of approximately
HK$955,000 (2015: HK$799,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Group has entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, loan interest
of approximately HK$337,000 (2015: HK$1,483,000) was
payable by the Group to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of Graceful Mind before the disposal as disclosed in
note 15(ii).

37.

38.

iR ¢ 48 A 5t &

AEEEAERESEELERESA
EleomBer B2 EERAEEBEED
FEA WHEE ARESEXIEH - &
SEIZBEBTHR A2 % BEEER
=& 81,5008 7w (ZF— R4 1,500/
JL) MBS T EIE L MR HES 27

TREE o

AEERPERFMPEE ZHER A
7 5|2 8 ey oh B % 7 00 3% AR B b 77 BRT
PIER 2 HEEHRFRARABIRPARAR
BEEE - ZENBRRAREIHKAZ
18 7E B 9 L AR @ A E B A SR UA
RHEHN - ARBERARENGETEZ
E—BERIELFEIEE ZHK-

E B Em R 2 8K A £955,0007 JT
(ZZ—F 4 :799,000/ 7T ) fE AN =@
St EMEAZETE 2 HE K

(@ BE-_ZT—A"Ft+-_A=+—81t
FE AEERHEAEMNIER —
KB ARz — B IFIERAEE K
F B #9337,0008 T (— T — R4
1,483,000/ 7 ) (&8 40 B 7150 AT
HEE) o
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38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED) 38. AERFKE (@)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EE A BH N
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key EEREMFEEBRAERFRALZ
management during the year were as follows: BT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF — R
FTET TEIT
Short-term benefits 52 HA R A 12,677 7,925
Share-based payment expense L\*%ﬁ%ﬁz F> - 2,159
Post-employment benefits B 12 12 R 141 74
12,818 10,158
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is EERFEFETHAERZME B B
determined by the remuneration committee having regards to ZEg ﬁ%fl)\ifﬁ&m 5B 1E
the performance of individuals and market trends. EE -
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  39. A AT X EMBEARFE
OF THE COMPANY
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
and share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRETRAR
ERELR RAEE/ AARFBERTRAEE/
WEARER EESuE EMER Eialig- el TEXRH
Directly Indirectly
HE B
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE “T-1%F ZB-X’E -T-E%
% % % %

Jet Air (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore SGD500,000 - - 93 93 Air freight forwarding and
brokers for airline and
shipping companies

BT (i) BRAT G0 1b 500,000 1% T EENRMERMB AR
%«%E

Jet-Air (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$142,000,200 - - 100 100 Trading of securities and
trading of goods

RHZEE (BR)ARAA Bk 142,000,200/ RLEERAMEE

Global Star Corporate Management  Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Acts as administrative centre

Limited of the Group
= REGEEEERAR &b 10,0008 7T fERAEEZITHHR L
n'l I\. ‘F—j?'-r_’
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. KR AR EEHBE A RIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
and share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETRAR
SR LR RAEE/ ADAFBERTRAEE
WEAREE EEHY EMEE ERERLH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE B
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZB-~E -ZT-1E ZB- § -—E-I1%
% % % %
Jet Dispatch Limited United States of US$3,000 - - 100 100  Freight forwarding agent
America
Jet Dispatch Limited e 3,000%7T EERE
Gujiao City Hongxiang Coal Industry ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 - - - 55 Sales of coal
Co., Limited*
IMEEREEERAR HE AR 150,000,0007C HERK
Qianhai Honghu Teri Technology PRC HK$110,000,000 - - 100 100  Trading of goods
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited* (2015:
HK$50,000,000)
AEREERHR (R ERRR & 110,000,000/ 7T BmEE
(ZZ2-1%:
50,000,000/57C)

Rongjinda Finance Leasing Limited*  PRC US$30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of finance lease
services and finance
consultancy services

HeEREHEARAR HE 30,000,000% 7T REREBERS R
LRAARS

China Best Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - - 100 100 Provision of money lending
services

BENBERAA B 28T RENERS

& The English name is for identification purpose only. * BNEHHEHRSE-

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability in FrEMB AR AEEERIARERET

the respective jurisdictions. iz BR AT -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at R 5 A E 57 J2 4F 45 B 3K % A E 5 2 A

the end of both years or at any time during both years. EEEEYEHRBAREEMADAE
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2F—

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

AEF A= —EILFE

3. ARNAEEMBRAFE

(&)

ERAIEZAREHNBRRSES
REBAEREXEXEEBRIET
EMBRR -BEERA REEAMM
BRARIZHBHRERBEN TR
RBEMR AR EEMEANEEL
REAZHMBAR - ZEHBARZE
ZERBHAT -

Number of subsidiaries

MERABEHE
31 December 31 December
Principal activities Principal place of business 2016 2015
ZE—XRF —ET—hEF
FEXHK TEEXELE +=H=+—H +t=-RA=+—H
Investment holding BVI 9 9
RE =R EREXHE
Hong Kong 1 1
BB
Inactive The PRC - 1
IR [
BVI 3 4
ERELHE
Samoa 1 1
F& EE 55
Hong Kong - 1
BB
14 17
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. KT EENMBARFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TERENEBEAFEZEREE 2AE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests. FE2EMBRAZFFIB-
Portion of ownership and
Place of incorporation and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERFEAAER
WRARER AMEIREFEEXHE R FREFERES 2R Rt FERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
8-~ —T-hFf ZB-xE _"T-HFf ZB-R"f _—T-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TET TER TET
Suntech Group (note) HK/PRC - 45% (496) (2,300) N/A (23,445)
FESE (M) B/ TER
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (14) (5) (43) (30)
ERTEAZMBA ARG EERER
(510) (2,305) (43) (23,475)
Note: The Group is holding 55% equity interest in Suntech, in which Suntech is Mt : ANERBIFBEESS%RKRE  MEERFR
holding 100% equity interest of Gujiao City Hongxiang Coal Industry Co., HRMAFEERRRF100%ARE
Limited.
;
b=
= ""'HH‘HE
S o
e o
/«' . H"“‘H =
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. X RBETEMEARFE

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's TRBAAREENE R AR SE RN
subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests that are material to HA 2 MBER  ZEWMER RS S
the Group, before intragroup eliminations: REEERZIEERER
Suntech Group FEEEH
From
1 January 2016 Year ended
to 23 March 31 December
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
B=Z—XF
—A—HZ HE
ZE-RF —T—hF
=A=+=H +ZH=+—H
LIEHARE IEFE
FET T
Current assets e & E N/A
B A 20,256
Non-current assets EMBEE N/A
TE A 14,381
Current liabilities e A& N/A
T8 A (86,737)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 482 7 # & A &1k #E &= N/A
B A (28,655)
Non-controlling interests PR = N/A
TE A (23,445)
Revenue Wz - -
Other income H A A - 1
Expenses S (740) (5,113)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company AN &% A A fE 15 & 18 (244) (2,812)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests  3E#2 B% 4 25 /& 15 /&5 18 (496) (2,300)
Loss for the period/year BN E AN EE (740) (5,112)
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w5 B H R B R
For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. KRR EEMBARIFE
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (%)
Suntech Group (Continued) EEEE#
From
1 January 2016 Year ended
to 23 March 31 December
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B=2—~F
—A—HZ H=E
—EB—AE —ET—hF
=A=t=R t=-A=+-—H
IEHARE IFFE
FET T
Other comprehensive expense attributable — AR GI#E B AL EM 2 EH
to owners of the Company X - (188)
Other comprehensive expense attributable — JEFEfRES B E M2 M
to non-controlling interests s - (154)
Other comprehensive expense for HAN,/ FAEMEE
the period/year s — (342)
Total comprehensive expense for HR,/ FAEEX
the period/year FE (740) (5,454)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating KEXEBFRE H 58
activities OR ) RmA (1) 24
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEEB 2BHSFERA - =
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEBFAE R SFERA — =
Net cash outflow WEFE (1) 24 \
L
»
= """ﬂ‘*&
s
. S " :
S / b i 5
‘_; I — fi,‘? %L%
SN Y E TSN
‘—f"-"‘-‘/‘_‘.--. r : ‘,__.;g"\-"-":?
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40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

NFEFZH=1—HIFE

40. XA B 2 B AR R

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T—RF
F&ET FABT

Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment e & 1,044 1,455
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - 15,899
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZEE 10 18
1,054 17,372

Current assets MBEE
Other receivables ot i YR IA 963 1,621
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Lk B B R R FR A 847,077 589,728
Bank balances and cash RITEEHR IR 92,431 19,016
940,471 610,365
Current liability me B &

Other payables H b A FRIE 13,091 9,195
Net current assets mEEEFE 927,380 601,170
928,434 618,542

Capital and reserves f& 72N % R4
Share capital fi& < 363,228 263,228
Reserves (note a) & (KisEa) 565,206 355,314
928,434 618,542
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For the year ended 31 December 20162 =F —NF+=-A=+—HIFZF

40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. &1 B Z BF B AR R &R ()

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: B 3 -
a. Reserves a. f&fE
Share Investment
Share  Contributed options revaluation ~ Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves losses Total
R 175 E AR BRERE RESHRE ZBEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT THT
(note)
(Kzz)
At 1 January 2015 “Z-15—-F—H 339,178 48,311 33,568 5,851 (286,372) 140,536
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (99,866) (99,866)
Other comprehensive income  FRE 2 EMBA
for the year - - - (6,952) - (6,952)
Total comprehensive expense SR ZE X
for the year k) - - - (6,952) (99,866) (106,818)
Issue of ordinary share upon ~ AREEBEETLER
open offer 145,901 - - - - 145,901
Issue of ordinary share upon Bl ERE(TEBR
placing 175,076 - - - - 175,076
Transaction cost attributable  Z{T3 LB ENE 2
to issue of new ordinary R KA
share (12,810) - - - - (12,810)
Issue of share upon exercise of §& I HEETT £ F
share options BT 2,917 - (160) - - 2,757
Recognition of equity-settled ~ MR E L
share-based payments PARR (2 5 SR RERR - - 10,672 - - 10,672
Lapse of share options BRELN - - (18,874) - 18,874 =
Forfeiture of share options BE P 2 M - - (1,623) - 1,623 =
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZE—HR&F
1 January 2016 +ZA=+-B&
—E-~"¥—-A—-H 650,262 48,311 23,583 (1,101) (365,741) 355,314
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (48,600) (48,600)
Fair value loss on available-  A[EHERE 2
for-sale investment NFEEE - = = (12,940) = (12,940)
Release of reserve upon REEHRHERERE
disposal of available-for-sale B H) &
investments - - - 14,041 - 14,041
Total comprehensive expense  FRZE Y T A%
for the year - - - 1,101 (48,600) (47,499)
Issue of ordinary share upon ~ FRIEEET L AR '
subscription 260,000 - - - - 260,000 h
Transaction cost attributable AR R BT FEG 2 L
to issue of share upon R KA t_-k
subscription (2,609) - - - - (2,609) - ;
Forfeiture of share options YR U BB o - - (838) = 838 = = < 7
T
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—~F s s
+-A=1+— 907,653 48,311 22,745 - (413,503) 565,206
2
-
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 =F— NF+=H=+—HILFE

40. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

a.

Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 1996 over the nominal value of the

Company's shares issued in exchange thereof.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 24 January 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, China Best Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”), ZR International Holding Company Limited (the
“Vendor”) and Mr. Wu Qiaofeng, both independent third
parties, entered into an agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase
and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the entire
equity interest in each of the target companies at a tentative
consideration of HK$200,000,000 (subject to adjustment),
which will be satisfied by cash. The principal activities
of the target companies are securities margin financing,
securities brokerage services and futures dealing services. The
acquisition is not completed up to the date of this report.

Further details of the acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 24 January 2017.

40. KRB 2 B MR R T (&)

il (4)

GEL

KRB ZBABBEARARRRMHN AN
FAEB P ER LT AT R IEEAMUEEN
BREZBROAFERBLEASRERMHET
ZARBRMEEZZR

RIBERE— AN\ —F R TR (EBE)
ARRZHARBTRAIE WARATE
ETHERTEBARBERIENBRE
AR IR

(@) ARTENHNIKFIR K ENEED
HEE %
(b) ARAREEZAERBENKMNRIE

RNEAE B BETRARED & ER
Z FERN

41. REHEREE

(a)

RZE—+tF—A=-+WTH"
ARrRZEWNBRRBZESR

EIRBERAR(IEA]) ZR
International Holding Company
Limited ((BEF]) R REBEE % &
(ORBILE=7):T L= ([Z%
mEl) BUREAEERHRE
BEMBEACAGRHERELES
BREARIZ2HkE  IZRER
200,000,000 7T (A] T5%) - #
NBREXff - BRARIZEEEK
RBEFAERE FHELERB R
HERX GRS - ZWBEEARS
B HA i AR TEpK o

ERZWEERZE—SHEHR
RAATBEHA-ZE—+F—H
—t+HBEZA M-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2 = F —NFE+ A=+ —HIFZF

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(0

On 13 March 2017, Kang Yong, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the purchaser, Honghu Group Limited, and the
guarantor, Mr. Deng Junjie, to sell its shareholding in East
Favor, representing 49% of the entire issued capital of East
Favor, at the consideration of HK$120,000,000. The disposal
was completed on 20 March 2017.

Further details of the disposal are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 13 March 2017.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, an investment
in associate with carrying amount of approximately
HK$10,760,000 classified in assets held for sale as at
31 December 2016 was repurchased by an existing
major shareholder of the associate and the proceeds of
approximately Japanese Yen159,241,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$10,910,000) was received on 20 March
2017.

4. BREPEREE 5

(b)

RZE—+tF=A+=H'A21Q7
2EMBARRKEEHBEE
EERAGRERABEBRNLE
AIVEERRE WHEERREZ
i - HERREE2HEHITR
R 249% (B A120,000,0007%
T MESHER-ZT—tF=A
—t+tHEK-

BRZLESHZE - TFHIFH
RARFTBRHPR-_ZE—+F=H
tT=HZRfe

RIBERRE RN —R"F+=
A=+—H 2EARBELEE
EZREELFZIEE (FEAE
#7/410,760,000/8 7T ) E BB & A
RIZIRAEEBEREERD KATEXK
T8 #9159,241,0008 7T (B ZE R4
10,910,000/ L) ER =T —+4F
= A=+ HUWKE-
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A B B R

RESULTS K&
Year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—E-RE “Z-0F —T-mF —T-=F —T-CF
Tz T THT FHL TET
(ms5)
Revenue g 488,208 336,296 267,040 47,739 102,941
(Loss) profit before tax BRELAT (18 ) & A (8,665) (49,318) (28,010) (103,326) 9,161
Income tax (expense) credit PE (R )H e (2,385) (1,673) (331) 2,999 (6,604)
(Loss) profit for the year M (EE)EH (11,050) (50,991) (28,341) (100,327) 2,557
(Loss) profit for the year R (BE) &
attributable to: RIE-SEY A
Owners of the Company ARREEA (10,540) (48,686) (17,538) (76,162) (2,932)
Non-controlling interests FER R (510) (2,305) (10,803) (24,165) 5,489
(Loss) profit for the year FR(ER) RN (11,050) (50,991) (28,341) (100,327) 2,557
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
RT=A=t-H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —T-0% —T-mE —E-=F —E-CZF
TET THT FHET THT TR
Total assets EELE 1,056,715 767,040 395,823 346,758 447,765
Total liabilities BREE (31,072) (74,021) (72,277) (86,943) (90,949)
1,025,643 693,019 323,546 259,815 356,816
Equity attributable to owners KREHEBA
of the Company FEfh R 1,025,686 716,494 344,553 269,365 343,725
Non-controlling interests FERER (43) (23,475) (21,007) (9,550) 13,091
1,025,643 693,019 323,546 259,815 356,816
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